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PART |

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY DATA

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forw#mdking statements. All statements other than states of historical fact contained
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-lookstgtements, including statements regarding thgress and timing of our clinical
programs, regulatory filings and commercializatamtivities, and the potential clinical benefitsietg and market potential of our product
candidates, as well as more general statementsdiegaur expectations for future financial and m@ti@nal performance, regulatory
environment, and market trends. In some casescgoudentify forward-looking statements by termogy such as “may,” “would,” “should,”
“could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticipates,'believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “projects, pbtential,” or “continue”; the negative of
these terms; or other comparable terminology. Thegements include but are not limited to statémmyarding the commercial success of
Vascepa in its first approved indication, the MARMdication, the potential for, and timing of, apyal of the Vascepa Supplemental New
Drug Application, or sNDA, by the United States Ba@nd Drug Administration, or FDA, in its potentsdcond indication, the ANCHOR
indication; the safety and efficacy of our prodcahdidates; the scope of our intellectual propprofection and the likelihood of securing
additional patent protection; estimates of the pidd markets for our product candidates; the ik@bd of qualifying additional third party
manufacturing suppliers and estimates of the capatimanufacturing and other facilities to suppmut products; our operating and growth
strategies; our industry; our projected cash ndepsdity and capital resources; and our expeétsdre revenues, operations and expenditure

Forward-looking statements are only current préafist and are subject to known and unknown riskeerttainties, and other factors that
may cause our or our industry’s actual resultlkwef activity, performance, or achievements tortagerially different from those anticipated
by such statements. These factors include, amdreg dtings, those listed under “Risk Factors” enit1A of Part | of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual Report omFd0-K. These and other factors could cause esuldiffer materially from those
expressed in these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations refledtetthe forward-looking statements contained is #hiinual Report on Form 10-K are
reasonable, we cannot guarantee future result®rpeance, or achievements. Except as requiredvyve are under no duty to update or
revise any of such forward-looking statements, Weeas a result of new information, future evemtstberwise, after the date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Unless otherwise indicated, information containethis Annual Report on Form 10-K concerning owdurct candidates, the number of
patients that may benefit from these product caatdigland the potential commercial opportunity forgroduct candidates, is based on
information from independent industry analysts #ridi-party sources (including industry publicasosurveys, and forecasts), our internal
research, and management estimates. Managemenatestiare derived from publicly available inforroatreleased by independent industry
analysts and third-party sources, as well as data 6ur internal research, and based on assumptiads by us based on such data and our
knowledge of such industry, which we believe tad@sonable. None of the sources cited in this AhReport on Form 10-K has consented to
the inclusion of any data from its reports, norénawe sought their consent. Our internal researsmbabeen verified by any independent
source, and we have not independently verifiedthing-party information. While we believe that suadformation included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K is generally reliable, sucloinfation is inherently imprecise. In addition, gatjons, assumptions, and estimates of our
future performance are necessarily subject to a tégree of uncertainty and risk due to a variéfiactors, including those described in “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual ReporEorm 10-K. These and other factors
could cause results to differ materially from thesgressed in the estimates made by the indepepéd#didgs and by us.
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ltem 1. Business

References in this report to “Amarin,” the “Compahiwe,
consolidated basis, unless otherwise indicated.

our” and “us” refer to Amarin Corporation plc and its subsidiaries, on a

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the registl and unregistered trademarks and service markbker parties.

Amarin Corporation plc (formerly Ethical Holding&pis a public limited company incorporated unttex laws of England and Wales.
Amarin Corporation plc was originally incorporat@dEngland as a private limited company on March989 under the Companies Act 1985,
and re-registered in England as a public limiteshpany on March 19, 1993.

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg dmcated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @imary office in the United States is located 48Q Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (908-1315.

For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,adinary shares may also be referred to as “comshares” or “common stock.”

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company with expentidipid science focused on the commercializatiod development of therapeutics to
improve cardiovascular health.

Our lead product, Vascepa (icosapent ethyl) capsise@pproved by the U.S. Food and Drug Admintistna or FDA, for use as an
adjunct to diet to reduce triglyceride levels inkaghatients with severe (TG 500mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. We refer to thipapved
indication for Vascepa as the MARINE indication. Wegan marketing and selling Vascepa in the Urittades in January 2013. Vascepa is
available in the United States by prescription olfe market Vascepa through our sales force ofcqimately 150 sales professionals,
including sales representatives and their managers.

Triglycerides are fats in the blood. Hypertriglyidemia refers to a condition in which patients hhigh levels of triglycerides in the
bloodstream. It is estimated that over 40 milliciulés in the United States have elevated triglytetéevels (TG >200mg/dL) and
approximately 4.0 million people in the United $&have severely high triglyceride levels (T&09mg/dL), commonly known as very high
triglyceride levels. According tbhe American Heart Association Scientific Statemantriglycerides and Cardiovascular Dised8611),
triglycerides also provide important informationaamarker associated with the risk for heart diseesl stroke, especially when an individual
also has low high-density lipoprotein cholesteoolHDL-C (often referred to as “good” cholesteralpd elevated levels of LDL-C (often
referred to as “bad” cholesterol). Guidelines fog thanagement of very high triglyceride levels ssgighat reducing triglyceride levels is the
primary goal in patients to reduce the risk of aquancreatitis. The effect of Vascepa on cardiavasenortality and morbidity, or the risk for
pancreatitis, in patients with hypertriglyceriderhis not been determined.

The potential efficacy and safety of Vascepa (knawits development stage as AMR 101) was studigd/o Phase 3 clinical trials, the
MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial. At a daily dosé 4 grams of Vascepa, the dose at which VascepB#sapproved, these trials showed
favorable clinical results in their respective patipopulations in reducing triglyceride levelshwitit increasing LDL-C levels in the MARINE
trial and with a statistically significant decreasé.DL-C levels in the ANCHOR trial, in each case, relativ placebo. These trials also sho
favorable results, particularly with the 4-gram ela$ Vascepa, in other important lipid and inflantima biomarkers, including apolipoprotein
B (apo B), non-high-density lipoprotein cholestgradn-HDL-C), total-cholesterol (TC), very low-détydipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C),
lipoprotein-associated
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phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2), and high sensitivity&active protein (hs-CRP). In these trials, thetreosnimonly reported adverse reaction
(incidence >2% and greater than placebo) in Vasteaded patients was arthralgia (joint pain) (2f8%Vascepa vs. 1.0% for placebo).

We are also developing Vascepa for the treatmepatiénts with high (TG 200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) triglyceride levels whe alsc
on statin therapy for elevated low-density lipopiotcholesterol, or LDL-C, levels which we referat® mixed dyslipidemia. We refer to this
second proposed indication for Vascepa as the ANRktdication. The FDA views the proposed ANCHORIidadion as ostensibly and
impliedly an indication to reduce cardiovasculakriln addition, in December 2011, we announcedneentement of patient dosing in our
cardiovascular outcomes study of Vascepa, title®@BEE-IT (Reduction of Cardiovascular Events withA=RIntervention Trial). The
REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluate the effjoafcVascepa in reducing major cardiovascular ev@ant high risk patient population on
statin therapy.

We have a pending supplemental new drug applicabioeNDA, with the FDA that seeks marketing appitaf Vascepa for use in the
ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013, the FDA wamed an advisory committee to review our SNDA sTddvisory committee was not
asked by the FDA to evaluate whether Vascepa é#fe in lowering triglycerides in the studied ptation, the ANCHOR indication as
specified in the sNDA. Rather, the advisory pana$wasked whether Vascepa has been demonstratedrtuve cardiovascular outcomes or
whether approval of the ANCHOR indication shouldtviar successful completion of the REDUCE-IT stuthe first prospective study of
cardiovascular outcomes in patients who have higlyteride levels despite statin therapy. The adr committee voted 9 to 2 against
recommending approval of the ANCHOR indication lobse information presented at the meeting. The ED#siders the recommendation of
advisory committees, but final decisions on therapgl of new drug applications are made by the FDA.

The ANCHOR trial clinical study was conducted undespecial protocol assessment, or SPA, agreemtinthe FDA. The law
governing SPA agreements requires that if the tesdithe trial conducted under the SPA substantla hypothesis of the protocol coverec
the SPA, the FDA must use the data from the pro@mepart of the primary basis for approval of pheduct. A SPA agreement is not a
guarantee of FDA approval of the related new dipglieation. A SPA agreement is generally bindingmughe FDA except in limited
circumstances, such as if the FDA identifies a tutti&l scientific issue essential to determiniatety or efficacy of the drug after the study
begins that rises to the level of a public heatthaern, or if the study sponsor fails to follow fivetocol that was agreed upon with the FDA.
On October 29, 2013, the FDA rescinded the ANCH@RsSPA agreement because the FDA determinectialbstantial scientific issue
essential to determining the effectiveness of Vilaade the studied population was identified afesting began. As a basis for this
determination, the FDA communicated that it deterdithat the cumulative results from outcome studfeother triglyceride-lowering drugs
failed to support the hypothesis that a triglycetidwering drug significantly reduces the risk fardiovascular events among the population
studied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, the FDA stathdttwhile information we submitted supports testimg hypothesis that Vascepa 4
grams/day versus placebo reduces major adverseeasdular events in statin-treated subjects vatfidually high triglyceride levels, as is
being studied in the Vascepa REDUCE-IT cardiovamcoilitcomes study, the FDA no longer considerssa@h in serum triglyceride levels as
sufficient to establish the effectiveness of a dnignded to reduce cardiovascular risk in subjedtis serum triglyceride levels below 500
mg/dL. In November 2013, we submitted to the FDre@uest for reconsideration of its decision toiresthe ANCHOR SPA agreement. On
January 17, 2014, we were notified by the FDA thdbes not intend to reinstate the ANCHOR SPA agrent. Our plan is to continue
appealing the rescission decision to successivghehn administrative levels within the FDA in acdance with FDA dispute resolution
guidance.

The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadedor completion of
FDA's review, December 20, 2013. Instead, the FAfied us on December 19, 2013 that it would fashsider our appeal of the ANCHOR
SPA agreement rescission. No new PDUFA goal dath&bANCHOR sNDA was established. Based on infeionaavailable to us, we do not
expect a determination on the ANCHOR sNDA while appeal of the January 17, 2014 FDA decision tmiththe
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ANCHOR SPA rescission is in process. We are alswitoing our efforts toward a positive determinatan the pending ANCHOR sNDA.
There also can be no assurance that the FDA wiiltommunicate the results of its review of the ANQIRISNDA prior to the timing expected.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for FDA approval of Vascepa for the ANCH®Rication. There can be no assurance that webewiBuccessful in our effort to
reinstate the ANCHOR SPA agreement or obtain d kekygansion reflecting the ANCHOR clinical trialu& label expansion could include
FDA approval of the addition of an ANCHOR indicatistatement and/or the addition of the ANCHOR chhirial data to our currently
approved labeling.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to reduce opegatixpenses following the recommendation of thesady committee to the FDA
against approval of the ANCHOR indication, we impénted a worldwide reduction in force of approxieia60% of our staff positions. The
majority of affected staff members were sales msifnals who supported the initial commercial lduotVascepa. We incurred approxima
$2.8 million in charges related to the reductioffioirce, all of which includes cash expendituresdioe-time termination benefits and associate
costs. The charges were recorded in the fourthtguaf 2013 and the related payments will be madtheé first half of 2014. As part of the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18gs representatives, excluding sales managemeti United States in sales territories tha
we believe have demonstrated the greatest potéotislascepa sales growth. We plan to have thimteaver the target base of physicians
responsible for the majority of Vascepa prescriptiolume and growth since its launch in early 204/&h these changes and resulting target
base coverage, we anticipate continued Vascepauevgrowth over time. We also anticipate that saibs growth may be inconsistent from
period to period.

We have over 6,500 patients enrolled in the REDUTEtudy. We currently estimate that we will contpleatient enrollment in this
study in the first half of 2015. However, if we dot receive an expansion of Vascepa labeling fe ANCHOR indication, we plan to re-
evaluate continuation of the REDUCE-IT study ingtesent form and re-evaluate whether it is ad\ésttbcontinue the study. If continued, the
REDUCE-IT study will be completed after reachingaggregate number of cardiovascular events. Basedent rates in other outcomes
studies, we estimate completing the REDUCE-IT studyr about 2017 with results expected to be atbédlin 2018. Based on the results of
REDUCE-IT, we may seek additional indications fas¢epa beyond the indications studied in the ANCHORARINE trials.

In August 2013, we completed dosing of AMR102 x&di dose combination of Vascepa and a leadinghgtadiduct. The study is a
randomized, open-label, single-dose, 4-way crogs-study to continue testing of the relative biokmlity of AMR102 capsules, Vascepa
capsules with the selected statin taken conconytavidscepa taken alone and the selected statentalone. The results of this study support
the feasibility of AMR102. We have suspended addal development of AMR102 pending resolution & ANCHOR sNDA with the FDA.

If we do not receive FDA approval for the ANCHORIiication, we may discontinue development of AMR102.

Commercialization of Vascepa

Vascepa became commercially available in the Uriiades by prescription in early 2013, when we cemeed sales and shipments to
our network of U.Sbased wholesalers. On January 28, 2013, we comm@urdull commercial launch of Vascepa in the gdiStates for u
in the MARINE indication. In preparation for ourramercial launch, we hired and trained a directsstdece of approximately 275 sales
representatives. In October 2013, we reduced ombeu of sales representatives to approximately 8€luding sales management, in the
United States to focus on the sales territories\igabelieve have demonstrated the greatest patdotiVascepa sales growth. We now marke
Vascepa in the United States through our saleg fofapproximately 150 sales professionals and thahagers. We also employ various
marketing and medical affairs personnel to supportcommercialization of Vascepa. Our clinical @oednmercial supply is provided to us
under agreements with various third-party supplidssof February 1, 2014, over 16,000 cliniciand haitten prescriptions for Vascepa.
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In December 2013, we completed our eleventh fudrcdar month of marketing and selling Vascepa. 8asemonthly compilations of
data provided by a third party, Symphony Healtru8ohs, the estimated number of normalized totadcépa prescriptions for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was approximately 225,000. Adegrib data from another third party, IMS Healtie £stimated number of normalized
total Vascepa prescriptions was approximately 185f0r that same period. Normalized total presimig represent the estimated total numbe
of Vascepa prescriptions shipped to patients, tatled on a normalized basis (i.e., total capsiggped divided by 120 capsules, or one
month’s supply). The data reported above is basddformation made available to us from third paggources and may be subject to
adjustment and may overstate or understate aatestiptions. We recorded revenue of $26.4 mildaning the year ended December 31,
2013, all from sales of Vascepa in the U.S.

Although we believe these third-party-provided data prepared on a period-to-period basis in a evatmat is generally consistent and
that such results are generally indicative of aurprescription trends, these data are based onatss and should not be relied upon as
definitive. In addition, because of our limitedlsg history, during the year ended December 31320e only recognized revenue on product
that was resold for purposes of filling prescripgoThose prescription data may differ from daporeed by other third parties.

Prior to commencing our U.S. commercial launch aétepa in January 2013, we had no revenue fromegasBecause of our limited
selling history, changes in the size of our sabesef and uncertainty regarding resolution of theCANDR sNDA with the FDA, we do not
believe that we can provide a reasonably accuoasiezést of Vascepa prescriptions or revenues. Welexpect to be able to grow Vascepa
revenues, we provide no quantified guidance reggrdnticipated levels of Vascepa prescriptionsegenues and no such guidance should be
inferred from the operating metrics described ab®Ve believe that investors should view the ab@ferenced operating metrics with caution,
as data for this limited period may not be represtére of a trend consistent with the results pnése or otherwise predictive of future results.
Seasonal fluctuations in pharmaceutical saleseXample, may affect future prescription trends atepa, as could changes in prescriber
sentiment and other factors. We believe investioosilsl consider our results over several quarterrmer, before making an assessment ¢
potential future performance.

The commercial launch of a new pharmaceutical produa complex undertaking, and our ability taeefively and profitably launch
Vascepa will depend in part on our ability to gettermarket demand for Vascepa through educatiorkatiag and sales activities, our ability
to achieve market acceptance of Vascepa, ounyatnligenerate product revenue and our ability ¢eike adequate levels of reimbursement
from third-party payers. SeeRisk Factors—Risks Related to the CommercializatmmhDevelopment of Vascefia

We believe that our sales and marketing teams allgpasitioned to support the commercialization/ascepa for the MARINE
indication. We also believe that a larger salegreffill be required to best support the commeizédion of Vascepa for the ANCHOR
indication, if the FDA approves such indication. Sigport the continued commercialization of Vascegmaintend to consider strategic
opportunities with larger pharmaceutical comparfgsm time to time we have held discussions withda pharmaceutical companies on
potential collaborations and other strategic opputies, and we intend to continue having discussi@garding such opportunities in the
future. These strategic opportunities may includenising or similar transactions, joint venturestperships, strategic alliances, business
associations, or a sale of the company. Howeveamaot estimate the timing of any such potentraksgic transaction, and no assurance ca
be given that we will enter into any such stratégaosaction. Until such time when we enter intohsa strategic transaction, if ever, we plan tc
continue to execute on our plans to market andvgstepa on our own.

The U.S. market is currently our primary focus¥ascepa. Opportunities to seek regulatory apprandlto market and sell Vascepa
outside of the United States are also under evaltuat

Financial Position

We believe that our cash balance of $191.5 miliibBecember 31, 2013 is sufficient to fund our @ctgd operations for at least the next
twelve months, including continued commercializatid Vascepa in the United
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States for the MARINE indication, preparations dommercialization of Vascepa in the United Stategtie ANCHOR indication, if approve
and the advancement of the REDUCE-IT cardiovasaugomes study.

Lipid Disorders and Cardiovascular Disease

Heart attacks, strokes and other cardiovasculartevepresent the leading cause of death and tiigatshong men and women in
western societies. According to the Heart DiseaskStroke Statistics—2014 Update from the Ameridaart Association, more than 1 out of
every 3 adults in the U.S. (approximately 84 mil)icurrently lives with one or more types of caxdiscular disease; an estimated 915,000
heart attacks and 795,000 strokes occur each geastimated 32 million adufts20 years of age have high total serum cholestevel$ (=
240 mg/dL), and an estimated 71 million adel0 years of age have borderline high or high lowsitg lipoprotein (“bad”) cholesterol, or
LDL-C, levels (= 130 mg/dL).

In addition to cholesterol, lipoproteins such ad.Ldarry fats in the form of triglycerides. Hypedhyceridemia refers to a condition in
which patients have high levels of triglycerideghir bloodstream and has been recognized as gpeindent risk factor for cardiovascular
disease. Triglyceride levels provide important infation as a marker associated with the risk fart@isease and stroke, especially when an
individual also has low high density lipoproteirotdsterol (HDL-C; often called “good” cholesterald elevated levels of LDL-C. The effect
of Vascepa on cardiovascular mortality and morittitpatients with hypertriglyceridemia has not beketermined.

Guidelines for the management of very high trighgbe levels & 500 mg/dL) suggest that reducing triglyceride levslthe primary
treatment goal in these patients to reduce theofisicute pancreatitis. Treating LDL-C remainsm@apartant secondary goal. Other important
parameters to consider in patients with very higiiyicerides include levels of apolipoprotein B ¢ap), non-HDL-C, very low density
lipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C), and HDL-C. Thefeft of Vascepa on the risk for pancreatitis ingrets with hypertriglyceridemia has not
been determined.

It is estimated that over 40 million adults in theited States have elevated triglyceride levelsOs2§/dL and approximately 3 to

4 million people in the United States have venhhigglyceride levels £ 500 mg/dL). Since 1976, mean triglyceride levelgehmcreased, in
concert with the growing epidemic of obesity, insuksistance, and type 2 diabetes mellitus. Inrasty mean LDL-C levels have decreased.

Mixed dyslipidemia refers to a condition in whichtignts have a combination of two or more lipid @omalities including elevated
triglycerides, low HDL-C, and/or elevated LDL-C. @cdypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia acenponents of a range of lipid
disorders collectively referred to as dyslipideniigslipidemia has been linked to atherosclerosimraonly referred to as hardening of the
arteries.

Limitations of Current Therapies

It is estimated that approximately 4% or less & .ladults with triglyceride levets 200 mg/dL are currently receiving prescription
medication for lowering triglycerides. Many of tlegsatients are taking statin therapy directed pilgnat lowering their LDL-C levels.

The leading treatments to lower triglyceride le\aals fibrates (fenofibrate and gemfibrozil), statand a prescription only omega-3 fatty
acid, known as Lovaza in the United States, arfdraacor® in Europe. The use of fenofibrates can teadbnormal liver function tests (an
increase in ALT (alanine transaminase) or AST (Bapatransaminase), which are liver enzymes, am@é@nmonly measured clinically as a
part of a diagnostic liver function test to deterenliver health), especially when used with stafifiee use of gemfibrozil can lead to
rhabdomyolysis (severe breakdown of muscles), ésihewhen used with a statin. Lovaza is compriesédmega-3 ethyl esters, which the
FDA has described as a complex mixture of eicogapeit acid, or EPA, docosahexaenoic acid, or D&t other fatty acids. We believe t
DHA may increase LDL-C levels
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and thereby partially offset one of the typicalBsited benefits of lipid-lowering therapies, whistiowering LDL-C. Also, in 2012, the FDA
required an update to Lovaza product labeling ieetthe risk that Lovaza may increase the fregyef a heart rhythm problem known as
atrial fibrillation, or heart flutter.

Potential Benefits and Market Opportunity for Vascepa

Vascepa is comprised of not less than 96% purajmod ethyl, or ethyPA, and contains no DHA. We believe that the remhof DHA
mitigates against the LDL-C raising effect obseriredmega-3 compositions that include DHA, as waslfemoving the fishy taste and smell
that is sometimes associated with DHA. Based omedbelts of the MARINE trial, Vascepa was the fistega-3 based product to demonstrate
statistically significant triglyceride reduction thout a statistically significant increase in LDLuCthis very high triglyceride population.

We believe that the results of the MARINE trial arascepa’s EPA only/DHA-free composition suggeat Wascepa has the potential to
become a “best-in-class” triglyceride-lowering agierthe United States and the European Uniondtiiteon, currently no omega-3 based
product is approved in the United States for lomgtigh triglycerides in patients with mixed dysdipmia. If approved in that indication,
Vascepa has the potential to become “first-in-Clasthe prescription-only omega-3 market for loweytriglycerides in patients with mixed
dyslipidemia.

We believe the potential market for Vascepa isdargd growing. We estimate that drug treatmenbypercholesterolemia patients
exceeds $59 billion per year in the United Statéth sales dominated by statin therapies. U.S ssalldibrates as a class of products were
approximately $3.8 billion in 2013 with generic tdibbrate and gemfibrozil leading the class. U.®sgrsales of Lovaza in 2013 were over $1..
billion.

Clinical Trials
The MARINE Trial (basis for currently FDA approvethbel for Vascepa)

The MARINE trial, the largest study ever conduckéth the omegé3 fatty acid ethyl EPA in treating patients withrydigh triglycerides
(=500 mg/dL), was a Phase 3, multi-center, placeburolbed, randomized, double-blind, 12-week studgtients were randomized into three
treatment arms for treatment with Vascepa 4 grayn/2dgram/day or placebo. Patient enrollment is thial began in December 2009, and
enrollment and randomization was completed in Aug040 at 229 patients. The primary endpoint inttteé was the percentage change in
triglyceride level from baseline compared to placafier 12 weeks of treatment. The MARINE study wexguired to meet a stringent level of
statistical significance of 1% (p < 0.01) in oureSjal Protocol Assessment, or SPA, agreement Wah-DA.

In November 2010, we reported top-line data forNMA&RINE trial. In the trial, Vascepa met its prinyagndpoint at doses of 4 grams and
2 grams per day with median placebo-adjusted rahstn triglyceride levels of 33% (p < 0.0001) quemed to placebo for 4 grams and 20%
(p = 0.0051) compared to placebo for 2 grams. Thdiam baseline triglyceride levels were 703 mg&RQ mg/dL and 657 mg/dL for the
patient groups treated with placebo, 4 grams ot¥jpa and 2 grams of Vascepa, respectively.

In a pre-specified secondary analysis in the suljgad patients with baseline triglyceride > 750 dig/representing 39% of all patients,
the effect of Vascepa in reducing triglyceride lsev@ompared to placebo was 45% for 4 grams andf88% grams, both statistically
significant (p = 0.0001 for 4 grams and p= 0.00d6X grams, respectively). The median baselingytrégide levels in this subgroup were 1052
mg/dL, 902 mg/dL and 948 mg/dL for placebo, 4-gi@md 2-gram groups, respectively. Twenty-five perodipatients in this trial were also
on background statin therapy. These patients heatgr median reduction in triglyceride levels, whicas also statistically significant.
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Importantly, the significant reduction in triglydges was not associated with a statistically sigaift increase in median LDL-C
compared to placebo at either dose (-2.3% for theas group and +5.2% for the 2-gram group [botN$}. In addition, there was a
statistically significant decrease in median nontHD (total cholesterol less so-called “good chatesl’) compared to placebo with both of 1
Vascepa treated groups (-18% for the 4-gram grpup(.001] and -8% for the 2-gram group [p < 0.05])

The MARINE trial results also included statistigadignificant reductions compared to placebo iresghvimportant lipid and
inflammatory biomarkers, including apo B (apolipotgin B) (8.5%), Lp-PLA2 (lipoprotein-phospholipaag) (13.6%), VLDL-C (very low-
density lipoprotein cholesterol) (28.6%), Total @Gsterol (16.3%), and hsCRP (high-sensitivity Cetiv@ protein) (36.0%) at the gram dose
For these achieved endpoints, p-values were <@i0thdst and <0.05 for all. Apo B (apolipoproteiniBbelieved to be a sensitive biomarker
of cardiovascular risk and may be a better predizt@cardiovascular risk than LDL-C. Lp-PLA2 is anzyme found in blood and
atherosclerotic plaque; high levels have been agdid in the development and progression of athknasis.

In the MARINE trial, patients treated with 4 graper day of Vascepa experienced a significant résluéd median placebo-adjusted
lipoprotein particle concentrations of total LDLdasmall LDL. When looking at lipoprotein particlercentrations and sizes as measured witt
nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy, Vascgmabs per day, compared with placebo, significargjuced median total LDL particle
count by 16.3% (p=0.0006), which is an importactdain atherogenesis. LDL particle count and apr®&important risk markers for the
prediction of cardiovascular events. Small LDL fmdetcount, which is a common risk factor for cardiscular events in patients with diabetes
was reduced by 25.6% (p<0.0001) compared with placéascepa 2 grams per day, compared with placgdpaificantly reduced median
small LDL particle count by 12.8% (p <0.05) andueed median total LDL particle count by 1.1% (NIS)L particle size did not change
significantly for the 2 or 4 grams doses.

Vascepa was well tolerated in the MARINE trial, lwé safety profile comparable to placebo and thene no treatment-related serious
adverse events observed. No significant changtstimg blood glucose, hemoglobin A1C, vital sigeiectrocardiograms, or liver or kidney
function were observed with either Vascepa dose.

Patients enrolled in the MARINE trial were giver thption to be treated with Vascepa for a periodpfo 40 weeks after their last dose
in the double-blind portion of the trial. Once peigants completed the randomized, double blind¢g@bo-controlled 12-week MARINE
registration trial, patients in all three randondizgoups (4 grams, 2 grams and placebo) were dftlre opportunity to participate in the open
label extension, or OLE, phase. Patients in the Ph&se received 4 grams per day of Vascepa foriadpef up to an additional 40 weeks. As
is typical of such extension phases, the OLE phasenot a controlled trial, as differentiated fridme randomized, double blind, placebo-
controlled 12-week MARINE registration trial. InglOLE phase, participants were not randomizedtay,eviascepa administration was open-
label (and thus not blinded), and no placebo gmeap maintained. Also, once patients entered irdthe phase, investigators were free to add
or modify other lipid-altering nutritional, lifesiy and drug treatment regimens. Given the laclanflomization, the open-label design, the
addition of various other lipid-altering drugs afthnges to doses of existing lipid-altering dragswell as the lack of placebo control, neither
we nor our independent advisors were able to dfisaey conclusions from the data. However, we hemecluded that the MARINE OLE
phase revealed no new safety signals after aniawlait40 weeks of exposure to Vascepa, whether atgee or in combination with other
lipid-altering regimens.

The ANCHOR Trial (basis for SNDA submitted to FDAesking expanded indication for Vascepa)

The ANCHOR trial was a multi-center, placebo-cola, randomized, double-blind, 12-week pivotaldstin patients with high
triglycerides (= 200 and <500 mg/dL) who were also receiving optadiztatin therapy. Patients were randomized irmgethrms for treatment
with Vascepa 4 gram/day, 2 gram/day or
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placebo. Patient enrollment in this trial begadanuary 2010, and enrollment and randomizationcoasgpleted in February 2011 at 702
patients. The primary endpoint in the trial was pieecentage change in triglyceride level from basetompared to placebo after 12 weeks of
treatment.

In April 2011, we reported tofire results from the ANCHOR trial. The ANCHOR friaet its primary endpoint at doses of 4 grams2
grams per day with median placeddjusted reductions in triglyceride levels of 21.6860.0001 value) for 4 grams and 10.1% (p=0.00052
grams. The median baseline triglyceride levels v@&@mg/dL, 265 mg/dL and 254 mg/dL for the patgmiups treated with placebo, 4 grams
and 2 grams of Vascepa per day, respectively. hb/sis of subgroups by baseline triglyceride kestshowed that higher baseline
triglycerides resulted in greater triglyceride retions.

One of the trial’'s secondary endpoints was to desirate a lack of elevation in LDGC; the primary target of cholesterol lowering thpst:
The trial’s non-inferiority criterion for LDL-C wamet at both Vascepa doses. The upper confidenasdaoies for both doses were below the
pre-specified +6% LDL-C threshold limit. At the 4agn dose the upper confidence boundary was beloov(z 7%) and at the @ram dose tt
upper confidence boundary was close to zero (0.5%)the 4 grams per day group, LDL-C decreasedifgigntly by 6.2% from baseline
versus placebo, demonstrating superiority overgtlaqdp=0.0067). For the 2-gram group, LDL-C deaddsy 3.6% from baseline versus
placebo (p=0.0867), which is not a statisticallyn#ficant decrease.

Other secondary efficacy endpoints included theiameglacebo-adjusted percent change in non-higlsitielipoprotein cholesterol (non-
HDL-C), apolipoprotein B (apo B), and lipoproteissaciated phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2). The 4-grasedeas associated with statistically
significant reductions in non-HDL-C (13.6%, p<0.a90apo B (9.3%, p<0.0001), Lp-PLA2 (19%, p<0.00adyl high-sensitivity C-reactive
protein (hsCRP) (22%, p<0.001), at week 12 comptrgdiacebo. In addition to the previously reporfabrable lipid effects of Vascepa on
hypertriglyceridemic patients in the MARINE and ANOR studies, a recently published analysis of tistsgies showed that the Vascepa 4-
gram daily dose also significantly decreased les&the inflammatory marker oxidized low-densitgdprotein relative to placebo.

Vascepa was well tolerated in the ANCHOR trial vateafety profile comparable to placebo and thenewo treatment-related serious
adverse events observed. No significant changtssting blood glucose, hemoglobin AL1C, vital sigeigctrocardiograms, or liver or kidney
function were observed with either Vascepa dose.

We have a pending sNDA with the FDA that seeks i@y approval of Vascepa for use in the ANCHORdaation. On October 16,
2013, the FDA convened an advisory committee teevewur SNDA. This advisory committee was not askgdhe FDA to evaluate whether
Vascepa is effective in lowering triglycerides e tstudied population, the ANCHOR indication ascHfjgl in the SNDA. Rather, the advisory
panel was asked whether Vascepa has been demeddtramprove cardiovascular outcomes or whethpraal of the ANCHOR indication
should wait for successful completion of the REDUITEtudy, the first prospective study of cardiomalar outcomes in patients who have
high triglyceride levels despite statin therapye Huvisory committee voted 9 to 2 against recomingrabproval of the ANCHOR indication
based on information presented at the meeting FD¥e considers the recommendation of advisory conemd, but final decisions on the
approval of new drug applications are made by DA.F

The ANCHOR trial clinical study was conducted undrrSPA agreement with the FDA. The law governiRé &igreements requires t
if the results of the trial conducted under the SfAstantiate the hypothesis of the protocol cal/byethe SPA, the FDA must use the data
from the protocol as part of the primary basisdpproval of the product. A SPA agreement is nataantee of FDA approval of the related
new drug application. A SPA agreement is genetaliging upon the FDA except in limited circumstasicauch as if the FDA identifies a
substantial scientific issue essential to detenmgirsafety or efficacy of the drug after the studgibs that rises to the level of a public health
concern, or if the study sponsor fails to followe fbrotocol that was agreed upon with the FDA. Otobar 29, 2013, the FDA rescinded the
ANCHOR study SPA
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agreement because the FDA determined that a stibs&rientific issue essential to determining dfffectiveness of Vascepa in the studied
population was identified after testing began. Asais for this determination, the FDA communicated it determined that the cumulative
results from outcome studies of other triglycerid@ering drugs failed to support the hypothesid ¢haiglyceride-lowering drug significantly
reduces the risk for cardiovascular events amoeagdtpulation studied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, Ei2A stated that while information we
submitted supports testing the hypothesis that &@&sd grams/day versus placebo reduces major ade@mdiovascular events in statin-treatec
subjects with residually high triglyceride leveds, is being studied in the Vascepa REDUCE-IT caeatioular outcomes study, the FDA no
longer considers a change in serum triglycerideltesas sufficient to establish the effectiveness dfug intended to reduce cardiovascular risl
in subjects with serum triglyceride levels belowd50g/dL. In November 2013, we submitted to the Fbrequest for reconsideration of its
decision to rescind the ANCHOR SPA agreement. @Qoaky 17, 2014, we were notified by the FDA thatdes not intend to reinstate the
ANCHOR SPA agreement. Our plan is to continue alppgéhe rescission decision to successively higitkninistrative levels within the FDA
in accordance with FDA dispute resolution guidance.

Observed Efficacy of Ethyl-EPA

In Japan, ethyl-EPA is marketed under the prodaoienof Epadel by Mochida Pharmaceutical Co. amtisated for hyperlipidemia
and peripheral vascular disease. Clinical data flapan suggests that Epadel is effective in reduciglycerides. In addition, in an outcomes
study called the Japan EPA Lipid Intervention StumyJELIS study, which consisted of more than @8,patients followed over multiple
years, Epadel, when used in conjunction with stativas shown to reduce cardiovascular events byd@#pared to the use of statins alone
this study, cardiovascular events decreased byappately 53% compared to statins alone in the sublpatients with triglyceride levels af
150 mg/dL (average 269 mg/dL at entry) and HDL-© s#g/dL. Epadel has been approved and availabpgédscription in Japan for over a
decade. In 2013, the Japan Ministry of Health apgddEpadel for over-the-counter sales.

Observed Clinical Safety of Vascepa

Prior to commencing the MARINE and ANCHOR trialsg wonducted a pre-clinical program for Vascepduiting toxicology and
pharmacology studies. In addition, we previoushestigated Vascepa in central nervous system diseid several double-blind, placebo-
controlled studies, including Phase 3 trials in tihgton's disease. Over 1,000 patients have besadiwith Vascepa in these studies, with
over 100 receiving continuous treatment for a yeanore. In all studies performed to date, Vasdegmshown a favorable safety and
tolerability profile. In both the MARINE and ANCHORials, patients dosed with Vascepa demonstrasadety profile similar to placebo.
There were no treatment-related serious adversg®irethe MARINE study or in the ANCHOR study.the MARINE and ANCHOR trials,
the most commonly reported adverse reaction (imadde>-2% and greater than placebo) in Vascepa trgattients was arthralgia (joint pain)
(2.3% for Vascepa vs. 1.0% for placebo).

In addition to the MARINE and ANCHOR trials, we cplated a 28-day pharmacokinetic study in healtHymeers, a 26-week study to
evaluate the toxicity of Vascepa in transgenic naied multiple pharmacokinetic drug-drug interactitudies in healthy subjects in which we
evaluated the effect of Vascepa on certain commescpiption drugs. All findings from these studiesre consistent with our expectations anc
confirmed the overall safety profile of Vascepa.

The REDUCE-IT Study (currently ongoing cardiovas@r outcomes study)

In August 2011, we reached agreement with the FBA SPA for the design of the REDUCE-IT (Reductibardiovascular Events
with EPA—Intervention Trial) cardiovascular outcosrstudy. In May 2013, we amended the patient engoit criteria within the SPA
agreement with the FDA. An SPA is an evaluationth®/FDA of a protocol with the goal of reachingagreement that the Phase 3 trial
protocol design,

10



Table of Contents

clinical endpoints, and statistical analyses apepiable to support regulatory approval. The FDfeed that, based on the information we
submitted to the agency, the design and planndgsisaf the REDUCE-IT study adequately addresbedbjectives necessary to support a
regulatory submission. An SPA is generally bindipgn the FDA unlesa substantial scientific issue essential to detgirmgisafety or efficac
of the drug is identified after the testing begiM&reover, any change to a study protocol can idatd an SPA.

In September 2011, we engaged a clinical reseaganzation, or CRO, and began initial trial anidichl site preparation for REDUCE-
IT. In December 2011, we announced that the fiatiept was dosed in the study. The study duradafependent on the rate of clinical events
in the study which rate may be affected by the nemald patients enrolled in the study and the epidigy of the patients enrolled in the
study. Based on preliminary assumptions for patembliment rates and the clinical profile of thesdients, it is assumed that fewer than
10,000 patients will be required to complete thelgtwith an optimized target in which the studgdsnpleted in approximately six years of
8,000 patients.

The REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluate thieatl of Vascepa in reducing major cardiovascwanés in an at-risk patient
population also receiving statin therapy. REDUCHS & multi-center, prospective, randomized, doddiiled, placebo-controlled, parallel-
group study to evaluate the effectiveness of Vascap an add-on to statin therapy, in reducingifiigor cardiovascular events in an at-risk
patient population compared to statin therapy aldhe control arm of the study is comprised of @@t on optimized statin therapy plus
placebo. The active arm of the study is compridgahtients on optimized statin therapy plus Vascégiasubjects enrolled in the study will
have elevated triglyceride levels and either corphaart disease or risk factors for coronary heésease. This study is being conducted
internationally.

We currently expect that final positive resultsttd REDUCE-IT study will be required for FDA appebwf Vascepa for the ANCHOR
indication based on communications from the FDAsé&&hon the results of REDUCE-IT, we may seek aatthtiindications for Vascepa
beyond the indication studied in the ANCHOR and MNR trials such as a potential indication for pnetien of cardiovascular events,
although there can be no assurance as to whetheeghlts of the study will support any such inticca

New Lipid Compounds and other Preclinical Programs

We are also considering development of other nereation compounds based on our internal lipieree expertise, including potential
combination and derivative therapies.

In August 2013, we completed dosing of AMR102 x&di dose combination of Vascepa and a leadinghgtadiduct. The study is a
randomized, open-label, single-dose, 4-way crogs-study to continue testing of the relative biokmlity of AMR102 capsules, Vascepa
capsules with the selected statin taken conconytavidscepa taken alone and the selected statentalone. The results of this study support
the feasibility of AMR102. We have suspended addal development of AMR102 pending resolution & ANCHOR sNDA with the FDA.

If we do not receive FDA approval for the ANCHORIiication, we may discontinue development of AMR102.

We believe that Vascepa and other lipid-based caitipps may have an impact on a number of biolddarztors in the body such as
anti-inflammatory mechanisms, cell membrane comjmosand plasticity, triglyceride levels and regida of glucose metabolism. Currently
all other clinic developments are in formulativepoe-clinical stages.

Manufacturing and Supply for Vascepa

We currently use third party manufacturers and beggpto manufacture clinical and commercial quaetiof ethyl-EPA, which
constitutes the only active pharmaceutical ingnelier API, within Vascepa, to encapsulate, battld package Vascepa and to maintain
inventory of Vascepa. The FDA approval of Vascepa i
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July 2012 included the approval of one API manufaat Nisshin Pharma, Inc., or Nisshin, and one édiapsulator, Patheon, Inc., or Path
(formerly Banner Pharmacaps Europe BV). NisshinRatheon are the APl manufacturer and API encajasutaspectively, with which we
have had the longest working relationships. Thagilities were inspected by regulatory authoriieart of the process that led to the FDA’s
July 2012 approval of Vascepa, and we believettteafacilities are qualified to continue to suppaut commercialization of Vascepa.

We currently rely exclusively on Patheon for theapsulation of Vascepa. We have encapsulation ewgets with two other commercial
API encapsulators. These companies are workingadifg their processes and to prove that the Vasogpsules they produce meet the same
quality standards as the capsules produced by étathe

In addition to purchasing API from Nisshin, we halgo purchased APl from Chemport, Inc., or ChempomDecember 2012, we
announced our submissions of two SNDAs to the FBe&kimg approval for Chemport and BASF (formerly &g Limited) as additional
Vascepa API suppliers. In April 2013, the FDA ap® our SNDAs covering Chemport and BASF as addifivascepa API suppliers. BASF
is working to complete validation of their facilifgr the manufacture of Vascepa. On December 303 20e issued a notice of termination of
our API agreement to BASF as a result of BASF's-nompliance with the terms of such agreement. BAS#Htitled to a 60-day cure period.
In December 2012, we announced an agreement wiglx@dasive consortium of companies led by Slannitwarmaceutical, Inc., or Slanmhor.
Slanmhor was spun-out from Ocean Nutrition Canad@NC, prior to the May 2012 acquisition of ONC Rgyal DSM N.V. We are working
with Slanmhor to pursue FDA approval for this sigaplo manufacture Vascepa APl and we submitted@4sin August 2013. Slanmhor is
working to complete construction and validatiorthedir facility for the manufacture of Vascepa. Thgulatory approval and facility validation
of Slanmhor as an API supplier would give us aritaaithl qualified worldwide supplier of API for Vaspa to utilize in supporting the global
commercialization of Vascepa.

The API material that constitutes ethyl-EPA is &urally occurring substance which is sourced framalijied producers of fish oil. A
limited number of other manufacturers have theitgbknow-how and suitable facilities to producby#EPA to a similar level of purity.
Among the conditions for FDA approval of a pharmaimal product is the requirement that the manuii@ets quality control and
manufacturing procedures conform to current GoodilMicturing Practice, or cGMP, which must be fokkmhat all times. The FDA typically
inspects manufacturing facilities before regulatapproval of a product candidate, such as Vas@mhpn an ongoing basis. In complying \
cGMP regulations, pharmaceutical manufacturers exgénd resources and time to ensure compliantepndiduct specifications as well as
production, record keeping, quality control, repat and other requirements.

Our agreements with our API suppliers include mimimpurchase commitments. During 2013 we fully rhetaggregate minimum
purchase requirements for metric tons of API coradiin our supply agreements with Nisshin and Cletnjg¢/e may purchase more than the
minimum requirements. We have not purchased anyreengial supply from BASF as they have not complébedvalidation of their
manufacturing process. If the manufacturing proéesalidated, there will be annual minimum purahasmmitments under that supply
agreement. If the sNDA for Slanhmor is approved it manufacturing facility is validated, therdlwe annual minimum purchase
commitments under that supply agreement. Certaihasfe agreements also contain provisions undetwthé cost of supply to us decrease
we purchase increased product volume and provisioder which the cost of supply to us changes baseddcreases or decreases in certain
production costs. Certain of these agreementscalstemplate phased capacity expansion aimed atragyesufficient capacity to meet
anticipated demand for API material for Vascepacdkdingly, certain of these suppliers are curremiyking to expand their production
capabilities to manufacture the API for VascepaesSEnAPI suppliers are sélfnding these expansion and qualification plan& wiantributions
from Amarin. There can be no assurance that adaitisuppliers will fully fund the capital costsaifr engagement or that these additional
suppliers will successfully qualify with the FDAh&se contracts contain provisions for making lepagments to these suppliers in lieu of
purchasing the full minimum purchase requirements.
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Our Marketing Plans

In January 2013, we commenced our full commeraiahth of Vascepa in the United States for useearMARINE indication. In
preparation for our commercial launch, we hired athed a direct sales force of approximately 23%s representatives. In October 2013, w
reduced our number of sales representatives t@zaippately 130, excluding sales management, in thiged States to focus on the sales
territories that we believe have demonstrated thatgst potential for Vascepa sales growth. We mawrket Vascepa in the United States
through our sales force of approximately 150 sptegessionals and managers. We also employ vanauketing and medical affairs persor
to support our commercialization of Vascepa. Weantty target clinicians who are top prescribersipél regulating therapies. Our current
sales team covers clinicians responsible for grelss 90% of Vascepa prescriptions fulfilled inl30

Historical Product Development Programs

Prior to October 2009, the majority of Amarin’s guzt development activities were focused on cemealous system and other non-
cardiovascular disorders. In October 2009, we cetegla private placement resulting in gross praee&#70.0 million. These proceeds were
used primarily to fund the MARINE and ANCHOR stuslfer Vascepa. In connection with this private plaent, our board of directors and
executive management changed significantly, andesearch and development activities, as well eaioeexecutive functions, were
consolidated from multiple offices to our reseaacil development headquarters in the United Stistesnnection with these changes, we re-
focused our efforts on developing improved treattséor cardiovascular disease and ceased develdmheah product candidates outside of
our cardiovascular disease focus. In particulas,decision resulted in our ceasing all direct d@weent of product candidates on central
nervous system disorders, which included produatlickates for the treatment of Huntington’s diseddgasthenia gravis and Parkinson’s
disease.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industrieshaykely competitive. There are many pharmaceutoahpanies, biotechnology
companies, public and private universities andareeorganizations actively engaged in the reseandhdevelopment of products that may be
similar to our products. It is probable that thenfaer of companies seeking to develop products laedpies similar to our products will
increase. Many of these and other existing or fi@lecompetitors have substantially greater finahdechnical and human resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manutaand market products. These companies may deweahlbjintroduce products and
processes competitive with or superior to oursaddition, other technologies or products may bestiged that have an entirely different
approach or means of accomplishing the intendepgses of our products, which might render our tetdgy and products noncompetitive or
obsolete.

Our potential competitors both in the United Stated Europe include large, well-established phaeutical companies, specialty
pharmaceutical sales and marketing companies,@aladized cardiovascular treatment companies. & hempanies include GlaxoSmithKli
plc, which currently markets Lovaza, a prescriptomty omega-3 fatty acid indicated for patientshagevere hypertriglyceridemia, and
AbbVie, Inc., which currently markets Tricor andlipix for the treatment of severe hypertriglycegidia and mixed dyslipidemia and Niaspan
which is primarily used to raise HDL-C, but is alsged to lower triglycerides. In March 2011, Pram®ioPharma Norge AS, now owned by
BASF, which owns the patents for Lovaza, enteréal &m agreement with Apotex Corp. and Apotex lacApotex, to settle their patent
litigation in the United States related to LovaRarsuant to the terms of the settlement agreerRemmova/BASF granted Apotex a license to
enter the United States market with a generic garsf Lovaza in the first quarter of 2015, or earliepending on circumstances. In addition,
Pronova /BASF recently lost an appeal in its paiginingement lawsuit against Teva Pharmaceutici# Inc., or Teva, and Par
Pharmaceutical Inc., or Par, which would have pméae Teva and Par from launching generic versiéh®waza. Apotex, Teva, and Par must
obtain FDA approval of generic versions of Lovaeéobe they are permitted to sell such productfién t
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United States. Other companies are also seekimgrazluce generic versions of Lovaza. Each of theesepetitors has greater resources than
we do, including financial, product developmentrketing, personnel and other resources.

In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioaiganies that are developing products that, if aggmt and marketed, would compete
with Vascepa. These include a free fatty acid foframega3 (comprised of 55% EPA and 20% DHA) developed bbytiera Pharmaceutica
now owned by AstraZeneca PLC. In July 2013, an Nis& submitted to the FDA seeking approval of thiggydcandidate for the treatment of
severe hypertriglyceridemia. AstraZeneca has artexiithat the scheduled goal date for FDA approf/as groduct is May 5, 2014. We
expect AstraZeneca will utilize its substantial enercial resources to market Omthera Pharmaceutmalduct, if approved. We also
understand that another company, Trygg Pharma AScbmpleted a Phase 3 study of an omega-3 basgdaindidate for severe
hypertriglyceridemia, but we do not believe Trygstannounced results from that study. It is posshat Trygg Pharma has filed for FDA
approval of its product candidate. In addition, stc®harma, a subsidiary of Neptune Technologi&desources Inc., announced in late 2
that it intends to conduct a Phase 3 clinical progto assess the safety and efficacy of its omggasription drug candidate derived from
krill oil for the treatment of hypertriglyceridemit/e believe Catabasis Pharmaceuticals, or CagtRasolvyx Pharmaceuticals, or Resolvyx,
and Sancilio & Company, or Sancilio, are also depiglg potential treatments for hypertriglyceriderbésed on omegafatty acids and, to ol
knowledge, Catabasis initiated a Phase 2 cliniclaf its product in December 2013; Resolvyx’smapund remains in Phase 1 clinical
testing; and Sancilio has recently filed an In\gibnal New Drug Application (IND) and is prepayito commence Phase 3 clinical trials. In
addition, we are aware that Matinas BioPharma,ifndeveloping an omega-3-based therapeutic fotréament of severe
hypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia. MatrBioPharma, Inc. has reported that it is prepairge an IND with the FDA and to
conduct a human study in the first half of 201# Pharmaceuticals announced favorable Phase Bsre$lSIS-APOCIIIr, a drug candidate
administered through weekly subcutaneous injectiongatients with high triglycerides and type aluktes and in patients with moderate to
severe high triglycerides. Finally, Madrigal Phaceaticals has completed Phase 1 clinical testind®f.-3196 for the treatment of high
triglycerides and various lipid parameters in page

Vascepa also faces competition from dietary suppigroompanies marketing omegaroducts as nutritional supplements. We cann
sure physicians and pharmacists will view the FOpiraved prescription-only status, EPA-only purifMascepa and stringent regulatory
oversight as significant advantages versus omegigpglements.

In addition, we expect that generic drug companidisseek to challenge the validity and enforceigpibf our patents and work toward
FDA approval for generic versions of Vascepa.

Regulatory Matters
Government Regulation and Regulatory Matters

Any product development activities related to Vaescer products that we may develop or acquireérfature will be subject to extens
regulation by various government authorities, idaohg the FDA and comparable regulatory authoritiesther countries, which regulate the
design, research, clinical and non-clinical develept, testing, manufacturing, storage, distributioport, export, labeling, advertising and
marketing of pharmaceutical products and devicesnie®lly, before a new drug can be sold, considedta demonstrating its quality, safety
and efficacy must be obtained, organized into mé&drspecific to each regulatory authority, subrdif@ review and approved by the regula
authority. The data is generated in two distinated@pment stages: pre-clinical and clinical. Owrgdr must be approved by the FDA through
the NDA process before they may be legally markatate United States. For new chemical entities,dre-clinical development stage
generally involves synthesizing the active compongeveloping the formulation and determining thennfacturing process, as well as
carrying out non-human toxicology, pharmacology dnay metabolism studies which support subsequimtal testing.
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The clinical stage of development can generallgibiled into Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 climiatd. In Phase 1, generally, a small
number of healthy volunteers are initially exposed single dose and then multiple doses of thdymibcandidate. The primary purpose of
these studies is to assess the metabolism, phalogacaction, side effect tolerability and safefittee drug. Phase 2 trials typically involve
studies in disease-affected patients to deterrhi@eldse required to produce the desired benefitheAsame time, safety and further
pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic informatiarolfected. Phase 3 trials generally involve largemhbers of patients at multiple sites, in
multiple countries and are designed to providepikietal data necessary to demonstrate the effews®of the product for its intended use, its
safety in use, and may include comparisons withglla and/or other comparator treatments. The durafitreatment is often extended to
mimic the actual use of a product during marketing.

United States Drug Development

In the United States, the process of obtainingleggry approvals and the subsequent complianceapifitopriate federal, state, local,
foreign statutes and regulations require the exjpemedof substantial time and financial resourd&slure to comply with the applicable United
States requirements at any time during the prodere¢lopment process, approval process or afteoaphmay subject an applicant to
administrative or judicial sanctions. These samatioould include the FDA's refusal to approve pegdipplications, withdrawal of an
approval, a clinical hold, warning letters, prodrextalls, product seizures, total or partial susfemof production or distribution injunctions,
fines, refusals of government contracts, restitytdisgorgement, or civil or criminal penalties.yAagency or judicial enforcement action coulc
have a material adverse effect on us.

Prior to the start of human clinical studies fareav drug in the United States, preclinical labaraend animal tests are often performed
under the FDA's Good Laboratory Practices regutegjmr GLP, and an investigational new drug apptoaor IND, is filed with the FDA.
Similar filings are required in other countrieswever, data requirements and other information egddr a complete submission may diffe
other countries. The amount of data that must peled in the IND depends on the phase of the stBtigse 1 studies typically require less
data than larger Phase 3 studies. A clinical plastrhe submitted to the FDA prior to commenceméatdinical trial. If the FDA has
concerns about the clinical plan or the safetyhefgiroposed studies, they may suspend or termtimatgtudy at any time. Studies must be
conducted in accordance with good clinical practiod regular reporting of study progress and angi@e experiences is required. Studies ar
also subject to review by independent institutice&iew boards, or IRBs, responsible for oversesingdies at particular sites and protecting
human research study subjects. An independent IRBatso suspend or terminate a study once initiated

NDA and FDA Review Process

Following trial completion, trial data is analyzeddetermine safety and efficacy. Data is therdfiléth the FDA in an NDA along with
proposed labeling for the product and informatibowt the manufacturing and testing processes anilitiéss that will be used to ensure prod
quality. The NDA must contain proof of safety, pyripotency and efficacy, which entails extensive-glinical and clinical testing. FDA
approval of an NDA must be obtained before marketirug in the United States.

The FDA will likely re-analyze the clinical trialada, which could result in extensive discussiorterben the FDA and us during the
review process. The review and evaluation of apfibos by the FDA is extensive and time consumimd)ray take longer than originally
planned to complete. The FDA may conduct a pre@agrinspection of the manufacturing facilities fbe new product to determine whether
they comply with current good manufacturing pragtiequirements and may also audit data from cligiod pre-clinical trials.

There is no assurance that the FDA will ultimatghprove a drug product for marketing in the Uniggates. Even if future indications
Vascepa are approved, the FDA's review will be tggind we may encounter significant difficultiescosts during the review process. After
approving any drug product, the
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FDA may require post-marketing testing and suraeite to monitor the effects of approved producis miy place conditions on approvals
including potential requirements or risk managenpdauts that could restrict the commercial promatitigtribution, prescription or dispensing
of products. Product approvals may be withdrawmfor-compliance with regulatory standards or if problevasur following initial marketing

European Union Drug Development

In the European Union, or E.U., our future produntsy also be subject to extensive regulatory reguénts. As in the United States, the
marketing of medicinal products has been subjetitegranting of marketing authorizations by retpfgagencies. Particular emphasis is alsc
being placed on more sophisticated and faster dures for reporting of adverse events to the coempetuthorities.

Similar to the United States, the various phasgs®flinical and clinical research in the E.U. subject to significant regulatory
controls. Although the regulatory controls on aadiresearch are currently undergoing a harmooizgiocess following the adoption of the
Clinical Trials Directive 2001/20/EC, there areramtly significant variations in the member stagimes. However, all member states
currently require independent institutional revieaard approval of interventional clinical trials itW'the exception of U.K. Phase 1 studies in
healthy volunteers, all clinical trials requirelait prior governmental notification or approval. $lcegulators also require the submission of
adverse event reports during a study and a copiyedinal study report.

European Union Drug Review and Approval

In the E.U., approval of new medicinal products barobtained through one of three processes: tlieaihecognition procedure, the
centralized procedure and the decentralized praeedu

Mutual Recognition Procedure

An applicant submits an application in one E.U. rhenstate, known as the reference member state thaadeference member state has
granted the marketing authorization, the applicaay choose to submit applications in other conakmember states, requesting them to
mutually recognize the marketing authorizationsadly granted. Under this mutual recognition pracasthorities in other concerned member
states have 55 days to raise objections, which thastbe resolved by discussions among the conteneenber states, the reference member
state and the applicant within 90 days of the conmement of the mutual recognition procedure. If dispgreement remains, all
considerations by authorities in the concerned nerstates are suspended and the disagreementligegtthrough an arbitration process. The
mutual recognition procedure results in separatiema marketing authorizations in the referencenber state and each concerned member
state.

Centralized Procedure

This procedure is currently mandatory for produeeeloped by means of a biotechnological procedational for new active
substances and other “innovative medicinal prodwitts novel characteristics.” Under this procedwue application is submitted to the
European Agency for the Evaluation of Medical PduTwo European Union member states are appoiatednduct an initial evaluation of
each application. These countries each preparssassment report that is then used as the baaisaéntific opinion of the Committee on
Proprietary Medical Products. If this opinion isdaable, it is sent to the European Commissiongtvidirafts a decision. After consulting with
the member states, the European Commission ad@gtsision and grants a marketing authorizationctvig valid throughout the European
Union and confers the same rights and obligatioresaich of the member states as a marketing augtiorizgranted by that member state.

Decentralized Procedure

The most recently introduced of the three procefkseasbtaining approval of new medicinal processebe E.U., the decentralized
procedure is similar to the mutual recognition jgaere described above, but with
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differences in the timing that key documents amvjoled to concerned member states by the referaeceber state, the overall timing of the
procedure and the possibility of “clock stops” dgrthe procedure, among others.

Post-Marketing Requirements

Following approval of a new product, a pharmacalitompany generally must engage in numerous spactfnitoring and
recordkeeping activities and continue to submitquic and other reports to the applicable reguiatarencies, including any cases of adverse
events and appropriate quality control records. fifcations or enhancements to the products or iabalr changes of site of manufacture are
often subject to the approval of the FDA and otlegulators, which may or may not be received or neaylt in a lengthy review process.

Prescription drug advertising is subject to fedestdte and foreign regulations. In the Unitedeatathe FDA regulates prescription drug
promotion, including direct-to-consumer advertisiRgescription drug promotional materials must tensitted to the FDA in conjunction with
their first use. Any distribution of prescriptionud) products and pharmaceutical samples must cowifiythe U.S. Prescription Drug
Marketing Act, or the PDMA, a part of the U.S. Ferdd-ood, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

In the United States, once a product is approdsdnanufacture is subject to comprehensive andraong regulation by the FDA. The
FDA regulations require that products be manufactun specific approved facilities and in accoraawith current good manufacturing
practices, or cGMPs, and NDA holders must listrtpebducts and register their manufacturing essablients with the FDA. These regulations
also impose certain organizational, proceduraldomimentation requirements with respect to manufaag and quality assurance activities.
NDA holders using contract manufacturers, laboresoor packagers are responsible for the seleatidnrmonitoring of qualified firms, and,
certain circumstances, qualified suppliers to tHeses. These firms and, where applicable, theppdiers are subject to inspections by the F
at any time, and the discovery of violative coratis, including failure to conform to cGMPs, couddult in enforcement actions that interrupt
the operation of any such facilities or the abitiydistribute products manufactured, processadsied by them.

Federal and State Fraud and Abuse Laws

In addition to FDA restrictions on marketing of phmaceutical products, several other types of statefederal laws restrict certain
marketing practices in the biopharmaceutical ingu§these laws include anti-kickback statutes abskf claims statutes.

The federal anti-kickback statute prohibits, amotiger things, knowingly and willfully offering, pag, soliciting, or receiving
remuneration to induce or in return for a refeatathe purchasing, leasing, ordering, or arran@mgr recommending the purchase, lease, or
order of any healthcare facility, item or servieanbursable under Medicare, Medicaid, or other faldeealthcare programs. This statute has
been interpreted to apply to arrangements betwkampaceutical manufacturers on one hand and pbessyipurchasers, and formulary
managers on the other. Although there are a nuoflstatutory exemptions and regulatory safe harportecting certain activities from
prosecution, the exemptions and safe harbors avendnarrowly, and practices that involve remuneraintended to induce prescribing,
purchases, or recommendations may be subjectutirscif they do not qualify for an exemption ofsdarbor. Our practices may not in all
cases meet all of the criteria for safe harborgmtidn from anti-kickback liability.

Federal false claims laws prohibit any person fikgrawingly presenting, or causing to be presentddise claim for payment to the
federal government, or knowingly making or usingcausing to be made or used, a false statemeyat ta false claim paid. Recently, several
pharmaceutical and other healthcare companies e prosecuted under these laws for allegedlyigirayfree product to customers with
expectation that the customers would bill federabpams for the product. Other companies have pessecuted for causing false
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claims to be submitted because of the company’&atiag of the product for unapproved, and thus rembursable, uses. The majority of
states also have statutes or regulations simildredederal anti-kickback law and false claimsdawhich apply to items and services
reimbursed under Medicaid and other state program# several states, apply regardless of themp&anctions under these federal and state
laws may include civil monetary penalties, exclasid a manufacturer’s products from reimbursemeitken government programs, criminal
fines, and imprisonment.

Because of the breadth of these laws and the naessof the safe harbors, it is possible that safer business activities could be
subject to challenge under one or more of such.l®wesh a challenge could have a material advefsete our business, financial condition
and results of operations. As a company marketmg@A-approved product in the United States, owarafions may be directly, or indirectly
through our customers, subject to various fedaerdlsaate fraud and abuse laws, including, withiitdtion, the federal anti-kickback statute.
These laws may impact, among other things, ourqeegp sales, marketing and education programs.diti@t we may be subject to patient
privacy regulation by both the federal governmant the states in which we conduct our business.las that may affect our ability to
operate include:

» the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acaability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which created neederal criminal statutes that
prohibit executing a scheme to defraud any healéhlbanefit program and making false statementsimgléo healthcare matter

» HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Techgglfor Economic and Clinical Health Act, or HITEC&Nd its
implementing regulations, which imposes certairunegnents relating to the privacy, security andgraission of individually
identifiable health information; ar

» state law equivalents of each of the above fedavad, such as anti-kickback and false claims lalwgElwmay apply to items or
services reimbursed by any third-party payer, idiclg commercial insurers, and state laws goverthiegprivacy and security of
health information in certain circumstances, mahwytiich differ from each other in significant waged may not have the same
effect, thus complicating compliance effol

If our operations are found to be in violation afaf the laws described above or any other govemnial regulations that apply to us, we
may be subject to penalties, including civil anidninal penalties, damages, fines and the curtaitraerestructuring of our operations, any of
which could adversely affect our ability to operate business and our results of operations.

In the United States and foreign jurisdictionsyé¢hieave been a number of legislative and regulatbaynges to the healthcare system tha
could affect our future results of operations. &mtigular, there have been and continue to be @euwf initiatives at the United States federal
and state levels that seek to reduce healthcats. dds Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvemend Biodernization Act of 2003, or the
MMA, imposed new requirements for the distributeomd pricing of prescription drugs for Medicare WHemaries. Under Part D, Medicare
beneficiaries may enroll in prescription drug plaffered by private entities which will provide @nage of outpatient prescription drugs. Part
D plans include both stand-alone prescription dregefit plans and prescription drug coverage agpplement to Medicare Advantage plans.
Unlike Medicare Part A and B, Part D coverage isstandardized. Part D prescription drug plan spanare not required to pay for all cove
Part D drugs, and each drug plan can develop itsadrwg formulary that identifies which drugs it Wdbver and at what tier or level. However,
Part D prescription drug formularies must includegs$ within each therapeutic category and clag®weéred Part D drugs, though not
necessarily all the drugs in each category or ckasg formulary used by a Part D prescription dplan must be developed and reviewed by a
pharmacy and therapeutic committee. Government payfor some of the costs of prescription drugs magease demand for our products
which we receive marketing approval. However, aagatiated prices for our products covered by a Pamtescription drug plan will likely be
lower than the prices we might otherwise obtainrddwer, while the MMA applies only to drug benefits Medicare beneficiaries, private
payers often follow Medicare coverage policy angrpant limitations in setting their own payment gatAny reduction in payment that results
from the MMA may result in a similar reduction iaypments from non-governmental payers.
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The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 28@%ides funding for the federal government to careghe effectiveness of
different treatments for the same iliness. A plantfhe research will be developed by the Departroéhkealth and Human Services, the Age
for Healthcare Research and Quality and the Natims#tutes for Health, and periodic reports oa #tatus of the research and related
expenditures will be made to Congress. Althoughréiselts of the comparative effectiveness studiesiat intended to mandate coverage
policies for public or private payers, it is notat what effect, if any, the research will havetmsales of any product, if any such product or
the condition that it is intended to treat is thbject of a study. It is also possible that comipegzeffectiveness research demonstrating benefi
in a competitor’s product could adversely affeet slales of our product candidates. If third-pagtygrs do not consider our products to be cos
effective compared to other available therapiesy thay not cover our products as a benefit undsr gtans or, if they do, the level of paym
may not be sufficient to allow us to sell our protfuon a profitable basis.

Most recently, in March 2010 the Patient Protectiad Affordable Care Act, as amended by the He@dtte and Education
Reconciliation Act, or collectively the PPACA, wasacted, which includes measures to significarithnge the way healthcare is financed by
both governmental and private insurers. Among tlipions of the PPACA of greatest importance ®gharmaceutical and biotechnology
industry are the following:

» an annual, nondeductible fee on any entity thatufatures or imports certain branded prescriptivgs and biologic products,
apportioned among these entities according to tharket share in certain government healthcarerprog, that began in 201

* new requirements to report certain financial areangnts with physicians and others, including répgrany “transfer of value”
made or distributed to prescribers and other heaféhproviders and reporting any investment interesld by physicians and their
immediate family member:

* alicensure framework for follc-on biologic products

* anew Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Indiituteersee, identify priorities in, and conduct pamative clinical effectiveness
research, along with funding for such resea

» creation of the Independent Payment Advisory Badnith, beginning in 2014, will have authority t@oenmend certain changes
the Medicare program that could result in reduca¢ghpents for prescription drugs and those recomntamgacould have the effect
of law even if Congress does not act on the recamdai#ons; ant

» establishment of a Center for Medicare and Meditaidvation at the Centers for Medicare & Medic&gtvices to test innovative
payment and service delivery models to lower Madicand Medicaid spending, potentially includinggmméption drug spending
that began on January 1, 20

Many of the details regarding the implementatiothef PPACA are yet to be determined, and at tirig tit remains unclear the full effe
that the PPACA would have on our business.

Other Regulatory Matters

Manufacturing, sales, promotion, and other ac#sifiollowing product approval are also subjecegutation by numerous regulatory
authorities in addition to the FDA, including, imetUnited States, the Centers for Medicare & Madi&ervices, other divisions of the
Department of Health and Human Services, the Dmfgri€ement Administration, the Consumer ProduceaCommission, the Federal Tr:
Commission, the Occupational Safety & Health Adstirsition, the Environmental Protection Agency, atade and local governments. Sales,
marketing and scientific/leducational programs nalst comply with the U.S. Medicare-Medicaid Antalid and Abuse Act and similar state
laws. Pricing and rebate programs must comply thi¢hMedicaid rebate requirements of the U.S. OmmBwdget Reconciliation Act of 1990.
If products are made available to authorized usktise Federal Supply Schedule of the General Besvidministration, additional laws and
requirements apply. The handling of any controfialistances must comply with the U.S. Controlled

19



Table of Contents

Substances Act and Controlled Substances ImporEapdrt Act. Products must meet applicable chilsigtant packaging requirements under
the U.S. Poison Prevention Packaging Act. Manufatgy sales, promotion and other activities are gistentially subject to federal and state
consumer protection and unfair competition laws.

The distribution of pharmaceutical products is sabjo additional requirements and regulationdutling extensive record-keeping,
licensing, storage and security requirements irgdrid prevent the unauthorized sale of pharmaadygioducts.

The failure to comply with regulatory requiremestmjects firms to possible legal or regulatory@ttiDepending on the circumstances,
failure to meet applicable regulatory requiremesats result in criminal prosecution, fines or otpenalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of
products, total or partial suspension of productenial or withdrawal of product approvals, ol to allow a firm to enter into supply
contracts, including government contracts. In addjteven if a firm complies with FDA and other vdg@ments, new information regarding the
safety or effectiveness of a product could leadRbBA to modify or withdraw a product approval. Pitiitions or restrictions on sales or
withdrawal of future products marketed by us caulaterially affect our business in an adverse way.

Changes in regulations or statutes or the intesfiogt of existing regulations could impact our Imesis in the future by requiring, for
example: (i) changes to our manufacturing arrangesnéi) additions or modifications to product &img; (iii) the recall or discontinuation of
our products; or (iv) additional record-keepingurgments. If any such changes were to be impdkeg,could adversely affect the operation
of our business.

FDA Marketing Exclusivity

The Food Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, as ameryeithe Drug Price Competition and Patent Term étatibn Act of 1984, as
amended, or the Hatch-Waxman Amendments, provilesérket exclusivity provisions that can help pobtthe exclusivity of new drugs by
delaying the acceptance and final approval of gedampetitive drug applications. The FDCA providesve-year period of non-patent
marketing exclusivity within the United States e ffirst applicant to gain approval of an NDA fonew chemical entity, or NCE. A drug is an
NCE if the FDA has not previously approved any ottew drug containing the same active moiety, wigdne molecule or ion responsible
the action of the drug substance. During the exdlygeriod, the FDA may not accept for reviewasbreviated new drug application, or
ANDA, or a 505(b)(2) NDA submitted by another compdor another version of such drug where the @ppli does not own or have a legal
right of reference to all the data required forrappl. However, an application may be submittedrdfiur years if it contains a certification of
patent invalidity or non-infringement.

The FDCA also provides three years of marketinduskeity for an NDA, 505(b)(2) NDA or supplement am existing NDA if new
clinical investigations, other than bioavailabilgtudies, that were conducted or sponsored bygpkcant are deemed by the FDA to be
essential to the approval of the application (faraeple, for new indications, dosages, or strengtl@ existing drug). Such three-year
exclusivity protection would preclude the FDA frapproving a marketing application for a duplicate @ioneer drug, a product candidate
that the FDA views as having the same conditiorepgiroval as the pioneer drug (for example, theesiafication and/or other conditions of
use), or a 505(b)(2) NDA submitted to the FDA wtie pioneer drug as the reference product, foriagef three years from the date of FDA
approval, although the FDA may accept and commesdgew of such applications during the exclusiyisriod. This three-year exclusivity
covers only the conditions associated with the olmical investigations and does not prohibit ti@Afrom approving ANDASs for drugs
containing the original active agent. Such threaryxclusivity grant would also not prevent a comptiom challenging the validity of patents
covering the pioneer drug at any time. In this c#se pioneer drug company may be afforded thefiiesfea 30-month stay against the launch
of such a competitive product that would extendrfithe period that it responds to a pending pateaflenge, and may also be afforded other
extensions under applicable regulations, includirsix-month pediatric exclusivity
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extension or a judicial extension if applicableuiegments are met. This three-year form of excitisimay also not prevent the FDA from
approving an NDA that relies only on its own datatipport the change or innovation.

Five-year and three-year exclusivity will not dethg submission or tentative approval of a full NDwwever, an applicant submitting a
full NDA would be required to conduct or obtainight of reference to all of the preclinical studéex adequate and well-controlled clinical
trials necessary to demonstrate safety and effautiss.

The FDA typically makes a determination on markgtxclusivity in connection with, or soon after,[dDA approval of a drug for a ne
indication. We applied to the FDA for five-year, BE@arketing exclusivity for Vascepa in connectiaithvthe NDA for our MARINE
indication, which NDA was approved by the FDA oiy226, 2012. On February 21, 2014, in connectiothwhe July 26, 2012 approval of the
MARINE indication, the FDA denied a grant of NCE mketing exclusivity to Vascepa and granted threaryearketing exclusivity. Such
three-year exclusivity extends through July 25,38a4d can be supplemented by a 30-month stay tedgter patent infringement litigation
initiated by Amarin following a valid notice to Amia of the filing of an application to the FDA séwel approval of a generic version of
Vascepa.

FDA marketing exclusivity is separate from, ancddition to, patent protection, trade secrets aadufacturing barriers to entry which
also help protect Vascepa against generic compretiti

We also plan to seek regulatory exclusivity for &gsa in Europe. There can be no assurance thailliheevguccessful in securing
marketing approval or regulatory exclusivity in tdaited States or in Europe.

Patents, Proprietary Technology, Trade Secrets
Our success depends in part on our ability to akldad maintain intellectual property protection doir drug candidates, technology and
know-how, and to operate without infringing the grietary rights of others.
Our ability to successfully implement our businpks) and to protect our products with our intelletfproperty will depend in large part
on our ability to:
» obtain, defend and maintain patent protection aatket exclusivity for our current and future proti
» preserve any trade secrets relating to our cuaedtfuture product:
e acquire patented or patentable products and teatiesl, anc
« operate without infringing the proprietary rightstioird parties.

Amarin has prosecuted, and is currently prosecutimgtiple patent applications to protect the ilgetiual property developed during the
Vascepa cardiovascular program. As of the dathisfAnnual Report, we had 40 patent applicatiorthénUnited States that have been either
issued or allowed and more than 30 additional pateplications are pending in the United Statessu@h 40 allowed and issued applications,
we currently have:

« 2issued U.S. patents directed to a pharmaceuwtiraposition of Vascepa in a capsule that have ténmatsexpire in 2020 and 2030,
respectively

» lissued U.S. patent covering a composition coimtgihighly pure EPA that expires in 20:

e 29 U.S. patents covering the use of Vascepa iereftte MARINE or anticipated ANCHOR indication thetve terms that expire in
2030,

e 6 additional patent applications for which the @diStates Patent and Trademark Office, or USPT®issaed a Notice of
Allowance each of which with terms that expire 082 and are related to the use of Vascepa in ditleeMARINE or anticipated
ANCHOR indication,
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» 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaew@zal composition comprised of free fatty acidsreat the ANCHOR patient
population that expires in 2030, a

» 1 additional patent application for which the Uditstates Patent and Trademark Office, or USPTOislsasd a Notice of
Allowance with a term that expires in 2030 andeilated to the use of a pharmaceutical compositiompeised of free fatty acids to
treat the MARINE patient populatio

A Notice of Allowance is issued after the USPTO emk determination that a patent can be granteddroapplication. A Notice of
Allowance does not afford patent protection uiité@ underlying patent is issued by the USPTO. Narasse can be given that applications
with issued notices of allowance will be issuegharents or that any of our pending patent apptioativill issue as patents. No assurance can
be given that, if and when issued, our patentsprédlent competitors from competing with Vascepa. &ke also pursuing patent applications
related to Vascepa in multiple jurisdictions ou¢sttle United States. We may be dependent in soses cgoon third party licensors to pursue
filing, prosecution and maintenance of patent sgitapplications owned or controlled by thoseipsarit is possible that third parties will
obtain patents or other proprietary rights thathhige necessary or useful to us. In cases whaxkphrties are first to invent a particular
product or technology, or first to file after vasoprovisions of the America Invents Act of 201Intviato effect on March 16, 2013, it is
possible that those parties will obtain patents with be sufficiently broad so as to prevent usnfr utilizing such technology or
commercializing our current and future products.

Although we intend to make reasonable efforts tqmt our current and future intellectual propeigits and to ensure that any
proprietary technology we acquire or develop dassdnfringe the rights of other parties, we may hetable to ascertain the existence of all
potentially conflicting claims. Therefore, thereaisisk that third parties may make claims of imfiement against our current or future product:
or technologies. In addition, third parties mayabée to obtain patents that prevent the sale otourent or future products or require us to
obtain a license and pay significant fees or régslin order to continue selling such products.

We may in the future discover the existence of potglthat infringe patents that we own or that Haeen licensed to us. If we were to
initiate legal proceedings against a third partgttyp such an infringement, such proceedings doaldostly and time consuming, regardless of
the outcome. No assurances can be given that wilypoevail, and it is possible that, during sugbraceeding, our patent rights could be held
to be invalid, unenforceable or both. Although wiend to protect our trade secrets and propridgtaoyv-how through confidentiality
agreements with our manufacturers, employees amsuitants, we may not be able to prevent partibfestuto such confidentiality agreements
from breaching these agreements or third part@s fndependently developing or learning of our ¢radcrets.

We anticipate that competitors may from time todtiappose our efforts to obtain patent protectiomé&w technologies or to submit
patented technologies for regulatory approvals. @etitors may seek to oppose our patent applicatmdglay the approval process or to
challenge our granted patents, for example, byesting a reexamination of our patent at the USRF®y filing an opposition in a foreign
patent office, even if the opposition or challehges little or no merit. Such proceedings are gdiyangghly technical, expensive, and time
consuming, and there can be no assurance thatstiddlenge would not result in the narrowing anptete revocation of any patent of ours
that was so challenged.

Employees

At February 20, 2014 we had 185 full-time employeewloyed in sales, marketing, general and admétige and research and
development functions. We believe our relationdwitir employees are good.
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Organizational Structure
At February 20, 2014, we had the following subgidis

Proportion of

Country of Ownership Interest anc
Incorporation
Subsidiary Name or Registration Voting Power Held
Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited Ireland 10C%
Amarin Pharma Inc United State 10C%
Amarin Neuroscience Limite Scotland 10C%
Corsicanto Ltc Ireland 10C(%
Ester Neurosciences Limitt Israel 10C%

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg dmcated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @rimary offices in the United States are locateti480 Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (90H-1315. Our website addresswsw.amarincorp.comNo information contained on, or
accessible through, our website is incorporatecebgrence into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10slt principal operating activities were being cocteéd by Amarin Corporation plc,
together with Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limlitsnd Amarin Pharma, Inc., with little to no opergtactivity being conducted by Amarin
Neuroscience Limited, Corsicanto Ltd, or Ester Nsarences Limitec

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-oasebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limiw@mpany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementI&0 million in aggregate principal amount 0f3t§% exchangeable senior notes due 203
The notes are the senior unsecured obligationoofi€anto and are guaranteed by Amarin CorporationCorsicanto was formed in
November 2011 and was subsequently acquired by iArmadanuary 2012 for the sole purpose of faditigthis financing transactio

Financial Information
The financial information required under this Iténs incorporated herein by reference to Item ghisf Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Where You Can Find More Information

You are advised to read this Annual Report on FbPAK in conjunction with other reports and docunsehiat we file from time to time
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or.SE@Q may obtain copies of these reports afterddte of this annual report directly from
us or from the SEC at the SEC’s Public ReferenceniRat 100 F Street, N.E. Washington, D.C. 2054%ddition, the SEC maintains
information for electronic filers (including Amajimat its website at www.sec.gov. The public mayagbinformation regarding the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC adQ-8EC-0330. We make our periodic and current tspas well as any amendments to
such reports, available on our internet websitse fif charge, as soon as reasonably practicaklesaith material is electronically filed with,
furnished to, the SEC.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg information based on our current expectatiddscause our actual results may
differ materially from any forward-looking statentethat we make or that are made on our behal§, $biction includes a discussion of
important factors that could affect our actual fteuesults, including, but not limited to, our cegiresources, our ability to successfully
commercially launch Vascepa, the progress and ginoifinour clinical programs, the safety and efficafyur product candidates, risks
associated with regulatory filings, the potentihical benefits and market potential of our protiuc
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candidates, commercial market estimates, futureldgwment efforts, patent protection, effects oftheare reform, reliance on third parties,
and other risks set forth below.

Risks Related to the Commercialization and Developent of Vascepa

Our ability to generate increased revenue over tiext few years depends, in part, on FDA approval foe use of Vascepa in the
ANCHOR indication in the United States and we mag tielayed in obtaining, or never obtain, such appgat In October 2013 an
advisory committee convened by the FDA voted 9 &madinst recommending approval of Vascepa in the @iNOR indication and the
FDA has rescinded our ANCHOR clinical trial Speci&#rotocol Assessment Agreement, as a result of Whiere is a significant risk the
FDA will not approve Vascepa for this indication.

While we are currently marketing Vascepa for usthnMARINE indication in the United States, ouiliffoto commercialize Vascepa
the ANCHOR indication in the United States or maNascepa for either indication outside of the EdiStates is dependent upon receiving
additional regulatory approvals. In April 2013, fRBA accepted our Supplemental New Drug ApplicatmmsNDA, which seeks approval for
the use of Vascepa in patients with high triglyderievels (TG 3200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) who are also on statimapy for elevated LDL-
C levels, which we refer to as the ANCHOR indicati®@he FDA originally assigned the sSNDA a PresaipDrug User Fee Act, or PDUFA,
date of December 20, 2013 for the completion ofdtéew. The PDUFA date is the goal date for theARD complete its review of the sNDA.
On December 19, 2013, the FDA natified us it ditl expect to take action on our SNDA on DecembeRPQ3 because our request to re-
instate the ANCHOR special protocol assessmerg@Pdy, agreement remained under consideration with-BA. Our request to reinstate the
ANCHOR SPA was denied and we are in the proceappéaling that decision. No new PDUFA date has bstblished.

On October 16, 2013 the FDA convened an advisomyngittee meeting to review the sNDA for the ANCHQRlication. At the meeting
the advisory committee voted 9 to 2 against recontlimg approval of Vascepa, based on the followingstjon:

Taking into account the described efficacy andtgafata for Vascepa, do you believe that its effect the described lipid/lipoprotein
parameters are sufficient to grant approval foadaiinistration with statin therapy for the treattnefhpatients with mixed dyslipidemia
and CHD or CHD risk equivalent prior to the comjgetof REDUCE-IT?

During the advisory committee meeting, based i pathe briefing materials prepared by the FDAtf@ meeting, the advisory
committee reviewed the safety and efficacy dat@woiesl in the ANCHOR trial. This included a discossiegarding observed nominally
statistically significant changes from baselinamadverse direction, while on background stagmapy, in certain lipid parameters, including
TGs, in the placebo group, raising the possibititgt the mineral oil placebo used in the ANCHORItand in the REDUCE-IT trial) was not
biologically inert and might be viewed as artifibfaexaggerating the clinical effect of Vascepa wimeasured against placebo in the
ANCHOR trial. Because no strong evidence for bialabactivity of mineral oil was identified by t&DA in the MARINE trial, ultimately it
was concluded that the between-group differen&edyliprovided the most appropriate descriptiontheftreatment effect of Vascepa and that
whatever factor(s) led to the withgroup changes over time in the placebo group wieed/lrandomly distributed to all treatment groupbus.
the FDA approved Vascepa for use in the MARINE é¢atibn in July 2012. Following this discussionta tidvisory committee meeting, while
no formal vote was taken related to the inert reatifrthe placebo, we believe that the consenstiseddvisory committee, although not
unanimous, and the FDA was that, based on thenv#tion made available to the advisory committee RIDA at the meeting, Vascepa
appeared to be safe and effective for the reductidrGs in patients with mixed dyslipidemia on staherapy.

However, there was also extensive discussion duhiegdvisory committee meeting regarding the etgokclinical benefit of a reductic
in TGs in this patient population. That is, whettier clinical data derived from the ANCHOR trial sva sufficient basis for approval. In
particular, the advisory committee and

24



Table of Contents

FDA noted the lack of prospective, controlled dalitrial data demonstrating that pharmacologieduction of TGs in patients with mixed
dyslipidemia on statin therapy significantly redsicesidual cardiovascular risk in these patient& FDA noted that prior clinical outcomes
studies conducted by others, albeit in differentepé populations, evaluating different drugs wdifferent mechanisms of action, failed to
demonstrate a statistically significant reductiorardiovascular events following concomitant ukdrag therapy in patients on statin therapy.
We believe that the negative vote of the advisammittee was principally due to the lack of recemnclusive data in these clinical outcomes
studies in favor of the hypothesis that TG redurctidll result in reduced cardiovascular risk. TH2AFis not bound by the recommendations of
the advisory board, but it generally follows suehammendations.

A Special Protocol Assessment, or SPA, agreemet agreement with the FDA that Phase 3 trial paltdesign, clinical endpoints, a
planned statistical analyses are acceptable toosumggulatory approval. A SPA is generally bindimgpn the FDA except in limited
circumstances, such as if the FDA identifies a suttml scientific issue essential to determiniafety or efficacy after the study begins, or if
the study sponsor fails to follow the protocol thets agreed upon with the FDA. On October 29, 26H8FDA natified us that it rescinded the
SPA agreement we entered into for the ANCHOR ptatocol because the FDA determined that a subiataientific issue essential to
determining the effectiveness of Vascepa in thdistlpopulation was identified after testing begasa basis for this determination, the FDA
communicated that, consistent with discussionatiivisory committee meeting, it determined thaitiits from outcome studies of other
triglyceride-lowering drugs failed to support thgpbthesis that a triglyceride-lowering drug sigedintly reduces the risk for cardiovascular
events among the population studied in the ANCHE&R fThus, the FDA stated that it no longer coesida change in serum triglyceride ler
as sufficient to establish the effectiveness ofumdntended to reduce cardiovascular risk in sttbjevith serum triglyceride levels below 500
mg/dL. On November 7, 2013, we submitted to the FDfdrmal appeal of its decision to rescind the $fAuding documents outlining why
we believe the SPA was wrongfully rescinded.

On November 21, 2013, we received notification fritwe dispute resolution group of the Office of NBvugs at the FDA that it had not
accepted for review, on procedural grounds, oueabregarding the rescission of the SPA. We wese mbtified by the FDA that our request
for a meeting at a high level within the FDA regagdthe appeal was not granted and that we wotstirieed to address the matter at the
division level within the FDA. On December 19, 201t8e FDA notified us it did not expect to takeiaston our SNDA on December 20, 2013
because our request to re-instate the ANCHOR SkPéeatent remained under consideration with the FOe FDA also communicated to us
that, as of December 19, 2013, it viewed our appktile ANCHOR SPA agreement rescission and the ARR sNDA as separate
administrative decisions worthy of separate consiiten and that it FDA planned to complete its eswiof our request to re-instate the
ANCHOR SPA agreement. The FDA provided no additiam@rmation on when it expects to complete itgiegv of the ANCHOR sNDA. On
January 17, 2014, the Division of Metabolism andaaminology Products, or DMEP, within the FDA natd Amarin in connection with
Amarin’s request for reconsideration of the Octab@t3 decision to rescind the ANCHOR SPA agreentaitthe DMEP “does not plan to re-
instate the ANCHOR SPA agreement.” Our plan isciatioue appealing the rescission decision to seooglg higher administrative levels
within the FDA in accordance with FDA dispute regimn guidance. Neither the DMEP nor FDA provideditional information on when it
expects to complete its review of the ANCHOR sNDAere can be no assurance that we will be sucdesghe reinstatement of the
ANCHOR SPA agreement or in approval of the ANCH®@Bi¢ation SNDA.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for FDA approval of Vascepa for the ANCH®Rication. If we do not receive FDA approval bEtANCHOR indication, we plan to
re-evaluate the REDUCE-IT study, including the lilkeod of REDUCE-IT providing clinically and comnally useful results, the likelihood
of FDA approval for an expanded indication for Vigsa based on these results and whether it isdesttinue or discontinue the study. We
anticipate that in any such re-evaluation we véilsfurther feedback from the FDA. The aggregast mcomplete REDUCE-IT, excluding
amounts previously expensed, is estimated to
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exceed $100 million, which is a significant finasdburden given our current financial position.thie extent the FDA conditions approval of
Vascepa for the ANCHOR indication on its reviewttod data from the REDUCE-IT trial, Vascepa may mdeeapproved for this indication.
Any delay in obtaining, or an inability to obtaimarketing approval in this indication would prevestfrom growing revenue and could have &
material adverse effect on our operations and &irducondition, including our ability to reach pitability.

Even if we obtain additional regulatory approvals Wascepa, the timing or scope of any approvalg pnahibit or reduce our ability to
commercialize the product successfully. For exaniptee approval process for the ANCHOR indicattakes too long, we may miss market
opportunities and give other companies the alititgevelop competing products or establish marketidance. Additionally, the terms of any
approvals, including the approval received fromREBD&\ in July 2012 for the MARINE indication, maygue to not have the scope or breadth
needed for us to successfully commercialize Vasoeecome profitable.

Our SPA agreement for ANCHOR has been rescinded and SPA agreement for REDUCE-IT is not a guaranteé FDA approval of
Vascepa for the proposed REDUCE-IT indication.

A SPA is an evaluation by the FDA of a protocolhiite goal of reaching an agreement that the Phasa protocol design, clinical
endpoints, and statistical analyses are accept@aisiegpport regulatory approval of the drug prodizsididate with respect to effectiveness for
the indication studied. The ANCHOR trial was, and REDUCE-IT trial is, being conducted under an $igfeement with the FDA. In each
case, the FDA agreed that, based on the informat®osubmitted to the agency, the design and plaanatysis of the trial is adequate to
support use of the conducted study as the primasistfor approval with respect to effectivenes&PA agreement is generally binding upon
the FDA except in limited circumstances, such dlsdfFDA identifies a substantial scientific isassential to determining safety or efficacy
after the study begins, or if the study sponsds tai follow the protocol that was agreed upon tfith FDA.

On October 29, 2013, the FDA notified us that #icieded the ANCHOR study SPA agreement becaudeDiledetermined that a
substantial scientific issue essential to determginhe effectiveness of Vascepa in the studied latipn was identified after testing began.
Specifically, consistent with discussion at theiadry committee meeting, the FDA determined thatilts from outcome studies of other
triglyceride-lowering drugs failed to support thgobthesis that a triglyceride-lowering drug sigedintly reduces the risk for cardiovascular
events among the population studied in the ANCHf@&R in response to our appeal of the decisioreszind the ANCHOR SPA agreement,
on January 17, 2014, the DMEP within the FDA netifiAmarin in connection with Amarin’s request feconsideration of the October 2013
decision to rescind the ANCHOR SPA agreement teXMEP “does not plan to re-instate the ANCHOR S@feement.” Thus, the DMEP
stated that it no longer considers a change imsériglyceride levels as sufficient to establisk #ffectiveness of a drug intended to reduce
cardiovascular risk in subjects with serum trigiyde levels below 500 mg/dL. We are in the proe#ssppealing this decision.

Thus, even though we have received regulatory ajppaf Vascepa for the MARINE indication under a/Sagreement, our ANCHOR
SPA agreement was rescinded and there is no assuttzat the FDA will not rescind our REDUCE-IT SBgreement. Any delay in obtaining,
or an inability to obtain, marketing approval itheir the ANCHOR or REDUCE-IT indications would pee¥ us from growing revenue and
could have a material adverse effect on our operatand financial condition, including our abilityreach profitability.

If we do not obtain FDA approval of the ANCHOR incktion, we may choose to discontinue our ongoingRECE-IT outcome study of
Vascepa, which is designed to determine whetherdéas: is effective in reducing major cardiovasculkewvents in a high risk patient
population on statin therapy and our developmentA&fIR102, a fixed dose combination of Vascepa an@ading statin product.

Our ongoing REDUCHT cardiovascular outcome study was designed terdebe whether Vascepa, when added to statin thevaquld
reduce the risk of major cardiovascular eventsiimtarisk patient population. We
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expect the ongoing incremental cost of the REDUTEtudy to us over the next several years will exklc8100 million as the study currently
involves over 400 clinical trial sites in eleveruotries. The timing of completion of the REDUCE4diudy is based on the rate of
cardiovascular events for patients in the studit.tdkes longer for such events to accrue thamexpect, the trial could take longer to complete
and cost more than we currently expect. AMR102xedfdose combination of Vascepa and a leadinghgtabduct, is in early stage
development with relatively minimal current expemassociated with ongoing development, but sigaifiexpense associated with
development over the next several years. We hatvbeen profitable in any of the last five fiscaby® Our cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2013 was $191.5 million. For the figear ended December 31, 2013, we reported aofd3$66.2 million and we had an
accumulated deficit of $913.9 million. For the tweemonths ended December 31, 2013, net revenuetfresale of Vascepa based on the
MARINE indication was $26.4 million. Given the st#stial ongoing cost of the REDUQE-cardiovascular outcome study, our current cé
resources and the current sales of Vascepa ragtitim FDA approval of Vascepa for use in the MAEIkdication, we may not be able to
continue the study with our current financial reses and anticipated revenues from Vascepa witheuadditional revenues that may be
available to us from the sale of Vascepa follonamg-DA approval of the ANCHOR indication. If we dot receive FDA approval of the
ANCHOR indication, we plan to re-evaluate the REIRJIT study, including the likelihood of REDUCE-ITrqviding clinically and
commercially useful results, the likelihood of FAproval for an expanded indication for Vascepathas these results and whether it is
advisable to continue or discontinue the study.aMicipate that in any such re-evaluation we vablsfurther feedback from the FDA. If we
do not receive FDA approval of the ANCHOR indicat&nd do not continue the ongoing REDUCE-IT triabor development of AMR102,
our ability to generate revenue now and over the several years will be substantially dependensaes of Vascepa resulting from FDA
approval of Vascepa for use in the MARINE indicatié.ccordingly, our prospects for substantiallyreesing future revenue from sales of
Vascepa beyond what might be expected from the NMERhdication labeling alone will be substantiadiyninished.

We are dependent upon the success of Vascepa, whiehaunched commercially in the MARINE indicatioim early 2013.

As a result of our reliance on a single product amdprimary focus on the U.S. market in the neamt much of our neaerm results ar
value as a company depends on our ability to eremutt commercial strategy for Vascepa in the Un8&ates, which we launched in January
2013. If commercialization efforts for Vascepalie MARINE indication or, if approved, the ANCHORdination, are not successful, our
business will be materially and adversely affectgen if we are able to develop additional prodficis our research and development effi
the development time cycle for products typicadligas several years. This restricts our abilityegpond to adverse business conditions for
Vascepa. If we are not successful in developingfatwe product or products, or if there is notguige demand for Vascepa or the market fo
such product develops less rapidly than we antiejpge may not have the ability to effectively sloifir resources to the development of
alternative products or do so in a timely mannehaeuit suffering material adverse effects on ouiinmss. As a result, the lack of alternative
products we develop could constrain our abilitgémerate revenues and achieve profitability.

We launched Vascepa in the MARINE indication in thénited States in January 2013 with our own, nevegtablished sales and
marketing teams and distribution channels and we yna#ot be successful. Historical results may notdmnsistent with or predictive of
future results.

In January 2013, we began selling and marketing#ae in the United States through our own, newtigidished sales and marketing
teams and through a newly established third-pamyroercial distribution infrastructure. We hired k@rsonnel in these areas over the last
several years and hired and trained a professgates$ force in early January 2013. In October 2fl®wing an FDA advisory committee
recommendation against approval for the ANCHORaation, we implemented a plan to reduce our wodd@nd our team of sales
professionals in half. The commercial launch ofa/pharmaceutical product is a complex undertafdng company to manage, and we have
very limited experience as a company operatingigdrea.
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Factors related to building and managing our ovessand marketing organization that can inhibit effiorts to successfully commercialize
Vascepa on our own include:

» our inability to attract and retain adequate nuraledreffective sales and marketing person

* our inability to adequately train our sales andkating personnel, in particular as it relates toouss healthcare regulatory
requirements applicable to the marketing and sgpdarmaceutical products, and our inability togudely monitor compliance
with these requirement

* the inability of our new sales personnel, workingds as a new market entrant, to obtain accessgersuade adequate numbers o
physicians to prescribe Vasce|

» the effect of our recent reduction in force andutatpry events on our ability to contact potengiaichasers of Vascepa in an
efficient manner

» the lack of complementary products to be offereddlgs personnel, which may put us at a competiis@dvantage relative to
companies with more extensive product lines;

» unforeseen costs and expenses associated withtiogeaanew independent sales and marketing orgaoiz:

In addition, we believe that investors should vigith caution both the results for the twelve morghded December 31, 2013, as data
for this limited period may not be representati¥a trend consistent with the results presenteatioerwise predictive of future results,
especially in light of the recent negative advisocoynmittee vote and the approximately 50% redudtiaour sales force. We commenced our
commercial launch of Vascepa on January 28, 20&8o/&lingly, there is a very limited amount of infaation available at this time to
determine the actual number of total prescriptiond/ascepa. We believe investors should consider@sults for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013 together with results over séfere quarters, or longer, before making an sssent about potential future
performance.

In addition to the factors identified above, seasdlnctuations in pharmaceutical sales, for examplay affect future prescription trends
of Vascepa. Moreover, in accordance with our reeeregognition policy and accounting principles gaitg accepted in the U.S., or GAAP,
until we have more experience with the commerdadilin of Vascepa and can reasonably estimate amupt returns, we plan to recognize
revenue based on the resale of Vascepa for th@gesf filling prescriptions, and not based oes#&lom us to such distributors. According
because of our limited selling history, during thvelve months ended December 31, 2013, we onlygrézed revenue on product that we
could substantiate being resold by retailers, sischharmacies, for purposes of filling prescripiobhese prescription data may differ from the
data reported by third parties. The value of prodb@pped to distributors but not resold by theridistors to retailers has been deferred until
we have evidence that the product was resold layleet or until we gain sufficient history with ocustomers to be able to estimate product
returns. This is the case even where invoicesuoh shipments have been collected in full. Fronméduthrough December 31, 2013, the
Company had experienced a de minimus quantityadymt returns.

We have to compete with other pharmaceutical dadsiiences companies to recruit, hire, train @taim sales and marketing personnel,
and turnover in our sales force and marketing persifollowing our recent approximately 50% worldeireduction in force could negatively
affect sales of Vascepa. If we are not successfaur efforts to market and sell Vascepa on our,anarket acceptance of Vascepa may be
harmed, our anticipated revenues will be materitigl negatively affected, and we may need additfomaing or seek a strategic licensing or
co-promotion transaction as a means of raisingtiadai funds.

Vascepa may fail to achieve the degree of marketegatance by physicians, patients, healthcare payand others in the medical
community necessary for commercial success.

We began marketing and selling Vascepa for useaMARINE indication in January 2013. Vascepa nalytd gain sufficient market
acceptance by physicians, patients, healthcarerpayal others in the medical
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community. If Vascepa does not achieve an adedenaté of acceptance, we may not generate signifipesduct revenues and we may not
become profitable. The degree of market acceptah@ascepa for the MARINE indication and any futamproved indications will depend on
a number of factors, including:

» the perceived efficacy, safety and potential adsges of Vascepa, as compared to alternative tresn

* our ability to offer Vascepa for sale at compeétwices

» convenience and ease of administration comparatidmative treatment

» the willingness of the target patient populatiortryonew therapies and of physicians to preschiese therapie:

» the scope, effectiveness and strength of produatagibn, marketing and distribution support, inghgdour sales and marketing
team (which was affected by our recent reducticioioe);

* publicity concerning Vascepa or competing prodc
» perception that we will continue to market and Sebscepa in the MARINE indications and any futuppraved indications
» sufficient thirc-party coverage or reimbursement;

» the actual efficacy of the product and the prevedeand severity of any side effects, including Bmytations or warnings contained
in Vascep’s approved labeling

We may not be able to compete effectively againstammpetitors’ pharmaceutical products.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industrieshaykely competitive. There are many pharmaceutoahpanies, biotechnology
companies, public and private universities andareeorganizations actively engaged in the reseandhdevelopment of products that may be
similar to our products. It is probable that thenfner of companies seeking to develop products laedpies similar to our products will
increase. Many of these and other existing or fi@lecompetitors have substantially greater finahdechnical and human resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manutaand market products. These companies may deweakbjintroduce products and
processes competitive with or superior to oursaddition, other technologies or products may bestiged that have an entirely different
approach or means of accomplishing the intendepgsess of our products, which might render our teldgy and products noncompetitive or
obsolete.

Our potential competitors both in the United Stated Europe include large, well-established phaeutical companies, specialty
pharmaceutical sales and marketing companies,@aladized cardiovascular treatment companies. & hempanies include GlaxoSmithKli
plc, which currently markets Lovaza, a prescriptomty omega-3 fatty acid indicated for patientshagevere hypertriglyceridemia, and
AbbVie, Inc., which currently markets Tricor andlipix for the treatment of severe hypertriglycegidia and mixed dyslipidemia and Niaspan
which is primarily used to raise HDL-C, but is alsged to lower triglycerides. In March 2011, Pram®ioPharma Norge AS, now owned by
BASF, which owns the patents for Lovaza, enterénl &m agreement with Apotex Corp. and Apotex lacApotex, to settle their patent
litigation in the United States related to LovaRarsuant to the terms of the settlement agreerReomova/BASF granted Apotex a license to
enter the United States market with a generic warsf Lovaza in the first quarter of 2015, or earliepending on circumstances. In addition,
Pronova /BASF recently lost an appeal in its paiginingement lawsuit against Teva Pharmaceutici# Inc., or Teva, and Par
Pharmaceutical Inc., or Par, which would have pméae Teva and Par from launching generic versiéh®waza. Apotex, Teva, and Par must
obtain FDA approval of generic versions of Lovaeéobe they are permitted to sell such productbiénlnited States. Other companies are
seeking to introduce generic versions of Lovazahka these competitors has greater resourcesibaio, including financial, product
development, marketing, personnel and other ressurc
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In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioaiganies that are developing products that, if @ and marketed, would
compete with Vascepa. These include a free faityfacm of omega-3 (comprised of 55% EPA and 20%A)Heveloped by Omthera
Pharmaceuticals, now owned by AstraZeneca PLQuIin2D13, an NDA was submitted to the FDA seekipgraval of this drug candidate for
the treatment of severe hypertriglyceridemia. A&trseca has announced that the scheduled goalat&®A approval of its product is May 5,
2014. We expect AstraZeneca will utilize its subtd commercial resources to market Omthera Pheentacals’ product, if approved. We
also understand that another company, Trygg Pha$ndas completed a Phase 3 study of an omegae8l loiasg candidate for severe
hypertriglyceridemia, but we do not believe Trygstannounced results from that study. It is posshat Trygg Pharma has filed for FDA
approval of its product candidate. In addition, stc®harma, a subsidiary of Neptune Technologi®&idesources Inc., announced in late 2
that it intends to conduct a Phase 3 clinical progto assess the safety and efficacy of its omggasription drug candidate derived from
krill oil for the treatment of hypertriglyceridemit/e believe Catabasis Pharmaceuticals, or CagtRasolvyx Pharmaceuticals, or Resolvyx,
and Sancilio & Company are also developing potétréatments for hypertriglyceridemia based on om@datty acids and, to our knowledge,
Catabasis initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial opitsduct in December 2013; Resolvyx’s compound masia Phase 1 clinical testing; and
Sancilio is preparing to commence Phase 3 clinesting. In addition, we are aware that MatinadBiarma, Inc. is developing an omega-3-
based therapeutic for the treatment of severe hyglgceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia. Matinas Bimrma, Inc. has reported that it is
preparing to file an Investigational New Drug Amgaliion with the FDA and to conduct a human studghafirst half of 2014. Isis
Pharmaceuticals announced favorable Phase 2 re$u8tS-APOCIII g, a drug candidate administered tigio weekly subcutaneous
injections, in patients with high triglycerides atyge 2 diabetes and in patients with moderatetere high triglycerides. Finally, Madrigal
Pharmaceuticals has completed Phase 1 clinicagest MGL-3196 for the treatment of high triglyéges and various lipid parameters in
patients.

We were granted three-year FDA marketing exclusyvénd competitors may now seek approval of geneérsions of Vascepa.

The Hatchwaxman Amendments permit the FDA to approve abhtedinew drug applications, or ANDASs, for genegcsions of bran
name drugs like Vascepa. We refer to the procegsméric drug applications as the “ANDA processieTimelines and conditions that govern
the ANDA process differ based on whether a drugivexs threerear, or new chemical entity (NCE), marketing esolity. The ANDA proces
permits competitor companies to obtain marketingreyal for a drug product with the same active éutignt, dosage form, strength, route of
administration, and labeling as the approved brearde drug, but without having to conduct and sulsfiritcal studies to establish the safety
and efficacy of the proposed generic product. &telof such clinical studies, an ANDA applicantdset submit data demonstrating that its
product is bioequivalent to the brand name produsiially based on pharmacokinetic studies.

The Hatch-Waxman Amendments require an applicard firug product that relies, in whole or in part,the FDA'’s prior approval of
Vascepa, to notify us of its application, a parpgr&/ notice, if the applicant is seeking to mariketproduct prior to the expiration of the
patents that claim Vascepa. A bona fide paragrépiotice may not be given under the Hatch-WaxmareAdments until after the generic
company receives from the FDA an acknowledgeméiaristating that its ANDA is sufficiently complete permit a substantive review.

The paragraph 1V notice is required to contain taited factual and legal statement explaining thgivfor the applicarg’opinion that th
proposed product does not infringe our patents,dhapatents are invalid, or both. After receipawalid notice, we would have the option of
bringing a patent infringement suit in federal dedtcourt against any generic company seeking@ambifor its product within 45 days from the
date of receipt of each notice. If such a suibimmenced within this 45 day period, we will be t@adi to receive a 30 month stay on FDA'’s
ability to give final approval to any of the progasproducts that reference Vascepa. The stay makidréened or lengthened if either party
fails to cooperate in the litigation and it maytbeminated if
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the court decides the case in less than 30 malfitthe litigation is resolved in favor of the apgint before the expiration of the 30 month
period, the stay will be immediately lifted and #BA’s review of the application may be complet8dch litigation is often time-consuming
and costly, and may result in generic competitfuch patents are not upheld or if the genericpetitor is found not to infringe such patents.

The FDA typically makes a determination on markgmxclusivity in connection with, or soon after,[dDA approval of a drug for a ne
indication. We applied to the FDA for five-year, E@narketing exclusivity for Vascepa in connectiathvthe NDA for our MARINE
indication, which NDA was approved by the FDA oity126, 2012. On February 21, 2014, in connectiothwhe July 26, 2012 approval of the
MARINE indication, the FDA denied a grant of NCE mketing exclusivity to Vascepa and granted threaryearketing exclusivity. Such
three-year exclusivity extends through July 25,328ad can be supplemented by a 30-month stay tedgeter patent infringement litigation
initiated by Amarin following a valid notice to Amia of the filing of an ANDA with the FDA seekingpproval of a generic version of
Vascepa.

On February 27, 2014, we filed a lawsuit againstRBA that challenges FDA's denial of our requestfive-year exclusivity for
Vascepa based on our reading of the relevant stahd inconsistency with FDA'’s past actions. Ounplaint requests that the court vacate
FDA's decision, declare that Vascepa is entitlethtobenefits of five-year statutory exclusivitgrithe FDA from accepting any ANDA or
similar application for which Vascepa is the refare-listed drug until after the statutory exclusiyeriod expires, and if necessary, set aside
FDA's premature acceptance of any such application.

FDA marketing exclusivity is separate from, an@ddition to, patent protection, trade secrets aadufacturing barriers to entry which
also help protect Vascepa against generic comgretiti

Based on communications with the FDA, we beliexeeRDA does not accept submitted ANDASs for revieuilwafter the FDA makes a
determination on the exclusivity status of the pendrug. In February 2014, prior to the FDA'’s &gear exclusivity determination for
Vascepa, we received a purported paragraph IV efition a generic drug company with respect to afdANo Vascepa. The FDA confirmed
with us after we received the notice and beforestt@usivity determination was made that the FDA hat accepted for review any ANDA to
Vascepa. The FDA has repeatedly taken the poshimnparagraph IV notices delivered to pioneer camigs such as Amarin prior to the
acceptance by the FDA for review of a submitted AN&e not effective under the Hatch-Waxman Amendméerhe generic company may
challenge the FDA'’s position on whether the notscealid in court in connection with patent litigat. Generic companies are thought to send
such premature notices to seek to avail themselivéee 180-day generic exclusivity period for apigved product under an ANDA based on
the generic’s view that it would then have firstfile status and to seek an early end to relatéeinpditigation with the branded drug company
and the associated 30-month stay. Because we arkDtA do not believe the purported paragraph I\foeds an effective notice under the
Hatch-Waxman Amendments we do not plan to initigteent litigation against the generic company sidimitted the ANDA until within the
45-day period after we receive a valid paragraphdtice.

The FDA may now accept for review a submitted ANfdA/ascepa under the Hatch-Waxman Amendments. Adtaipt of a valid
paragraph IV notice, we are likely to engage irtlgdgigation with the applicant to protect ourtpat rights. If the generic filer is ultimately
successful in patent litigation against us, mestsequirements for a generic version of Vascepheatisfaction of the FDA under its ANDA
(after any applicable regulatory exclusivity peremt, typically, the litigation-related 30-montlagperiod expires), and is able to supply the
product in significant commercial quantities, trengric company could, with the market introductidm generic version of Vascepa, limit our
U.S. sales, which would have an adverse impacuomasiness and results of operations. In addigeen if a competitos’ effort to introduce
generic product is ultimately unsuccessful, thegption that such development is in progress ant¥as related to such progress could
materially affect the perceived value of our compand our stock price.
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Vascepa is a prescription-only omega-3 fatty aciimega-3 fatty acids are also marketed by other canips as non-prescription dietary
supplements. As a result, Vascepa would be sulifeaon-prescription competition and consumer sulbstion.

Our only current product, Vascepa, is a prescriptioly omega-3 fatty acid. Mixtures of omega-3yfattids are naturally occurring
substances contained in various foods, includitty fesh. Omega-3 fatty acids are also marketedthers as non-prescription dietary
supplements. We cannot be sure physicians will ¥fewpharmaceutical grade purity of Vascepa asigavisuperior therapeutic profile to
naturally occurring omega-3 fatty acids and diewrgplements. To the extent the price of Vascepaisficantly higher than the prices of
commercially available omega-3 fatty acids markédtgather companies as dietary supplements (thrthaghack of coverage by insurers or
otherwise), physicians may recommend these comaiaiternatives instead of writing prescriptions ¥@ascepa or patients may elect on their
own to take commercially available omega-3 fattiglacEither of these outcomes may adversely impactesults of operations by limiting
how we price our product and limiting the revenweraceive from the sale of Vascepa due to redu@llehacceptance.

If we are not successful marketing and selling Vapa on our own, we may need to find collaboratiatpers to help market and sell t
product.

If we are not successful marketing and selling \#ascon our own, we may need to find collaborataeners to help market and sell the
product or otherwise outsource these functionkitd parties. Until such time as we choose to, artdally do, complete a strategic transactior
with a third party to market and sell Vascepayiére we will continue to market and sell Vascepaanown. We are actively exploring
collaboration opportunities for the continued méirigeand sale of Vascepa as we approach the patapiproval of Vascepa in the ANCHOR
indication, assuming its regulatory approval.

We may choose not to enter into a collaboratiolneip market and sell Vascepa or, if we determirod sucollaborative partner is
necessary we may not be successful in finding lalwodative partner, or may be delayed in doing/ge.face significant competition in seeki
appropriate collaborators, and these collaborattsasomplex and timeensuming to negotiate and document. We may nableto negotial
collaborations on acceptable terms, or at all. W&yl will have little control over such third pas, and any of them may fail to devote the
necessary resources and attention to sell and tauk@roducts effectively. If that were to occdepending on Vascepa revenues, we may
have to curtail the continued development of Vaadep approval for additional indications or incseaour planned expenditures and undertak
additional development or commercialization adtgtat our own expense. If we elect to increaseegpenditures to fund development or
commercialization activities on our own, dependimgvVascepa’s revenues, we may need to obtain aedditcapital, which may not be
available to us on acceptable terms, or at allyluich may not be possible due to our other finag@mangements, including our Purchase anc
Sale Agreement with BioPharma Secured Debt Fuhibldings Cayman, L.P., or BioPharma. If we do nengrate sufficient funds from the
sale of Vascepa or, to the extent needed to sugplefunds generated from product revenue, canis# safficient funds, we may not be able
to devote resources sufficient to market and safidépa on our own in a manner required to redlizéull market potential of Vascepa.

The commercial value to us of the MARINE and ANCHGRdications may be smaller than we anticipate.

There can be no assurance as to the adequacynfoneial success of the scope and breadth of thRIME indication or, if approved,
the ANCHOR indication. Even if we obtain marketiygproval for additional indications, the FDA maypiose restrictions on the product’s
conditions for use, distribution or marketing andsdome cases may impose ongoing requirements ftmparket surveillance, post-approval
studies or clinical trials. Also, with regard t®@tMARINE indication and any other indications foniesh we may gain approval, the number of
actual patients with the condition included in sagiproved indication may be smaller than we ardieiplf any such approved indication is
narrower than we anticipate, the market potentiabfir product would suffer.
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Our products will be subject to extensive post-apgal government regulation.

Once a product candidate receives FDA marketingovah humerous post-approval requirements apphgoAg other things, the holder
of an approved NDA is subject to periodic and othenitoring and reporting obligations enforced by EDA and other regulatory bodies,
including obligations to monitor and report advegsents and instances of the failure of a produotéet the specifications in the approved
application. Application holders must also subrditextising and other promotional material to retpia authorities and report on ongoing
clinical trials.

With respect to sales and marketing activitiesudirlg direct-to-consumer advertising and promoti@aévities involving the Internet,
advertising and promotional materials must compityh \wDA rules in addition to other applicable fealend local laws in the United States
in other countries. Industry-sponsored scientifid aducational activities also must comply with FBrd other requirements. In the United
States, the distribution of product samples to fulgiss must comply with the requirements of the.WP&scription Drug Marketing Act.
Manufacturing facilities remain subject to FDA iespion and must continue to adhere to the FDA’setiirgood manufacturing practice
requirements, or cGMPs. Application holders musaimbFDA approval for product and manufacturingrades, depending on the nature of the
change. We also are subject to the new federageency requirements under the Patient ProteatidmAffordable Care Act, as amended by
the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Adticlv require manufacturers of certain drugs, deyib@®logics, and medical supplies to
report to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Seegi or CMS, information related to payments ahemtransfers of value to physicians and
teaching hospitals and physician ownership andsimvent interests. We may also be subject, directlpdirectly through our customers and
partners, to various fraud and abuse laws, inctydirithout limitation, the U.S. Anti-Kickback Sta#y U.S. False Claims Act, and similar state
laws, which impact, among other things, our progdassdes, marketing, and scientific/educational gpangrams. If we participate in the U.S.
Medicaid Drug Rebate Program, the Federal Supphe@dle of the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairspther government drug programs,
we will be subject to complex laws and regulatioggarding reporting and payment obligations. Alttafse activities are also potentially
subject to U.S. federal and state consumer proteetnd unfair competition laws. Similar requirenseeist in many of these areas in other
countries.

Depending on the circumstances, failure to meesetipost-approval requirements can result in crihpn@secution, fines or other
penalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of prdadutotal or partial suspension of production, dear withdrawal of pre-marketing product
approvals, or refusal to allow us to enter intopygontracts, including government contracts.ddition, even if we or our potential partners
comply with FDA and other requirements, new infotioraregarding the safety or effectiveness of alpod could lead the FDA to modify or
withdraw a product approval. Adverse regulatoryoactwhether pre- or post-approval, can potentikdd to product liability claims and
increase our product liability exposure. We or potential partners must also compete against giteetucts in qualifying for coverage and
reimbursement under applicable third party paynasdtinsurance programs.

The commercial value of Vascepa may be negativélgaed by the advisory committee recommendationiagt approval of Vascepa in
the ANCHOR indication, the rescission of the ANCHOHPA agreement or any subsequent rejection of tkeaging FDA application witt
the FDA for the use of Vascepa in the ANCHOR indiaan.

Though we are restricted from promoting Vascepauagplicable regulations for any indication ottrem the FDA-approved MARINE
indication, healthcare professionals are not mestlifrom prescribing Vascepa for such so-calldédatieled uses. A significant amount of the
sales of Vascepa may, in fact, be attributabletoadled off-labeled uses of the drug. We expeat #mong the off-labeled uses of Vascepa ar
uses that would fall into, or be closely relatedtbhe proposed ANCHOR indication. The recent negattcommendation of the advisory
committee meeting against approval of VascepagdmiNCHOR indication, the recent rescission by tB&fof the ANCHOR SPA, and/or a
subsequent decision by the FDA to not approve \fesaethe ANCHOR
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indication may negatively and materially affect gerception of the utility of Vascepa for use ie fiNCHOR indication or for other purposes
and thus negatively and materially affect salegadcepa.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly relgte the promotional claims that may be made abptéscription products. If we are
found to have improperly promoted off-label uses may become subject to significant fines and othability.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly fatguthe promotional claims that may be made aprasgcription products. In
particular, a product may not be promoted for ubatare not approved by the FDA or such otherleggrty agencies as reflected in the
product’s approved labeling. Even though we reatMBA marketing approval for Vascepa for the MARIMNi8ication, physicians may still
prescribe Vascepa to their patients for use irtrdtment of conditions that are not included as @ithe indication statement in our FDA-
approved Vascepa label. If we are found to havenpted such offabel uses, we may become subject to significamegonent fines and oth
related liability. For example, the Federal goveentrhas levied large civil and criminal fines agaicompanies for alleged improper promo
and has enjoined several companies from engagioff-label promotion. The FDA has also requested tompanies enter into consent
decrees or permanent injunctions under which sigédifromotional conduct is changed or curtailed.

In addition, incentives exist under applicable ldhet encourage competitors, employees and physitareport violations of rules
governing promotional activities for pharmaceutigedducts. These incentives could lead to so-calleidtleblower lawsuits as part of which
such persons seek to collect a portion of mondggedly overbilled to government agencies duedongekample, promotion of pharmaceutical
products beyond labeled claims. These incentivakialso lead to suits that we have mischaractér@gzeompetitor’s product in the
marketplace and may, as a result, be sued foreglldgmages to our competitors. Such lawsuits, ehettih or without merit, are typically
time-consuming and costly to defend. Such suits atsy result in related shareholder lawsuits, whighalso costly to defend.

The REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes trial may fao show that Vascepa can reduce major cardiovdacevents in an at-risk
patient population on statin therapy, and the lorigrm clinical results of Vascepa may not be consigtwith the clinical results we
observed in our Phase 3 clinical trial, in which sa our sales of Vascepa may then suffer.

In accordance with the SPA for our MARINE and ANCR@ials, efficacy was evaluated in these trialsipared to placebo at twelve
weeks. No placebo-controlled studies have beenwstad regarding the long-term effect of Vascepéipds, and no outcomes study has beer
conducted evaluating Vascepa. The REDUCE-IT stadiesigned to evaluate the efficacy of Vascepadaceing major cardiovascular events
in an at-risk patient population on statin therapy.

Outcomes studies of certain other lipid-modifyihgrapies have failed to achieve the endpoints di studies. For example, in 2010, the
results of the ACCORD-Lipid trial were publishechid trial studied the effect of adding fenofibratgo open-label simvastatin therapy on
cardiovascular outcomes. The addition of fenofibiditl not show any treatment benefit on cardiovias@mutcomes over simvastatin
monotherapy in this study. In 2011, the resultefAIM-HIGH trial were published. This trial stugdl the effect of adding a second lipid-
altering agent, extended-release niacin, to simatiastherapy on cardiovascular outcomes in pedptégh risk for cardiovascular events. No
significant incremental treatment benefit with exdedrelease niacin was observed. In addition, in SepérR012, researchers published ir
Journal of the American Medical Associatior JAMA, the results of a retrospective meta-analysis oftywpreviously conducted studies
regarding the use of omega-3 supplements acrossisgratient populations. This metaalysis suggested that the use of such supplemes
not associated with a lower risk of all-cause deedindiac death, sudden death, heart attack, akestiWe believe the results of these studies
may not be directly applicable to the use of Vaaoayer time. For instance, the outcomes studiefefafibrates and niacin were conducted in
patient populations in which the majority of patestudied had triglycerides below 200 mg/dL antbfibrates and
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niacin are believed to work differently than Vaszépthe body and do not have as favorable a dideterofile, and nineteen of the twenty
studies included in the JAMA meta-analysis involtieel use of omega-3 supplements containing a nexatiEPA and DHA, and most were
evaluated at relatively lower doses. In additioniay 2013,The New England Journal of Medicipablished the results of an outcome study
of 1 gram per day of an omega-3 acid ethyl estempasition. In that study, the composition failecstmw a benefit in reducing the rate of
death from cardiovascular causes or hospitalizdtooardiovascular causes when administered temqtatwith cardiovascular risk factors
under different study conditions than in the REDUIEtudy. Vascepa is comprised of highly-pure etBRA, and has been approved by the
FDA for use in patients with severe hypertriglydemia at a dose of 4 grams per day.

The only other outcomes study involving the usa bfghly-pure formulation of ethyl-EPA, called thapan EPA Lipid Intervention
Study (JELIS), suggested that use of a highly-pamaulation of ethyl-EPA in Japan, when used injoontion with statins, reduced
cardiovascular events by 19% compared to the ustatihs alone. However, there are several linoitetito the JELIS study. First, the patient
population was exclusively Japanese, the majofith® participants were women, and at baselineptihad a much higher LDL, limiting its
generalizability to the intended target populatiSacond, a low dose of statins was used. It is onwknwhether the positive treatment effects
would have persisted if these patients had beemalty treated with statins using contemporary Lkgets in the United States. Third, JELIS
was an open-label trial, which could influence @atiand physician behavior and reporting of symgtasecisions regarding hospitalization,
and referral of events for adjudication. This mayplarticularly relevant since hospitalizationsdostable angina was a primary contributor of
the overall positive result, and is consideredftes@ndpoint than fatal cardiovascular events.

Although we believe the results of the JAMA metalgiais and other studies are not directly applieablthe potential long-term clinical
experience with Vascepa, there can be no assutiatcthe endpoints of the REDUCE-IT cardiovasculaicomes study will be achieved or
that the lipid-modifying effects of Vascepa in REDE-IT or any other study of Vascepa will not bejeabto variation beyond twelve weeks.
If the REDUCE-IT trial fails to achieve its clinicandpoints or if the results of these long-terodgts are not consistent with the 12-week
clinical results, it could prevent us from expangthe label of any approved product or even cétl question the efficacy of any approved
product.

We may not be successful in developing or marketintyre products if we cannot meet the extensivgukatory requirements of the FDA
and other regulatory agencies for quality, safetydaefficacy.

The success of our research and development efaependent in part upon our ability, and thditstf our partners or potential
partners, to meet regulatory requirements in thisdictions where we or our partners or potentatmers ultimately intend to sell such
products once approved. The development, manufaetudt marketing of pharmaceutical products areestibp extensive regulation by
governmental authorities in the United States Bhmpean Union, Japan and elsewhere. In the USBitaids, the FDA generally requires pre-
clinical testing and clinical trials of each drugestablish its safety and efficacy and extensharimaceutical development to ensure its quality
before its introduction into the market. Regulatanghorities in other jurisdictions impose similaquirements. The process of obtaining
regulatory approvals is lengthy and expensive heddsuance of such approvals is uncertain. Ther@mmement and rate of completion of
clinical trials and the timing of obtaining markediapproval from regulatory authorities may be getbby many factors, including:

» the lack of efficacy during clinical trial

« the inability to manufacture sufficient quantitigisqualified materials under cGMPs for use in dalitrials;
» slower than expected rates of patient recruitrr

» the inability to observe patients adequately afemtment
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» changes in regulatory requirements for clinicgbiaclinical studies
» the emergence of unforeseen safety issues inaliaiqreclinical studies

» delay, suspension, or termination of a trial byitigitutional review board responsible for oveisgehe study at a particular study
site;

* unanticipated changes to the requirements impogeddulatory authorities on the extent, naturdrairtg of studies to be
conducted on quality, safety and efficacy;

» government or regulatory delays*“clinical hold¢’ requiring suspension or termination of a tr

Even if we obtain positive results from early stage-clinical or clinical trials, we may not achéethe same success in future trials.
Clinical trials that we or potential partners coatmay not provide sufficient safety and effica@talto obtain the requisite regulatory
approvals for product candidates. The failure oficél trials to demonstrate safety and efficaaydar desired indications could harm the
development of that product candidate as well Bsrgtroduct candidates, and our business and sesutperations would suffer. For example
the efficacy results of our Vascepa Phase 3 clinizds for the treatment of Huntington’s diseagere negative. As a result, we stopped
development of that product candidate, revisedcbnical strategy and shifted our focus to develtgscepa for use in the treatment of
cardiovascular disease.

Any approvals that are obtained may be limitedciope, may require additional post-approval studiesay require the addition of
labeling statements focusing on product safety¢batd affect the commercial potential for our protdcandidates. Any of these or similar
circumstances could adversely affect our abilitgaon revenues from the sale of such products. Eveincumstances where products are
approved by a regulatory body for sale, the regwyadr legal requirements may change over timeeov safety or efficacy information may
identified concerning a product, which may leadh® withdrawal of a product from the market or $émuse restrictions. The discovery of
previously unknown problems with a product or imegection with the manufacturer of products may lteswestrictions on that product or
manufacturer, including withdrawal of the producr the market, which would have a negative impacbur potential revenue stream.

Legislative or regulatory reform of the health casystem in the United States and foreign jurisdazts may affect our ability to profitably
sell Vascepa.

Our ability to commercialize our future productgsessfully, alone or with collaborators, will deden part on the extent to which
coverage and reimbursement for the products wiidmglable from government and health administrasiathorities, private health insurers
other third-party payors. The continuing effortstoé U.S. and foreign governments, insurance coimpamanaged care organizations and
other payors of health care services to contameduce health care costs may adversely affecthulityo set prices for our products which
believe are fair, and our ability to generate rexnand achieve and maintain profitability.

Specifically, in both the United States and someifm jurisdictions, there have been a numbergitlative and regulatory proposals to
change the health care system in ways that cofddtadur ability to sell our products profitablyofFexample, the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @aceEducation Reconciliation Act, or collectivehetPPACA, enacted in March 2010,
substantially changes the way healthcare is fincibgeboth governmental and private insurers. Amathgr cost-containment measures,
PPACA establishes:

« An annual, nondeductible fee on any entity that uf@ctures or imports certain branded prescriptiags and biologic agent

A new Medicare Part D coverage gap discount progianvhich pharmaceutical manufacturers who wishawe their drugs
covered under Part D must offer discounts to diigiieneficiaries during their coverage gap peraodi

« A new formula that increases the rebates a manufrcinust pay under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Proc
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We expect further federal and state proposals aattthcare reforms to continue to be proposed tpglegors, which could limit the
prices that can be charged for the products weldpand may limit our commercial opportunity.

The continuing efforts of government and otherdiparty payors to contain or reduce the costs aftheare through various means may
limit our commercial opportunity. It will be timeoosuming and expensive for us to go through theqe® of seeking coverage and
reimbursement from Medicare and private payors.@oducts may not be considered cost effective,gavernment and third-party private
health insurance coverage and reimbursement mayenavailable to patients for any of our futureduarats or sufficient to allow us to sell our
products on a competitive and profitable basis. @sults of operations could be adversely affebieBPACA and by other health care refo
that may be enacted or adopted in the future. dlitiad, increasing emphasis on managed care ibthieed States will continue to put pressure
on the pricing of pharmaceutical products. Costmdinitiatives could decrease the price that wamy potential collaborators could receive
for any of our future products and could adverséfgct our profitability.

In some foreign countries, including major marketthe European Union and Japan, the pricing adguiption pharmaceuticals is subj
to governmental control. In these countries, pgaiegotiations with governmental authorities c&etato 12 months or longer after the rec
of regulatory marketing approval for a product.diiain reimbursement or pricing approval in somanties, we may be required to condu
pharmacoeconomic study that compares the costtweess of Vascepa to other available therapiesh harmacoeconomic studies can be
costly and the results uncertain. Our businessddo@lharmed if reimbursement of our products isvaitable or limited in scope or amount or
if pricing is set at unsatisfactory levels.

As we evolve from a company primarily involved iesearch and development to a company also focusedstablishing an infrastructur
for commercializing Vascepa, we may encounter diffities in managing our growth and expanding our eations successfully.

We hired and trained a professional sales fora@ppfoximately 275 sales representatives and comedemar commercial launch of
Vascepa in the MARINE indication in the United 8&in early January 2013. The process of estabtjshicommercial infrastructure is
difficult, expensive and timeensuming. Our October 2013 worldwide reductiofoite, which included the termination of approxieiats0%
of the then-staffed sales force, has made thisggomore difficult. As our operations expand whith &nticipated growth of our produce sales,
we expect that we will need to manage additionaki@nships with various collaborative partnergiers and other third parties. Future
growth will impose significant added responsik@i#ion members of management, including the neiglgmdify, recruit, maintain and integrate
additional employees. Our future financial perfomt@and our ability to commercialize Vascepa antbtapete effectively will depend, in
part, on our ability to manage our future growtfeetively. To that end, we must be able to managedevelopment efforts effectively, and
hire, train, integrate and retain additional mamaget, administrative and sales and marketing paedolVe may not be able to accomplish
these tasks, and our failure to accomplish anheitcould prevent us from successfully growingeaampany.

Risks Related to our Reliance on Third Parties

If we do not realize the expected benefits fromastworldwide reductions in our workforce and frofature cost savings initiatives that
we may implement, the value of our company and assets and the market price of our ADSs could matky decline.

In October 2013, we implemented a plan that redwcedvorldwide workforce by approximately 50%. Wanoot guarantee that we will
be able to realize the cost savings and otheripated benefits from our recent worldwide redudiamforce. If we experience excessive
unanticipated inefficiencies or incremental costsannection with restructuring activities, suctuaanticipated inefficiencies caused by
reducing headcount, we may be unable to meaniygfedllize cost savings and we may incur expensesgdass of what we anticipate. Either
of these outcomes could prevent us from meetingtrategic objectives and could adversely affectresults of operations and financial
condition.

37



Table of Contents

Our supply of product for commercial supply and mi¢al trials is dependent upon relationships withitd party manufacturers and key
suppliers.

We have no in-house manufacturing capacity andaelgontract manufacturers for our clinical and omercial product supply. We
cannot assure you that we will successfully martufacany product we may develop, either indepemglentunder manufacturing
arrangements, if any, with our third party manufiaets. Moreover, if any manufacturer should ceasegdbusiness with us or experience
delays, shortages of supply or excessive demantise@mncapacity, we may not be able to obtain adegguantities of product in a timely
manner, or at all.

Any manufacturing problem, natural disaster affegtinanufacturing facilities, or the loss of a cantrmanufacturer could be disruptive
to our operations and result in lost sales. Adddilty, we will be reliant on third parties to supphe raw materials needed to manufacture our
potential products. Any reliance on suppliers mrasolve several risks, including a potential inakhitio obtain critical materials and reduced
control over production costs, delivery schedulekability and quality. Any unanticipated disruprti to future contract manufacture caused by
problems at suppliers could delay shipment of petgluincrease our cost of goods sold and resldtsinsales. If our suppliers were unable to
supply us with adequate volumes of ethyl-EPA it ldduave a material adverse effect on our abilitgdatinue to commercialize Vascepa.

We initially purchased all of our supply of the belbompound (ethyEPA), which constitutes the only active pharmaaaliingredient, o
API, of Vascepa, from a single supplier, Nisshima, or Nisshin, located in Japan. Nisshin wasaa by the FDA as a Vascepa API
supplier as part of our FDA marketing approvaltfee MARINE indication in July 2012. In April 201@;e announced the approval by the F
of Chemport, Inc. and BASF (formerly Equateq Lirditas additional Vascepa API suppliers. We havensented purchasing and utilizing
commercial supply from Chemport in addition to Miss BASF is working to complete validation of feility for the manufacture of Vasce,
Each of the APl manufacturers obtains supply ofkéaeraw material to manufacture API from otherdiparty sources of supply.

While we have contractual freedom to source thefAPYVascepa and have entered into supply agreesmétit multiple suppliers who
also rely on other third party suppliers of the kayw material to manufacture the API for Vascepiashin and Chemport currently supply al
our API for Vascepa. Our strategy in adding APIiges beyond Nisshin has been to expand manufagteapacity and to partially mitigate
the risk of reliance on one supplier.

Also, in December 2012 we announced the additiamagxclusive consortium of companies led by Slammftharmaceutical, Inc., or
Slanmhor, to our planned API global supply chainfascepa. Slanmhor was spout from Ocean Nutrition Canada, or ONC, priorhe May
2012 acquisition of ONC by Royal DSM N.V., a globedder in life sciences and materials sciencesarkmmow has a total of three suppliers
for Vascepa API to utilize in supporting the globammercialization of Vascepa, subject to apprapniegulatory approval of Slanmhor, for
which we submitted a sNDA in August 2013. Slanmiaworking to complete construction and validatadrits facility for the manufacture of
Vascepa.

Expanding manufacturing capacity and qualifyingrsoapacity is difficult and subject to numerousulagons and other operational
challenges. The resources of our suppliers varyaaadimited; costs associated with projected egjganand qualification can be significant.
For example, Chemport, which was approved as oo&iofAP| suppliers in April 2013, is a privatelyldeompany and their commitment to
Vascepa supply has required them to seek additiesalirces. There can be no assurance that thestapglans of any of our suppliers will
be successful. Our aggregate capacity to produd¢esAiependent upon the qualification of our APpgliers. Each of our API suppliers has
outlined plans for potential further capacity exgian. If no additional API supplier is approvedthg FDA, our API supply will be limited to
the APl we purchase from Nisshin and Chemportuiftbird party manufacturing capacity is not expathdnd compliant with application
regulatory requirements, we may not be able to lgungficient quantities of Vascepa to meet anttgul
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demand. We cannot assure you that we can contiticany future manufacturer on acceptable termtbairany such alternative supplier will
not require capital investment from us in ordertf@@m to meet our requirements. Alternatively, purchase of supply may exceed actual
demand for Vascepa.

We currently rely exclusively on Patheon for theasulation of Vascepa. We have encapsulation ewgets with two other commercial
API encapsulators. These companies are workingadifg their processes and to prove that the Vasagpsules they produce meet the same
quality standards as the capsules produced by ératfibere can be no guarantee that additional stiygpliers with which we have contracted
to encapsulate API will be qualified to manufacttire product to our specifications or that thes# amy future suppliers will have the
manufacturing capacity to meeting anticipated dehfanVascepa. We cannot assure you that we catnaamvith any future manufacturer on
acceptable terms or that any such alternative &pplll not require capital investment from usarder for them to meet our requirements.

We may not be able to maintain our exclusivity wibkr third-party Vascepa suppliers if we do not meeinimum purchase obligations
due to lower than anticipated sales of Vascepa.

Certain of our agreements with our suppliers inelodnimum purchase obligations and limited excliigigrovisions based on such
minimum purchase obligations. If we do not meetrégpective minimum purchase obligations in oupbupgreements, our suppliers will be
free to sell the active pharmaceutical ingredidntfascepa to potential competitors of Vascepa. laityiif we terminate certain of our supply
agreements, such suppliers may be free to sefidtiee pharmaceutical ingredient of Vascepa tom@kecompetitors of Vascepa. On
December 30, 2013, we issued a notice of terminaticonnection with our active pharmaceutical @dient supply agreement with BASF ¢
result of BASF’s non-compliance with the terms o€ls agreement. If BASF does not cure its non-ccempk within a 60-day cure period and
the agreement is terminated, BASF may be freelt&/ascepa active pharmaceutical ingredient toaampetitors. While we anticipate that
intellectual property barriers and FDA regulatoxglesivity will be the primary means to protect t@nmercial potential of Vascepa, the
availability of Vascepa active pharmaceutical intieat from our suppliers to our potential compestevould make our competitors’ entry into
the market easier and more attractive.

We have limited experience with the commercial safé/ascepa, and such inexperience may cause ysui@hase too much or not
enough supply to satisfy actual demand, which coblave a material adverse effect on our financiakidts and financial condition.

Certain of our agreements with our suppliers inelodnimum purchase obligations and limited exclitgigrovisions. These purchases
are generally made on the basis of rolling twehaath forecasts which in part are binding on ustaedalance of which are subject to
adjustment by us subject to certain limitationstt&la of our agreements also include contractuaimmiim purchase commitments regardles
the rolling twelve-month forecasts. We have limitegberience with the commercial sale of Vascepd,ansuch expectations regarding
expected demand may be wrong. We may not purchédfieient quantities of Vascepa to meet actual dednar our purchase of supply may
exceed actual demand. In either case, such evaltt bave a material adverse effect on our finarreislilts and financial condition.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceutical phacts such as Vascepa are subject to FDA requiretseand those of similar
foreign regulatory bodies. If we or our third partjnanufacturers fail to satisfy these requirementsyr product development and
commercialization efforts may be materially harmed.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceuticaymts, such as Vascepa, are regulated by the FlAiarilar foreign regulatory
bodies and must be conducted in accordance witkREt#€s current good manufacturing practices, or d@yland comparable requirements of
foreign regulatory bodies. There are a limited namif manufacturers that operate under these c@btRdations who are both capable of
manufacturing Vascepa and willing to do so. Failoyais or our third party manufacturers to complghw
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applicable regulations, requirements, or guideliceadd result in sanctions being imposed on usuding fines, injunctions, civil penalties,
failure of regulatory authorities to grant markgtapproval of our products, delays, suspensionithrdnawal of approvals, license revocation,
seizures or recalls of product, operating restoiiand criminal prosecutions, any of which coidaificantly and adversely affect our
business. For example, Nisshin plans to expanzhjiscity to supply API to us by further expandingit current facility. If we are not able to
manufacture Vascepa to required specificationsutgindNisshin, Chemport and BASF, or other poteRal suppliers, we may be delayed in
successfully supplying the product to meet antteigalemand and our anticipated future revenuesiaaicial results may be materially
adversely affected.

Changes in the manufacturing process or procethgleiding a change in the location where the pro@imanufactured or a change of a
third party manufacturer, may require prior FDAieav and approval of the manufacturing process andgulures in accordance with the
FDA's cGMPs. Any new facility may be subject tor@approval inspection by the FDA and would aganuire us to demonstrate product
comparability to the FDA. There are comparableifpreequirements. This review may be costly ancétaonsuming and could delay or
prevent the launch of a product. For example, wefiided a supplemental NDA to add Slanmhor asdtitinal API supplier for Vascepa. If
Slanmhor cannot establish, to the satisfactiomefRDA, that it is in substantial compliance witBMPs, and that the product manufactured at
its site meets FDA requirements, we may not be @bieanufacture API from that site, our supply ¢fl&or Vascepa may be delayed, and out
anticipated future revenues and financial resuliy be materially adversely affected if such sumaiginot be satisfied by our other three API
suppliers.

Furthermore, the FDA and foreign regulatory agenoégjuire that we be able to consistently prodheeAP| and the finished product in
commercial quantities and of specified quality aepeated basis, including proven product stabiibd document our ability to do so. This
requirement is referred to as process validatitis Thcludes stability testing, measurement of intf@s and testing of other product
specifications by validated test methods. If theAFddes not consider the result of the process atitid or required testing to be satisfactory,
the commercial supply of Vascepa may be delayedieamay not be able to supply sufficient quantité¥ascepa to meet anticipated dem:

The FDA and similar foreign regulatory bodies mégpamplement new standards, or change their inéaion and enforcement of
existing standards and requirements, for manufacpackaging or testing of products at any timedfare unable to comply, we may be
subject to regulatory, civil actions or penaltigsieh could significantly and adversely affect ousimess.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinicaliids, and those third parties may not perform sé#istorily, including failing to meet
established deadlines for the completion of suchmidal trials.

Our reliance on third parties for clinical develoggmbactivities reduces our control over these ds: However, if we sponsor clinical
trials, we are responsible for ensuring that edasuoclinical trials is conducted in accordancétwvthe general investigational plan and
protocols for the trials. Moreover, the FDA regsites to comply with standards, commonly referredstgood clinical practices, for
conducting, recording, and reporting the resultslioical trials to assure that data and reporé=uiits are credible and accurate and that the
rights, integrity and confidentiality of trial paripants are protected. Our reliance on third partioes not relieve us of these responsibilitiet
requirements. Furthermore, these third parties atsy have relationships with other entities, sofnelich may be our competitors. If these
third parties do not successfully carry out theintcactual duties or meet expected deadlines, wehmalelayed in obtaining regulatory
approvals for our product candidates and may bayedlin our efforts to successfully commercialize product candidates for targeted
diseases.
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Risks Related to our Intellectual Property
We are dependent on patents, proprietary rights adhfidentiality to protect the commercial potentiaf Vascepa.

Our success depends in part on our ability to atdad maintain intellectual property protection doir drug candidates, technology and
know-how, and to operate without infringing the mietary rights of others. Our ability to succedigfimplement our business plan and to
protect our products with our intellectual propestyl depend in large part on our ability to:

» obtain, defend and maintain patent protection aatket exclusivity for our current and future proti
» preserve any trade secrets relating to our cuaedtfuture product:

e acquire patented or patentable products and teatiesl; anc

« operate without infringing the proprietary rightstioird parties.

Amarin has prosecuted, and is currently prosecutingtiple patent applications to protect the ilgetual property developed during the
Vascepa cardiovascular program. As of the dathisfAnnual Report, we had 40 patent applicatiorthénUnited States that have been either
issued or allowed and more than 30 additional pateplications are pending in the United Statessu@h 40 allowed and issued applications,
we currently have:

» 2issued U.S. patents directed to a pharmaceuwticaposition of Vascepa in a capsule that have ténmatsexpire in 2020 and 2030,
respectively

« lissued U.S. patent covering a composition coimtgihighly pure EPA that expires in 20:

e 29 U.S. patents covering the use of Vascepa iereftte MARINE or anticipated ANCHOR indication thetve terms that expire in
2030,

e 6 additional patent applications for which the @diStates Patent and Trademark Office, or USPT®issaed a Notice of
Allowance each of which with terms that expire 082 and are related to the use of Vascepa in ditieeMARINE or anticipated
ANCHOR indication,

« 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaew@al composition comprised of free fatty acidl$reat the ANCHOR patient
population that expires in 2030, a

« 1 additional patent application for which the Udit®tates Patent and Trademark Office, or USPTOislsasd a Notice of
Allowance with a term that expires in 2030 andeilated to the use of a pharmaceutical compositiompeised of free fatty acids to
treat the MARINE patient populatio

A Notice of Allowance is issued after the USPTO sk determination that a patent can be granteddroapplication. A Notice of
Allowance does not afford patent protection uitd tinderlying patent is issued by the USPTO. Narasse can be given that applications
with issued notices of allowance will be issuegharents or that any of our pending patent apptoativill issue as patents. No assurance can
be given that, if and when issued, our patentsprédl/ent competitors from competing with Vascepa. &ke also pursuing patent applications
related to Vascepa in multiple jurisdictions ousitie United States. We may be dependent in sos®s cgoon third party licensors to pursue
filing, prosecution and maintenance of patent ggittapplications owned or controlled by thoseipartt is possible that third parties will
obtain patents or other proprietary rights thathhige necessary or useful to us. In cases whaxkphrties are first to invent a particular
product or technology, or first to file after vamoprovisions of the America Invents Act of 201Intveto effect on March 16, 2013, it is
possible that those parties will obtain patents Wik be sufficiently broad so as to prevent usnfr utilizing such technology or
commercializing our current and future products.

Although we intend to make reasonable efforts tqmt our current and future intellectual propeigits and to ensure that any
proprietary technology we acquire or develop dassnfringe the rights of other parties,
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we may not be able to ascertain the existencd pb&dntially conflicting claims. Therefore, thasea risk that third parties may make claims of
infringement against our current or future produwtsechnologies. In addition, third parties mayalbée to obtain patents that prevent the s¢
our current or future products or require us taaoba license and pay significant fees or royaltiesrder to continue selling such products.

We may in the future discover the existence of pot&lthat infringe patents that we own or that Haesen licensed to us. If we were to
initiate legal proceedings against a third partgttyp such an infringement, such proceedings doaldostly and time consuming, regardless of
the outcome. No assurances can be given that wklpoevail, and it is possible that, during sugbraceeding, our patent rights could be held
to be invalid, unenforceable or both. Although wiend to protect our trade secrets and propridgtaoyv-how through confidentiality
agreements with our manufacturers, employees amslttants, we may not be able to prevent partibgstito such confidentiality agreements
from breaching these agreements or third part@s fndependently developing or learning of our ¢radcrets.

We anticipate that competitors may from time todtiappose our efforts to obtain patent protectiomé&w technologies or to submit
patented technologies for regulatory approvals. @etitors may seek to oppose our patent applicatmdglay the approval process or to
challenge our granted patents, for example, byeasting a reexamination of our patent at the USR¥F®y filing an opposition in a foreign
patent office, even if the opposition or challehge little or no merit. Such proceedings are gdiyangyhly technical, expensive, and time
consuming, and there can be no assurance thatsttwdlenge would not result in the narrowing anptete revocation of any patent of ours
that was so challenged.

Our issued patents and our pending patents, if amkden issued, may not prevent competitors from cotimgewith Vascepa.

We plan to vigorously defend our rights under isspatents. Other drug companies may challengedlidity, enforceability, or both of
our patents and seek to design its products arounigsued patent claims and gain marketing appfov@eneric versions of Vascepa or
branded competitive products based on new clisizadies. The pharmaceutical industry is highly cetitive and many of our competitors
have greater experience and resources than we Aayeuch competition could undermine sales, mamgednd collaboration efforts for
Vascepa, and thus reduce, perhaps materiallyetfenue potential for Vascepa.

Even if we are successful in enforcing our issuatgpts, we may incur substantial costs and divartagement’s time and attention in
pursuing these proceedings, which could have ariabsglverse effect on us. Patent litigation istiyoand time consuming, and we may not
have sufficient resources to bring these actiorsssoccessful conclusion.

There can be no assurance that any of our pendirajent applications relating to Vascepa or its usil vgsue as patents.

We have filed and are prosecuting numerous fanmligstent applications in the United States aterimationally with claims designed
protect the proprietary position of Vascepa. Fataie of these patent families, we have filed npldtipatent applications. Collectively the
patent applications include numerous independaitnsl and dependent claims. Several of our patgiicagions contain claims that are based
upon what we believe are unexpected and favoraidénfys from the MARINE and ANCHOR trials. If gradt, many of the resulting granted
patents would expire in 2030 or beyond. Howeverasgurance can be given that any of our pendireppapplications will be granted or, if
they grant, that they will prevent competitors froompeting with Vascepa.

Securing patent protection for a product is a cexpirocess involving many legal and factual questidhe patent applications we have
filed in the United States and internationally atearying stages of examination, the timing of ebhis outside our control. The process to
getting a patent granted can be lengthy
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and claims initially submitted are often modifieddrder to satisfy the requirements of the patéfiteo This process includes written and pu
communication with the patent office. The proceass also include direct discussions with the pageatminer. There can be no assurance tha
the patent office will accept our arguments witbpect to any patent application or with respeetrtp claim therein. The timing of the patent
review process is independent of and has no effethe timing of the FDA'’s review of our NDA or siDsubmissions. We cannot predict the
timing or results of any patent application. In &idd, we may elect to submit, or the patent officay require, additional evidence to support
certain of the claims we are pursuing. Furthermitried parties may attempt to submit publicatiomsdonsideration by the patent office during
examination of our patent applications. Providingtsadditional evidence and publications couldqrglthe patent office’s review of our
applications and result in us incurring additiooc@dts. We cannot be certain what commercial vatyegaanted patent in our patent estate will
provide to us.

Despite the use of confidentiality agreements anddooprietary rights agreements, which themselveaybe of limited effectiveness, it
may be difficult for us to protect our trade secset

We will also rely upon trade secrets and know-howelp protect our competitive position. We relytrade secrets to protect technology
in cases when we believe patent protection is pptapriate or obtainable. However, trade secretsidficult to protect. While we require
certain of our academic collaborators, contracamic consultants to enter into confidentiality agrests, we may not be able to adequately
protect our trade secrets or other proprietaryrmédion.

Risks Related to our Business

We and certain of our current and former executieficers have been named as defendants in four laitsthat could result in
substantial costs and divert management’s attention

The market price of our ADSs declined significargfier the October 2013 decision by the FDA AdwsBpmmittee to recommend
against approval of Vascepa in the ANCHOR indicatMVe, and certain of our current and former exeeuifficers, have been named as
defendants in four purported class action lawsnit@ted earlier this year that generally allebattwe and certain of our current and former
officers violated Sections 10(b) and/or 20(a) & 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10betnpigated thereunder by making
allegedly false and/or misleading statements oen@tomissions concerning the ANCHOR sNDA andtezld=DA regulatory approval
process in an effort to lead investors to belidwad Vascepa would receive approval from the FD&@®ANCHOR indication. The complaints
seek unspecified damages, interest, attorneys, &wbkother costs.

We intend to engage in a vigorous defense of theuis, and we believe that we have meritoriougniefs to these claims. However, we
are unable to predict the outcome of these madtetss time. Moreover, any conclusion of thesetaratin a manner adverse to us could have
material adverse effect on our financial conditm business. For example, we could incur subsiartsts not covered by our directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, suffer a significaatlverse impact on our reputation and divert mamag¢'s attention and resources from other
priorities, including the execution of businesssland strategies that are important to our atliityrow our business, any of which could h
a material adverse effect on our business. In mtdiany of these matters could require paymeraisare not covered by, or exceed the limits
of, our available directors’ and officers’ liabylithsurance, which could have a material adverfeebn our operating results or financial
condition.

Potential technological changes in our field of bungss create considerable uncertainty.

We are engaged in the biopharmaceutical field, whicharacterized by extensive research effodsrapid technological progress. New
developments in research are expected to continaeagpid pace in both industry and academia. Wieatsassure you that research and
discoveries by others will not render some or all
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of our programs or product candidates uncompetdivebsolete. Our business strategy is based trupan new and unproven technologies to
the development of therapeutics to improve cardioukar health. We cannot assure you that unforgsexdatems will not develop with these
technologies or applications or that any commescfabsible products will ultimately be developedus.

We are subject to potential product liability.

Following the commercial launch of Vascepa, we Wilsubject to the potential risk of product ligpitlaims relating to the
manufacturing and marketing of Vascepa. Any pexgba is injured as a result of using Vascepa may feagroduct liability claim against us
without having to prove that we were at fault.

In addition, we could be subject to product liagiklaims by persons who took part in clinical fsimvolving our current or former
development stage products. A successful claimdgirbagainst us could have a material adverse effecur business. We cannot guarantee
that a product liability claim will not be assertagainst us in the future.

We may become subiject to liability in connectiorttwihe wind-down of our EN101 program.

In 2007, we purchased Ester Neurosciences Limétedsraeli pharmaceutical company, and its leadyzbcandidate, EN101, an AChE-
R mRNA inhibitor for the treatment of myastheniags, or MG, a debilitating neuromuscular dise&se&onnection with the acquisition, we
assumed a license to certain intellectual propessets related to EN101 from the Yissum ReseargklB@ment Company of The Hebrew
University of Jerusalem.

In June 2009, in keeping with our decision to redfoour efforts on developing improved treatmeotsardiovascular disease and cease
development of all product candidates outside ofoaudiovascular disease focus, we amended the tefiwur acquisition agreement with the
original shareholders of Ester. Under the termthisgfamendment, Amarin was released from all refeand development diligence obligati
contained in the original agreement and was authdrio seek a partner for EN101. The amendmenéngmet also provided that any future
payment obligations payable by us to the formered@ders of Ester would be made only out of incoemeived from potential partners. In
connection with this amendment agreement, in AugQ06® we issued 1,315,789 ordinary shares to ttmdioEster shareholders. Under the
terms of this amendment agreement, the former Bbtmeholders have the option of reacquiring tiggral share capital of Ester if we are
unable to successfully partner EN101.

Following our decision to cease development of ENNMissum terminated its license agreement witHmugune 2011, Yissum
announced that it had entered into a license agreewith BiolineRX Ltd for the development of EN1Dila different indication, inflammato
bowel disease.

We have received several communications on beh#fiedformer shareholders of Ester asserting tleaare in breach of its amended
agreement due to the fact that Yissum terminateliciétnse and we failed to return shares of Eatat,assets relating to EN101, to the
shareholders, as was required under certain cittauross under the amended agreement. We do notdéhiese circumstances constitute a
breach of the amended agreement, but there cao Assarance as to the outcome of this dispute.

A change in our tax residence could have a negatiffect on our future profitability.

Under current UK legislation, a company incorpadate England and Wales, or which is centrally maathgnd controlled in the UK, is
regarded as resident in the UK for taxation purpos@der current Irish legislation, a company areled as resident for tax purposes in
Ireland if it is centrally managed and controlledrieland, or, in certain circumstances, if itnsarporated in Ireland. Where a company is
treated as tax resident under the domestic lawsthfthe UK and Ireland then the provisions ofcéetid(3) of the Double Tax Convention
between the UK
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and Ireland provides that such enterprise shaildsted as resident only in the jurisdiction in ebhits place of effective management is
situated. We have sought to conduct our affaiuich a way so as to be resident only in Irelandaopurposes by virtue of having our place
of effective management situated in Ireland. Trgdirtome of an Irish company is generally taxabléna Irish corporation tax rate of 12.5%.
Non-trading income of an Irish company (e.g., interesbme, rental income or other passive incomegxable at a rate of 25%.

However, we cannot assure you that we are or wiitioue to be resident only in Ireland for tax mggs. It is possible that in the future,
whether as a result of a change in law or the jpecf any relevant tax authority or as a resutimy change in the conduct of our affairs, we
could become, or be regarded as having becomeergsida jurisdiction other than Ireland. Shouldeease to be an Irish tax resident, we ma
be subject to a charge to Irish capital gains tawur assets. Similarly, if the tax residency of ahour subsidiaries were to change from their
current jurisdiction for any of the reasons listdmbve, we may be subject to a charge to local alagstins tax charge on the assets.

The loss of key personnel could have an adverseatfon our business.

We are highly dependent upon the efforts of ourasenanagement. The loss of the services of omeare members of senior
management could have a material adverse effegs.oAs a small company with a streamlined managestarcture, the departure of any key
person could have a significant impact and woulgdtentially disruptive to our business until stiche as a suitable replacement is hired.
Furthermore, because of the specialized naturembusiness, as our business plan progresses Weewilghly dependent upon our ability to
attract and retain qualified scientific, techniaatl key management personnel. As we evolve froevaldpment stage company to a
commercial stage company we may experience turreaweng members of our senior management team. Wénava difficulty identifying
and integrating new executives to replace any fgdes. There is intense competition for qualifiedsonnel in the areas of our activities. In
this environment, we may not be able to attractratain the personnel necessary for the developofenir business, particularly if we do not
achieve profitability. Furthermore, the lesseneasbpbility that we will obtain FDA approval for tFeNCHOR indication could have an adve
impact on our ability to retain and recruit quadipersonnel. In addition, on October 22, 2013eliwrinated approximately fifty percent of c
staff positions worldwide as part of a restructgriollowing the FDA advisory committeerecommendation against the potential Vascepa
expansion. Even though all employees were offeedrance pay in exchange for signing a comprehemsiease of claims, this restructuring
could lead to claims by former employees relatetthéir termination. The restructuring could alsedan adverse impact on our ability to
retain and recruit qualified personnel. The failto@ecruit key scientific, technical and managenparsonnel would be detrimental to our
ability to implement our business plan.

Risks Related to our Financial Position and CapitaRequirements
We have a history of operating losses and anticgttat we will incur continued losses for an indefie period of time.

We have not been profitable in any of the last figseal years. For the fiscal years ended Decer@be2013, 2012, and 2011, we repol
losses of approximately $166.2 million, $179.2 il and $69.1 million, respectively, and we hacaaoumulated deficit at December 31,
2013 of $913.9 million. Substantially all of oureypting losses resulted from costs incurred in eotion with our research and development
programs, from general and administrative costsdated with our operations, costs related to trarnercialization of Vascepa, and from
non-cash losses on changes in the fair value afawaderivative liabilities. Additionally, as a édsof our significant expenses relating to
research and development and to commercializatierexpect to continue to incur significant opergtimsses for an indefinite period. Because
of the numerous risks and uncertainties associatiddeveloping and commercializing pharmaceutmralducts, we are unable to predict the
magnitude of these future losses. Our historicdessombined with expected future losses, haveahddvill continue to have an adverse effec
on our cash resources, shareholders’ deficit antting capital.
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Although we began generating revenue from Vascepdanuary 2013, we may never be profitable.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon duilitg to generate revenue. In January 2013, weahdg generate revenue from the
marketing of Vascepa for use in the MARINE indioati but we may not be able to generate sufficiemémue to attain profitability. Our abili
to generate profits on sales of Vascepa is subjettie market acceptance and commercial succegasaepa and our ability to manufacture
commercial quantities of Vascepa through thirdiparat acceptable cost levels, and may also deyeorl our ability to enter into one or more
strategic collaborations to effectively market @etl Vascepa.

Even though Vascepa has been approved by the FDddceting in the United States in the MARINE ication, it may not gain mark
acceptance or achieve commercial success and inmagr be approved for the ANCHOR indication or ather indication. In addition, we
anticipate continuing to incur significant costs@dated with commercializing Vascepa. We may w©bieve profitability soon after generating
product sales, if ever. If we are unable to geresafficient product revenues, we will not becomafitable and may be unable to continue
operations without continued funding.

Our historical financial results do not form an actate basis for assessing our current business.

As a consequence of the many years developing Yadoe commercialization and the recent commetaiahch of Vascepa in the
MARINE indication in the United States, our hist@d financial results do not form an accurate bapan which investors should base their
assessment of our business and prospects. Inaddite expect that our costs will increase subisiiynas we continue to commercialize
Vascepa in the MARINE indication and seek to obtadditional regulatory approval of Vascepa in ti¢GHOR indication, including the
continuation of the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outesnstudy. Accordingly, our historical financial uéts reflect a substantially different
business from that currently being conducted aonhfthat expected in the future. In addition, weehavimited history of obtaining regulatory
approval for, and no demonstrated ability to susftdly commercialize, a product candidate. Consatjyeany predictions about our future
performance may not be as accurate as they coufdieehad a history of successfully developing anchmercializing pharmaceutical
products.

Our operating results are unpredictable and maydtuate. If our operating results are below the exjpations of securities analysts or
investors, the trading price of our stock could diee.

Our operating results are difficult to predict amitl likely fluctuate from quarter to quarter andar to year, and Vascepa prescription
figures will likely fluctuate from month to montbue to the recent approval by the FDA of Vasceghtha lack of historical sales data,
Vascepa sales will be difficult to predict from jpef to period and as a result, you should not oel\ascepa sales results in any period as
indicative of future performance, and sales of \é@scmay be below the expectation of securitiesyatsbr investors in the future. We believe
that our quarterly and annual results of operatioayg be affected by a variety of factors, including

» the level of demand for Vascey

» the extent to which coverage and reimbursemern¥ésicepa is available from government and healthidtration authorities,
private health insurers, managed care programeted thirc-party payers

« the timing, cost and level of investment in ouesaind marketing efforts to support Vascepa saléshe resulting effectiveness of
those efforts

« additional developments regarding our intellecpralperty portfolio and regulatory exclusivity protens, if any;

» the results of our sNDA application for the ANCH@Tication and the results of the REDUCE-IT studyost-approval studies
for Vascepa

» outcomes of litigation and other legal proceedimgsluding recently initiated shareholder litigatiaegulatory matters and tax
matters;
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* whether we continue the REDU-IT study; and
» the impact of the restructuring of the company enpénted on October 22, 20:

We may require substantial additional resourcesftmd our operations. If we cannot find additionalapital resources, we will have
difficulty in operating as a going concern and gramg our business.

We currently operate with limited resources. Weedwa that our cash and cash equivalents balang&34f.5 million at December 31,
2013 will be sufficient to fund our projected op@ras for at least the next twelve months.

In order to fully realize the market potential chdtepa, we may need to enter into a strategicomoléion or raise additional capital. We
may also need additional capital to fully complete REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes trial.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including:

» revenue generated from the commercial sale of \t@sitethe MARINE indication and, subject to FDA apyal, the ANCHOR
indication;

» the costs associated with commercializing VascepthE MARINE indication in the United States and &dditional indications in
the United States and in jurisdictions in which neeeive regulatory approval, if any, including st of sales and marketing

capabilities, and the cost and timing of securiognmercial supply of Vascepa and the timing of @ntginto strategic collaboratic
with others relating to the commercialization ofs¢apa, if at all, and the terms of any such colatban;

» the continued cost associated with our RED-IT cardiovascular outcomes study, if we continws gtudy;

» the time and costs involved in obtaining additiomgulatory approvals for Vascej

» the extent to which we continue to develop intdynacquire or i-license new products, technologies or businessek
» the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and eciftg any patent claims and other intellectual proprights.

If we require additional funds and adequate furrdsnat available to us in amounts or on terms aebdgpto us or on a timely basis, or at
all, our commercialization efforts for Vascepa nsagfer materially, and we may need to delay theaadement of the REDUCE-IT
cardiovascular outcomes trial.

As a result of recent worldwide reductions in ouovkforce, we are in the process of reallocating tan employment responsibilities and
may outsource certain corporate functions. As aué#swe may be more dependent on third parties &ofprm these corporate functions
than we have been in the past.

As a result of the recent worldwide reductionsum workforce, we have been required to outsourcwicecorporate functions. This has
made us more dependent on thialties for the performance of these functions. @woing results of operations could be adversié#ceed tc
the extent that we are unable to effectively realte employee responsibilities, retain key emplsye®intain effective internal control over
financial reporting and effective disclosure cotgrand procedures, establish and maintain agresmetfit competent thirgharty contractors ¢
terms that are acceptable to us, and effectivelyapa the work performed by any retained third-paatytractors.
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Continued negative economic conditions would likélgive a negative effect on our ability to obtaiméincing on acceptable terms.

While we may seek additional funding through publigrivate financings, we may not be able to abfaiancing on acceptable terms
at all. There can be no assurance that we willblieta access equity or credit markets in orddini@nce our current operations or expand
development programs for Vascepa, or that thedenailbe a further deterioration in financial maskand confidence in economies. We may
also have to scale back or further restructureoperations. If we are unable to obtain additionaling on a timely basis, we may be required
to curtail or terminate some or all of our reseasckevelopment programs or our commercializatiostsgies.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to pexisting shareholders, restrict our operations mrquire us to relinquish rights.

To the extent we are permitted under our PurchadeSale Agreement with BioPharma, we may seekiadditcapital through a
combination of private and public equity offeringept financings and collaboration, strategic acehising arrangements. To the extent tha
raise additional capital through the sale of eqaitgonvertible debt securities, your ownershigiest will be diluted, and the terms may
include liquidation or other preferences that adebr affect your rights as a shareholder.

As of December 31, 2013, there were warrants cudstg for the purchase of up to 9,789,776 ADSs eaplesenting one of our ordini
shares, with a weighted average exercise pricd dd®per share. We may issue additional warrarpsitchase ADSs or ordinary shares in
connection with any future financing we may condlretaddition, on January 9, 2012, we issued $1Bilomin aggregate principal amount of
3.50% exchangeable senior notes due 2032, or tles.nthe notes are exchangeable under certaimwtemces into cash, our ADS, or a
combination of cash and ADS, at our election, witturrent exchange rate of 113.4752 ADS per $1pdid@ipal amount of notes. Although
intend to settle these notes in cash, if we elegtgdical settlement, the notes would initiallyebeehangeable into 17,021,280 ADS.

Debt financing, if available, may involve agreenseifiiat include covenants limiting or restricting ability to take specific actions such
as incurring additional debt, making capital expends or declaring dividends. If we raise additibfunds through collaboration, strategic
alliance and licensing arrangements with thirdipartwe may have to relinquish valuable rightsuptechnologies, Vascepa or product
candidates beyond the rights we have already ngbhgd, or grant licenses on terms that are nair&ble to us.

Potential business combinations or other strategji@nsactions may disrupt our business or divert naayement’s attention.

On a regular basis, we explore potential businesshination transactions, including an acquisitibm®by a third party, exclusive
licenses of Vascepa or other strategic transactiogsllaborations with third parties. The consurtioraand performance of any such future
transactions or collaborations will involve risksich as:

« diversion of managerial resources from-to-day operations
e exposure to litigation from the counterpartiestig auch transaction, other third parties or ourethalders
e misjudgment with respect to the vali
» higher than expected transaction cost:
* aninability to successfully consummate any suahdaction or collaboratio
As a result of these risks, we may not be ablehieae the expected benefits of any such transacti@ollaboration or deliver the value

thereof to our shareholders. If we are unsuccegsftdnsummating any such transaction or collalbmmatve may be required to reevaluate oul
business only after we have incurred substantiaéeses and devoted significant management timeesodirces.
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Risks Related to Ownership of our ADSs and Commonlares
The price of our ADSs and common shares may be tiiga

The stock market has from time to time experiergigdificant price and volume fluctuations that nieeyunrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. In additibwe, tnarket prices of the securities of many pharmtézd and medical technology companies
have been especially volatile in the past, andtthizd is expected to continue in the future.

As of February 20, 2014 we had 172,906,063 comrhares outstanding including 172,440,210 sharesdseADSs and 465,853 held as
common shares (which are not held in the form oS8P In our October 2009 private placement we $&fe4 million ADSs and warrants to
purchase an additional 33.2 million ADSs. Thera ifsk that there may not be sufficient liquiditythe market to accommodate significant
increases in selling activity or the sale of aéabdpck of our securities. Our ADSs have histolychhd limited trading volume, which may also
result in volatility. If any of our large investgrsuch as the participants in our October 200%peiplacement, seek to sell substantial amount:
of our ADSs, particularly if these sales are impid or disorderly manner, or other investors pgecthat these sales could occur, the market
price of our ADSs could decrease significantly.

The market price of our ADSs and common sharesatsybe affected by factors such as:
» developments or disputes concerning ongoing patasecution efforts and any future patent or petpry rights
» regulatory developments in the United States, th@iean Union or other countrie
» actual or potential medical results relating to products or our competit¢ products;
» interim failures or setbacks in product developm
e innovation by us or our competitol
e currency exchange rate fluctuations; i
e perioc-to-period variations in our results of operatic

A share price of less than $1.00 may impact our N listing.

As of the date of this Quarterly Report, our AD&s eurrently trading above $1.00; however, recesutket activity has resulted in a
decrease in our stock price, and our stock price falabelow the $1.00 threshold. If our closingllgrice is less than $1.00 for 30 consecutive
trading days, we would receive a NASDAQ staff deficy letter indicating that we are not in compdiarwith the minimum bid price
requirement for continued listing. Such a letteldarigger an automatic 180 calendar day peridthiwiwhich the company could regain
compliance. Compliance is regained at any timengyitis period if the Amarin closing bid price .80 per share or more for a minimum of
10 consecutive trading days. If we do not regaimgitance during this period, our ADSs could be stelil from The NASDAQ Global Market,
transferred to a listing on The NASDAQ Capital Metkor delisted from the NASDAQ markets altogetfdre failure to maintain our listing
on The NASDAQ Global Market could harm the liquyditf our ADSs and could have an adverse effechemarket price of our ADSs.

Actual or potential sales of our common shares hy @mployees, including members of our senior maeatent team, pursuant to pre-
arranged stock trading plans could cause our stqarice to fall or prevent it from increasing for nuerous reasons, and actual or
potential sales by such persons could be viewedtiegly by other investors.

In accordance with the guidelines specified unddeR0b51 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 andpolicies regarding stor
transactions, a number of our directors and empglsyi@cluding members of
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our senior management team, have adopted and méinwe to adopt pre-arranged stock trading plarselica portion of our common stock.
Generally, sales under such plans by members cdemior management team and directors requirefilitigs. Actual or potential sales of
our ADSs by such persons could cause the priceitoABSs to fall or prevent it from increasing farmerous reasons. For example, a
substantial amount of our ADSs becoming availabtebging perceived to become available) for sataénpublic market could cause the
market price of our ADSs to fall or prevent it frantreasing. Also, actual or potential sales byhsuersons could be viewed negatively by
other investors.

We may be a passive foreign investment companyBIC, which would result in adverse U.S. federalktaonsequences to U.S. investc

Amarin Corporation plc and certain of our subsiisimay be classified as “passive foreign investrnempanies,” or PFICs, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. The tests for deténgniRFIC status for a taxable year depend uponetlagive values of certain categories of
assets and the relative amounts of certain kindscoine. The application of these factors depempds wur financial results, which are beyond
our ability to predict or control, and which may $aebject to legal and factual uncertainties.

We believe it prudent to assume that we were dladsas a PFIC in 2012. We do not believe that veeevclassified as a PFIC in 2013.
Our status as a PFIC is subject to change in futeiaes.

If we are a PFIC, U.S. holders of notes, ordindigres or ADSs would be subject to adverse U.Sréédeome tax consequences, such
as ineligibility for any preferred tax rates on itapgains or on actual or deemed dividends, istecbarges on certain taxes treated as deferre
and additional reporting requirements under U.8effal income tax laws and regulations. WhetheroothS. holders of our ADSs make a
timely “QEF election” or “mark-to-market electiomiay affect the U.S. federal income tax consequetmcesS. holders with respect to the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of Amarin $®and any distributions such U.S. Holders mayivecé& QEF election and other
elections that may mitigate the effect of our baitagsified as a PFIC are unavailable with resfzetiie notes. Investors should consult their
own tax advisors regarding all aspects of the apptin of the PFIC rules to the notes, ordinaryehand ADSs.

Failure to meet our obligations under our Purchasand Sale Agreement with BioPharma could adverseffeat our financial results and
liquidity.
Pursuant to our December 2012 Purchase and Saéegnt with BioPharma, we are obligated to makengays to BioPharma based
on the amount of our net product sales of Vascafdaaay future products based on ethyl-EPA, or cedv@roducts, subject to certain quarterly
caps.

Pursuant to this agreement, we may not, among tihegs: (i) incur indebtedness greater than aipdamount, which we refer to as
the Indebtedness Covenant; (ii) pay a dividencdtieerocash distribution, unless we have cash arfu @gsivalents in excess of a specified
amount after such payment; (iii) amend or restatenemorandum and articles of association unlesls amendments or restatements do not
affect BioPharma's interests under the transactiohencumber any of the collateral securing cenfprmance under the agreement; and
(v) abandon certain patent rights, in each cadeowitthe consent of BioPharma.

Upon a transaction resulting in a change of comfé@marin, as defined in the agreement, BioPharritlsbe automatically entitled to
receive any amounts not previously paid, up toroarimum repayment obligation. As defined in thesagnent, “change of control” includes,
among other things, (i) a greater than 50 perdeamge in the ownership of Amarin, (ii) a sale apdisition of any collateral securing our debt
with BioPharma and (iii), unless BioPharma has lyggd a certain amount under the indebtednesdicémesing of Vascepa to a third party for
sale in the United States. The acceleration opthyanent obligation in the event of a change of mntansaction may make us less attractive
to potential acquirers, and the payment of suck$wut of our available cash or acquisition prosegduld reduce acquisition proceeds for ou
stockholders.
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To secure our obligations under the agreement,revetgd BioPharma a security interest in our righisatents, trademarks, trade names
domain names, copyrights, know-how and regulatppravals related to the covered products, all b@oigrecords relating to the foregoing
and all proceeds of the foregoing, which we refeaig the collateral. If we (i) fail to deliver aymaent when due and do not remedy that failure
within specific notice period, (ii) fail to maintaa first-priority perfected security interest hetcollateral in the United States and do not
remedy that failure after receiving notice of staiture or (iii) become subject to an event of baupitcy, then BioPharma may attempt to
collect the maximum amount payable by us underapieement (after deducting any payments we hagady made).

There can be no assurance that we will not brdaeledvenants or other terms of, or that an evedef#ult will not occur under, this
agreement and, if a breach or event of defaultis¢thiere can be no assurance that we will betaldare the breach within the time permitted.
Any failure to pay our obligations when due, angdwh or default of our covenants or other obligeti@r any other event that causes an
acceleration of payment at a time when we do ne¢ Isafficient resources to meet these obligatioosld have a material adverse effect on
business, results of operations, financial conditiad future viability.

Our existing indebtedness could adversely affect fimancial condition.

Our existing indebtedness, which we entered inttamuary 2012, consists of $150.0 million in aggtegrincipal amount of
3.50% exchangeable senior notes due 2032, withigioms for the notes to be called on or after Janif, 2017. Our indebtedness and the
related annual debt service requirements may aelyarapact our business, operations and finan@abdion in the future. For example, they
could:

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse egbo@nd industry condition:

» limit our ability to raise additional funds by bowing or engaging in equity sales in order to féure working capital, capital
expenditures, research and development and otheraecorporate requiremen

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaaish to service payments on our deb

» limit our flexibility to react to changes in our &iness and the industry in which we operate outsye certain strategic
opportunities that may present themsel

The accounting for convertible debt securities thaty be settled in cash, such as our notes, cowdseéha material effect on our reported
financial results.

Under the FASB Accounting Standards CodificatiaonABC, we are required to separately account fetigbility and equity componer
of the convertible debt instruments (such as theg)dhat may be settled entirely or partially &islc upon conversion in a manner that reflects
the issuer’s economic interest cost. The effe&®E on the accounting for our outstanding convktitotes may be that the equity componen
is required to be included in the additional paid:apital section of stockholders’ equity on ounsalidated balance sheets and the value of tt
equity component would be treated as original isiseount for purposes of accounting for the delobjgonent of the notes. As a result, we are
required to record nooash interest expense as a result of the amodizafithe discounted carrying value of the notethéir face amount ov
the term of the notes. We may be required to requgtter interest expense in our financial resudtsaduse ASC may require interest to include
both the current period’s amortization of the ddibtount and the instrument’s coupon interest, wisimuld adversely affect our reported or
future financial results and the trading price of ADSs.

Servicing our debt may require a significant amarfrdash, and we may not have sufficient cash flmm our business to provide the
funds sufficient to pay our substantial debt.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the jpc, to pay interest on or to refinance our irnddbess, including the notes, depends
on our future performance, which is subject to @coie, financial, competitive and
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other factors beyond our control. Our business nwycontinue to generate cash flow from operatinnthe future sufficient to service our de
and make necessary capital expenditures. If werzable to generate such cash flow, we may be redjtdiradopt one or more alternatives,
such as selling assets, restructuring debt or mibgadditional equity capital on terms that mayoberous or highly dilutive. Our ability to
refinance our indebtedness will depend on the abpiairkets and our financial condition at such tikMe may not be able to engage in any of
these activities or engage in these activitiesasirdble terms, which could result in a defaulban debt obligations, including the notes, and
have a material adverse effect on the trading mficaur ADSs.

We may be able to incur substantial additional delite future, subject to the restrictions corgdiin our future debt instruments, if any,
which would intensify the risks discussed above.

The conditional exchange feature of the notes,rifjgered, may adversely affect our financial conidih and operating results.

In the event the conditional exchange feature efrthtes is triggered, holders of notes will betktito exchange the notes at any time
during specified periods at their option. If onenwore holders elect to exchange their notes, umlesslect to satisfy its exchange obligation by
delivering solely the ADSs (other than cash in lié@any fractional ADS), we would be required tétleea portion or all of its exchange
obligation through the payment of cash, which cadgersely affect our liquidity. In addition, eviéimolders do not elect to exchange their
notes, we could be required under applicable adamyrules to reclassify all or a portion of thetstanding principal of the notes as a current
rather than long-term liability, which would resiita material reduction of our net working capital

The fundamental change repurchase feature of thet@®may delay or prevent an otherwise beneficidke@ver attempt of us.

The indenture governing the notes will requireaiseppurchase the notes for cash upon the occurdreceundamental change of Amarin
and, in certain circumstances, to increase theamgsrate for a holder that exchanges its notesrinection with a make-whole fundamental
change. A takeover of us may trigger the requirdrtieat we purchase the notes and/or increase ttfeaage rate, which could make it more
costly for a potential acquirer to engage in a cotory transaction with us. Such additional costs have the effect of delaying or
preventing a takeover of us that would otherwisédeficial to investors.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on the oetinshares in the foreseeable future.

We have never paid dividends on ordinary sharedanbt anticipate paying any cash dividends orotd@ary shares in the foreseeable
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ottickes of Association, which requires t
all dividends must be approved by our Board of Elwes and, in some cases, our shareholders, andnihape paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined ommaconsolidated basis.

The rights of our shareholders may differ from thréghts typically offered to shareholders of a U.&rporation.

We are incorporated under English law. The riglitsadders of ordinary shares and, therefore, aedhthe rights of holders of ADSs,
governed by English law, including the provisioffishe Companies Act 2006, and by our Articles ofddation. These rights differ in certain
respects from the rights of shareholders in typit&. corporations. The principal differences idguhe following:

* Under English law and our Articles of Associatieach shareholder present at a meeting has onlyaiaeinless demand is made
for a vote on a poll, in which case each holdes gee vote per share owned. Under U.S. law, eaatelsblder typically is entitled
to one vote per share at all meetir
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Under English law, it is only on a poll that thenmioer of shares determines the number of votesdehatay cast. You should be
aware, however, that the voting rights of ADSsals® governed by the provisions of a deposit agesnvith our depositary ban

» Under English law, subject to certain exceptions disapplications, each shareholder generally hesnpptive rights to subscribe
on a proportionate basis to any issuance of ordislaares or rights to subscribe for, or to consedurities into, ordinary shares for
cash. Under U.S. law, shareholders generally dtlnae¢ preemptive rights unless specifically graimettie certificate of
incorporation or otherwist

e Under English law and our Articles of Associatiorrtain matters require the approval of 75% ofsti@reholders who vote (in
person or by proxy) on the relevant resolutiongia poll shareholders representing 75% of thenarglishares voting (in person or
by proxy)), including amendments to the ArticlesAskociation. This may make it more difficult fos to complete corporate
transactions deemed advisable by our board oftdirecUnder U.S. law, generally only majority shesieler approval is required to
amend the certificate of incorporation or to apjrother significant transactior

* Inthe United Kingdom, takeovers may be structaedthkeover offers or as schemes of arrangemederlinglish law, a bidder
seeking to acquire us by means of a takeover afferld need to make an offer for all of our outsiagdrdinary shares/ADSs. If
acceptances are not received for 90% or more ddrthi@ary shares/ADSs under the offer, under Ehdésv, the bidder cannot
complete a “squeeze out” to obtain 100% contralofAccordingly, acceptances of 90% of our outdtemdrdinary shares/ADSs
will likely be a condition in any takeover offer &mquire us, not 50% as is more common in tendersofor corporations organized
under Delaware law. By contrast, a scheme of amamagt, the successful completion of which wouldilteéa a bidder obtaining
100% control of us, requires the approval of a migjo@f shareholders voting at the meeting andesenting 75% of the ordinary
shares voting for approvz

e Under English law and our Articles of Associatishareholders and other persons whom we know or teas®nable cause to
believe are, or have been, interested in our shmagsbe required to disclose information regardivar interests in our shares ug
our request, and the failure to provide the reguindormation could result in the loss or restoctiof rights attaching to the shares,
including prohibitions on certain transfers of #iares, withholding of dividends and loss of votiigints. Comparable provisions
generally do not exist under U.S. lg

* The quorum requirement for a shareholders’ measirgminimum of two shareholders entitled to vdttha meeting and present in
person or by proxy or, in the case of a sharehaldech is a corporation, represented by a duly eugkd officer. Under U.S. law,
majority of the shares eligible to vote must getetze present (in person or by proxy) at a shalddrs’ meeting in order to
constitute a quorum. The minimum number of shaggsired for a quorum can be reduced pursuant to\agon in a company’s
certificate of incorporation or bylaws, but typilgahot below on-third of the shares entitled to vote at the mee

U.S. shareholders may not be able to enforce diaibilities against us.

We are incorporated under the laws of England aate8y and our subsidiaries are incorporated irouarjurisdictions, including foreign
jurisdictions. A number of the officers and direstof each of our subsidiaries are -residents of the United States, and all or a suist
portion of the assets of such persons are locaitside the United States. As a result, it may mopaissible for investors to affect service of
process within the United States upon such persotsenforce against them judgments obtained $ Gourts predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the federal securities laakthe United States. We have been advised b¥nglish solicitors that there is doubt as to the
enforceability in England in original actions, aractions for enforcement of judgments of U.S. txwf civil liabilities to the extent predicat
upon the federal securities laws of the UnitedeStat
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U.S. holders of the ADSs or ordinary shares maydubject to U.S. federal income taxation at ordinancome tax rates on undistributed
earnings and profits.

There is a risk that we will be classified as atoaled foreign corporation, or CFC, for U.S. fedkeincome tax purposes. If we are
classified as a CFC, any ADS holder or sharehdluris a U.S. person that owns directly, indineotl by attribution, 10% or more of the
voting power of our outstanding shares may be stiligelU.S. income taxation at ordinary income t@bes on all or a portion of our
undistributed earnings and profits attributabléstabpart F income.” Such 10% holder may also baléxat ordinary income tax rates on any
gain realized on a sale of ordinary shares or AD$he extent of our current and accumulated egsnamd profits attributable to such shares.
The CFC rules are complex and U.S. Holders of tdeary shares or ADSs are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible
application of the CFC rules to them in their parar circumstances.

ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties
The following table lists the location, use and evahip interest of our principal properties as ebfaary 20, 2014:

Location Use Ownership Size (sq. ft.
Dublin, Ireland Offices Leasec 32C
Bedminster, New Jersey, U< Offices Leasec 23,23
Groton, Connecticut, US. Offices Leasec 4,327
Ely, Cambridgeshire, UK (Gemini Hous
Ground Flooi Offices Leased and subl 7,13¢
First Floor Offices Assigned 2,97t

Effective July 1, 2011, we leased 9,747 squaredgeffice space in Bedminster, NJ. The lease nasraled, terminates on March 31,
2018, and may also be terminated with six monthar piotice. On December 6, 2011 we leased an additi2,142 square feet of space in the
same location. On December 15, 2012 and May 8,,20&3eased an additional 2,601 and 10,883 sqeateof space, respectively, in the st
location. In January 2014, the December 6, 201del@as terminated.

Effective November 1, 2011, we leased 320 squatedieoffice space in Dublin, Ireland. The leasenieates on October 31, 2014 and
may be renewed annually.

Commencing on November 28, 2011, we leased 4,32aredeet of office space in Groton, CT. The ldasminates on January 31, 2015
and may be extended for one three year term.

Our lease for office space in Ely, Cambridgeshiires in November 2014. The ground floor spacelges sublet through the end of
the lease term. On August 27, 2002 the lease &firtst floor space was assigned to a third patgarin however, remains ultimately
responsible for the lease through the end of thedderm.

We believe our existing facilities are adequateoior current needs and that additional space withiailable in the future on
commercially reasonable terms as needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On November 1, 2013, a purported investor of Améiléd a putative class action lawsuit captiorgtdven Sklar v. Amarin Corporation
plc et al., No. 13-cv-6954 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013) in the UDsstrict Court for the
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District of New Jersey. Substantially similar lawsucaptioneddove v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-07882 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 5,
2013),Bentley v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-08283 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 20, 2013)dSiegel v. Amarin Corporation pldNo. 3:13-
cv-07210 (D.N.J. Nov. 27, 2013), were subsequentiyfih the U.S. District Court for the District oEW Jersey and U.S. District Court for
Southern District of New York. On December 9, 2@18 cases filed in the Southern District of New R'avere transferred to the District of

New Jersey, where the four cases are now proce@dingnt of the same judge pending a formal omt@rsolidating the action

Each of the complaints asserts claims under tharies Exchange Act of 1934. The complaints alldgeg Amarin and certain of its
current and former officers and directors made taisments and omissions regarding the FDA’s witlegp to approve Vascepa’'s ANCHOR
indication and the potential relevance of data ftbmongoing REDUCE-IT trial to that approval. Tihgative class periods alleged in the
complaints vary from the July 9, 2009-October 1&l 2period alleged in theklarandSiegelcomplaints, the July 9, 2009-October 16, 2013
period alleged in thBentleycomplaint, and August 8, 2012-October 16, 2013qukaileged in th®ovecomplaint. The lawsuits seek
unspecified monetary damages and attorneys’ feds@sts.

On January 3, 2014, ten plaintiffs and their reBpecounsel moved for appointment as lead pldiatifi lead counsel for the putative
class. The plaintiffs also moved for consolidatidrihe pending actions. The motion for appointnaiead plaintiff was set for February 3,
2014, but has not yet been decided. After the Cappbints a lead plaintiff, and consolidates theas, we expect that the lead plaintiff will
file a consolidated amended complaint that willddae the operative complaint for the action.

We believe that we have valid defenses and wewgtirously defend against the claims. We are unebteasonably estimate the loss
exposure, if any, associated with these claimshéle insurance coverage that is anticipated torawe significant loss exposure that may
arise from this action after payment by us of theogiated deducible obligation under such insurangerage.

On February 27, 2014, we filed a lawsuit againstRBA that challenges FDA's denial of our requestfive-year exclusivity for
Vascepa based on our reading of the relevant stahd inconsistency with FDA'’s past actions. Ounplaint requests that the court vacate
FDA's decision, declare that Vascepa is entitlethtobenefits of five-year statutory exclusivitgrithe FDA from accepting any ANDA or
similar application for which Vascepa is the refare-listed drug until after the statutory exclusiyeriod expires, and if necessary, set aside
FDA's premature acceptance of any such application.

In addition to the above, in the ordinary coursbusiness, we are from time to time involved indaits, claims, investigations,
proceedings, and threats of litigation relatingntellectual property, commercial arrangements @thér matters. While the outcome of these
proceedings and claims cannot be predicted wittaicey, as of December 31, 2013, we were not pargny legal or arbitration proceedings
that may have, or have had in the recent pastifisigmt effects on our financial position or prafitility. No governmental proceedings are
pending or, to our knowledge, contemplated agaiastWe are not a party to any material proceedmgghich any director, member of senior
management or affiliate of ours is either a padyeaise to us or our subsidiaries or has a matetigdest adverse to us or our subsidiaries.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Market Information

The following table sets forth the high and lowces for our ADSs in each of the quarters over #st fwo fiscal years, as quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Market

Common Stock Price

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
High Low High Low
First Quarter $9.2¢4 $6.77 $12.4¢ $ 6.1¢
Second Quarte $7.9¢ $5.3¢€ $15.4( $ 9.3C
Third Quartel $7.4C $5.12 $15.9¢ $10.8¢
Fourth Quarte $7.3¢ $1.3¢€ $12.9¢ $ 7.5€

Shareholders

As of January 31, 2014, there were approximate8/t&8ders of record of our ordinary shares. Becanagy ordinary shares are held by
brokers nominees, we are unable to estimate thertotber of shareholders represented by thesedrbéotders. Our depositary, Citibank,
N.A., constitutes a single record holder of ourilady shares

Dividends

We have never paid dividends on common shares amdtanticipate paying any cash dividends on tmemon shares in the foresee:
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ottickes of Association, which requires t
all dividends must be approved by our Board of Elwes and, in some cases, our stockholders, andomigiybe paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined ommaconsolidated basis.

Under our Purchase and Sale Agreement with Biophawe are restricted from paying a dividend onaammon shares, unless we h
cash and cash equivalents in excess of a speaifiedint after such payment.
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Performance Graph—3 Year

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatietincorporated by reference into any future §limder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedptto the extent that we specifically incorperiatoy reference into such filing.

We believe the indices below are the most appripimalices against which the total shareholdernedfi Amarin should be measured.
The NASDAQ Bio Index has been selected becausean index of U.S. quoted biotechnology and phaeutical companies.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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Company/Market/Peer Compa 12/31/201. 12/31/201. 12/31/201:
Amarin Corporation PL( $ 91.3¢ $ 98.6¢ $ 24.0:
NASDAQ Composite Inde $ 99.21 $ 116.8: $ 163.7¢
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: $ 112.0% $ 148.2 $ 246.1¢

Source: NASDAQ-Whole Market index and Bio index. The NASDAQ Markadex has been used to compare the shareholden fer
all companies listed on the NASDAQ Stock Markete TWASDAQ Bio index has been used to give a comparif the shareholder returns

from biotechnology and pharmaceutical compani¢edisn the NASDAQ Stock Market.
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Performance Graph—5 Year

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatietincorporated by reference into any future §limder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedptto the extent that we specifically incorperiatoy reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-yeturn provided to stockholders of Amarin’s ADSktwe to the cumulative total
returns of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDRBIiotechnology Index. An investment of $100 (wiginvestment of all dividends)
is assumed to have been made in our ADSs and inafdbe indexes on December 31, 2008 and itsivelaerformance is tracked through
December 31, 2013.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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Company/Market/Peer Compa 12/31/200! 12/31/2011 12/31/201. 12/31/201. 12/31/201:
Amarin Corporation PL( $ 201.4: $ 1,154.9: $ 1,054.9: $ 1,139.4 $  277.4¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde $  145.3¢ $ 171.7¢ $ 170.3¢ $ 200.6: $ 2812
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: $ 115.9¢ $ 133.6: $ 149.7¢ $ 198.U $ 328.8¢

Information about Our Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding our equity compensation plariacorporated by reference in Iltem 12 of Pdrotithis annual report on Form 10-
K.

UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION
Capital Gains

If you are not resident or ordinarily residentlie tJnited Kingdom, or UK, for UK tax purposes, ywill not be liable for UK tax on
capital gains realized or accrued on the salel@ratisposition of common shares or ADSs unlessdinemon shares or ADSs are held in
connection with your trade carried on in the UKotigh a branch or agency and the common shares 8sAEe or have been used, held or
acquired for the purposes of such trade or suafcbrar agency.

An individual holder of common shares or ADSs wkases to be resident or ordinarily resident inidKeor UK tax purposes for a
period of less than 5 years and who disposes ofrtumshares or ADSs during that period may alsaaiéel on returning to the UK for UK
capital gains tax despite the fact that the indigldnay not be resident or ordinarily residentia UK at the time of the disposal.
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Inheritance Tax

If you are an individual domiciled in the Unitedags and are not a national of the UK for the psepmf the Inheritance and Gift Tax
Treaty 1978 between the United States and the bicammon shares or ADSs beneficially owned by widlnot generally be subject to UK
inheritance tax on your death or on a gift madeday during your lifetime, provided that any appbtaUnited States federal gift or estate tax
liability is paid, except where the common shar&DSS is part of the business property of your UKmpanent establishment.

Where the common shares or ADSs have been pladadsirby a settlor who, at the time of the setdamwas domiciled in the United
States and not a national of the UK, the commoneshar ADSs will not generally be subject to UKenitance tax.

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax
Transfer of ADSs

No UK stamp duty will be payable on an instrumeansferring an ADS or on a written agreement todfer an ADS provided that the
instrument of transfer or the agreement to tranisfexecuted and remains at all times outside #eWhere these conditions are not met, the
transfer of, or agreement to transfer, an ADS catighending on the circumstances, attract a chargé valorem stamp duty at the rate of
0.5% of the value of the consideration.

No stamp duty reserve tax will be payable in respéan agreement to transfer an ADS, whether nirade outside the UK.

Issue and Transfer of Common She

The issue of common shares by Amarin will not gige to a charge to UK stamp duty or stamp dutgmestax.

Transfers of common shares, as opposed to ADSsativiict ad valorem stamp duty at the rate of 0Od8%he amount or value of the
consideration. A charge to stamp duty reservedathe rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of iwestderation, will arise on an agreement to
transfer common shares. The stamp duty resenis f@yable on the seventh day of the month follgwire month in which the charge arises.

Where an instrument of transfer is executed ang staimped before the expiry of a period of six gdarginning with the date of that
agreement, any stamp duty reserve tax that hase®sot paid ceases to be payable.

Taxation of Dividends
Under UK law, there is no withholding tax on diviutks.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected financial data set forth below asdffar the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012,,2@110, and 2009 have been
derived from the audited consolidated financialesteents of Amarin. This data should be read inwoetjon with our audited consolidated
financial statements and related notes which aeded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 1@#kd “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” included in Item 7 below. Historical resuftre not necessarily indicative of
operating results to be expected in the future.

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share amount:

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenue: $ 26,35: $ — $ — $ — $ —
Operating Expense
Cost of goods sol 11,91: — — — —
Research and developmt 72,75( 58,95¢ 21,60: 28,01 20,89:
Selling, general and administrative 123,79! 57,79« 22,55¢ 17,081 13,15:
Total operating expens: 208,45’ 116,75( 44,16. 45,10: 34,04«
Operating los: (182,10¢) (116,75() (44,16)) (45,100 (34,04¢)
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivative
liabilities (2) 47,71( (35,344 (22,66%) (205,15) 5,131
Interest expens (34,179 (18,09) (1) (19 (2,832
Interest incom 343 544 231 53 19¢
Other (expense) income, r (1,189 (427) (10 13C 33
Loss from operations before tax (169,42) (170,069 (66,61() (250,09() (31,507
Benefit from (provision for) income tax 3,194 (9,116 (2,516 501 901
Net loss (166,22°)  $(179,189  $(69,12()  $(249,58)  $(30,60¢)
Loss per share
Basic $ (@0 $ (129 $ (05) $ (249 $ (079
Diluted $ (229 $ (129 $ (05) $ (249 $ (079
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 161,02: 144,01 130,24 100,23¢ 42,42«
Diluted 167,07( 144,01 130,24 100,23¢ 42,42¢

As of December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢

Cash and cash equivalel $191,51« $260,24. $116,60: $ 31,44: $52,25¢
Total asset 252,47t 310,85! 126,37¢ 35,36 55,44
Long-term obligations 248,79:. 289,65( 123,88¢ 230,15° 42,09(
Stockholder' (deficit) equity (33,856 (3,999 (5,962 (202,36) 6,591

(1) Includes non-cash warrant-related compensatpense reflecting the change in the fair valuthefwarrant derivative liability
associated with warrants issued in October 2008rtoer officers of Amarin. See further discussiorNotes 2 and 7 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statemer

(2) Includes non-cash charges resulting from chaimgéhe fair value of derivative liabilities. Seather discussion in Notes 2 and 7 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements concerning future events and pedoce of the Company. When
used in this report, the words “may,” “would,” “shdd,” “could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticip ates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparsdiminology are included to identify
forward-looking statements. These statements includerbuiat limited to statements regarding our abititysuccessfully commercialize
Vascepa in the United States for use in the MARINEEation, the progress and timing of our clinigabgrams, the potential for, and timing
of, regulatory approval of additional indicationasrfVascepa and the next steps we may take thehetgafety and efficacy of our product
candidates; the goals of our development activities scope of our intellectual property protecti@stimates of the potential markets for our
product candidates; estimates of the capacity afiufecturing and other facilities to support our grects, our operating and growth strateg
our sales and marketing strategies, our industoy, rojected cash needs, liquidity and capital i@ses and our expected future revenues,
operations and expenditures. These forward-looktagements are based on our current expectatiodsasasumptions and many factors could
cause our actual results to differ materially fréhose indicated in these forward-looking statemeYitai should review carefully the factors
identified in this report in Item 1A, “Risk FactdrdVe disclaim any intent to update or announceisins to any forwardeoking statements
reflect actual events or developments, exceptasired by law. Except as otherwise indicated herelhdates referred to in this report
represent periods or dates fixed with referenceunfiscal year ended December 31.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company with expentidipid science focused on the commercializatiod development of therapeutics to
improve cardiovascular health.

Our lead product, Vascepa (icosapent ethyl) capsigepproved by the U.S. Food and Drug Admintistnaor FDA, for use as an
adjunct to diet to reduce triglyceride levels inkaghatients with severe (TG 500mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. We refer to thippempved
indication for Vascepa as the MARINE indication. Wegan marketing and selling Vascepa in the Urtadies in January 2013. Vascepa is
available in the United States by prescription olilfe market Vascepa through our sales force ofcqimately 150 sales professionals,
including sales representatives and their managers.

Triglycerides are fats in the blood. Hypertriglyidemia refers to a condition in which patients hhigh levels of triglycerides in the
bloodstream. It is estimated that over 40 milliciulés in the United States have elevated trighdmtevels (TG >200mg/dL) and
approximately 4.0 million people in the United &smhave severely high triglyceride levels (TG0®mg/dL), commonly known as very high
triglyceride levels. According tdhe American Heart Association Scientific Statemantriglycerides and Cardiovascular Dised2611),
triglycerides also provide important informationaamarker associated with the risk for heart diseaml stroke, especially when an individual
also has low high-density lipoprotein cholesteoolHDL-C (often referred to as “good” cholesteraljd elevated levels of LDL-C (often
referred to as “bad” cholesterol). Guidelines fog tnanagement of very high triglyceride levels ssgghat reducing triglyceride levels is the
primary goal in patients to reduce the risk of aquancreatitis. The effect of Vascepa on cardiavasenortality and morbidity, or the risk for
pancreatitis, in patients with hypertriglyceriderhis not been determined.

The potential efficacy and safety of Vascepa (knawits development stage as AMR 101) was studigd/o Phase 3 clinical trials, the
MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial. At a daily dosé 4 grams of Vascepa, the dose at which VascepBAsapproved, these trials showed
favorable clinical results in their respective patipopulations in reducing triglyceride levelshwitit increasing LDL-C levels in the MARINE
trial and with a statistically significant decreasé.DL-C levels in the ANCHOR trial, in each case, relatio placebo. These trials also sho
favorable results, particularly with the 4-gram ela$ Vascepa, in other important lipid and inflantima biomarkers, including apolipoprotein
B (apo B), non-high-density lipoprotein cholestgradn-HDL-C), total-cholesterol (TC), very low-détydipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C),
lipoprotein-associated
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phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2), and high sensitivity&active protein (hs-CRP). In these trials, thetreosnimonly reported adverse reaction
(incidence >2% and greater than placebo) in Vasteaded patients was arthralgia (joint pain) (2f8%Vascepa vs. 1.0% for placebo).

We are also developing Vascepa for the treatmepatiénts with high (TG 200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) triglyceride levels whe alsc
on statin therapy for elevated low-density lipopiotcholesterol, or LDL-C, levels which we referat® mixed dyslipidemia. We refer to this
second proposed indication for Vascepa as the ANRkdication. The FDA has stated that it views pheposed ANCHOR indication as
ostensibly and impliedly an indication to reducedt@vascular risk. In addition, in December 201 &, announced commencement of patient
dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes study of ¥pactitied REDUCE-IT (Reduction of Cardiovasciaents with EPA—Intervention
Trial). The REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluhte efficacy of Vascepa in reducing major cardsmdar events in a high risk patient
population on statin therapy.

We have a pending supplemental new drug applicabioeNDA, with the FDA that seeks marketing appiayf Vascepa for use in the
ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013, the FDA wamed an advisory committee to review our SNDA sTddvisory committee was not
asked by the FDA to evaluate whether Vascepa éc#fe in lowering triglycerides in the studied ptation, the ANCHOR indication as
specified in the sNDA. Rather, the advisory pana$wasked whether Vascepa has been demonstratedrtuve cardiovascular outcomes or
whether approval of the ANCHOR indication shouldtviar successful completion of the REDUCE-IT stuthe first prospective study of
cardiovascular outcomes in patients who have higlyteride levels despite statin therapy. The adr committee voted 9 to 2 against
recommending approval of the ANCHOR indication lobse information presented at the meeting. The ED#siders the recommendation of
advisory committees, but final decisions on therapgl of new drug applications are made by the FDA.

The ANCHOR trial clinical study was conducted undespecial protocol assessment, or SPA, agreemtinthe FDA. The law
governing SPA agreements requires that if the tesdithe trial conducted under the SPA substantla hypothesis of the protocol coverec
the SPA, the FDA must use the data from the pro@mepart of the primary basis for approval of pheduct. A SPA agreement is not a
guarantee of FDA approval of the related new dipglieation. A SPA agreement is generally bindingmughe FDA except in limited
circumstances, such as if the FDA identifies a tutti&l scientific issue essential to determiniatety or efficacy of the drug after the study
begins that rises to the level of a public heatthaern, or if the study sponsor fails to follow fivetocol that was agreed upon with the FDA.
On October 29, 2013, the FDA rescinded the ANCH@RsSPA agreement because the FDA determinectialbstantial scientific issue
essential to determining the effectiveness of Vilaade the studied population was identified afesting began. As a basis for this
determination, the FDA communicated that it deterdithat the cumulative results from outcome studfeother triglyceride-lowering drugs
failed to support the hypothesis that a triglycetidwering drug significantly reduces the risk fardiovascular events among the population
studied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, the FDA stathdttwhile information we submitted supports testimg hypothesis that Vascepa 4
grams/day versus placebo reduces major adverseeasdular events in statin-treated subjects vatfidually high triglyceride levels, as is
being studied in the Vascepa REDUCE-IT cardiovamcoilitcomes study, the FDA no longer considerssa@h in serum triglyceride levels as
sufficient to establish the effectiveness of a dnignded to reduce cardiovascular risk in subjedtis serum triglyceride levels below 500
mg/dL. In November 2013, we submitted to the FDre@uest for reconsideration of its decision toiresthe ANCHOR SPA agreement. On
January 17, 2014, we were notified by the FDA thdbes not intend to reinstate the ANCHOR SPA agrent. Our plan is to continue
appealing the rescission decision to successivghehn administrative levels within the FDA in acdance with FDA dispute resolution
guidance.

The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadedor completion of
FDA's review, December 20, 2013. Instead, the FAfied us on December 19, 2013 that it would fashsider our appeal of the ANCHOR
SPA agreement rescission. No new PDUFA goal dath&bANCHOR sNDA was established. Based on infeionaavailable to us, we do not
expect a
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determination on the ANCHOR sNDA while our appefahe January 17, 2014 FDA decision to uphold tiNCAIOR SPA rescission is in
process. We are also continuing our efforts toveapositive determination on the pending ANCHOR sNDAere also can be no assurance
that the FDA will not communicate the results sfritview of the ANCHOR sNDA prior to the timing eqted.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for FDA approval of Vascepa for the ANCH®Rication. There can be no assurance that webwiBuccessful in our effort to
reinstate the ANCHOR SPA agreement or obtain d kekygansion reflecting the ANCHOR clinical trialu& label expansion could include
FDA approval of the addition of an ANCHOR indicatistatement and/or the addition of the ANCHOR chhtirial data to our currently
approved labeling.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to reduce opegatixpenses following the recommendation of thesady committee to the FDA
against approval of the ANCHOR indication, we impénted a worldwide reduction in force of approxieia60% of our staff positions. The
majority of affected staff members were sales msifsnals who supported the initial commercial lduotVascepa. We incurred approxima
$2.8 million in charges related to the reductiomoirce, all of which includes cash expendituresdioe-time termination benefits and associate
costs. The charges were recorded in the fourthtguaf 2013 and the related payments will be madtheé first half of 2014. As part of the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18es representatives, excluding sales managemeti United States in sales territories tha
we believe have demonstrated the greatest potéotislascepa sales growth. We plan to have thimteaver the target base of physicians
responsible for the majority of Vascepa prescripttolume and growth since its launch in early 20/8h these changes and resulting target
base coverage, we anticipate continued Vascepauevgrowth over time. We also anticipate that saibs growth may be inconsistent from
period to period.

We have over 6,500 patients enrolled in the REDUTEtudy. We currently estimate that we will contpleatient enrollment in this
study in the first half of 2015. However, if we dot receive an expansion of Vascepa labeling e/ ANCHOR indication, we plan to re-
evaluate continuation of the REDUCE-IT study ingtesent form and re-evaluate whether it is ad\ésttbcontinue the study. If continued, the
REDUCE-IT study will be completed after reachingeggregate number of cardiovascular events. Basedent rates in other outcomes
studies, we estimate completing the REDUCE-IT studyr about 2017 with results expected to be atédlin 2018. Based on the results of
REDUCE-IT, we may seek additional indications fas¢epa beyond the indications studied in the ANCHORARINE trials.

In August 2013, we completed dosing of AMR102 x&di dose combination of Vascepa and a leadinghgtadiduct. The study is a
randomized, open-label, single-dose, 4-way crogs-study to continue testing of the relative biokmlity of AMR102 capsules, Vascepa
capsules with the selected statin taken conconytavidscepa taken alone and the selected statemtalone. The results of this study support
the feasibility of AMR102. We have suspended adddal development of AMR102 pending resolution @& ANCHOR sNDA with the FDA.

If we do not receive FDA approval for the ANCHORIiication, we may discontinue development of AMR102.

Commercialization Strategy

Vascepa became commercially available in the Uriiadles by prescription in January 2013 when wencented sales and shipments to
our network of U.S.-based wholesalers. On Janu@y2@13, we commenced our full commercial launciadcepa in the United States. In
preparation for our commercial launch, we hired athed a direct sales force of approximately 23%s representatives. In October 2013, w
reduced our number of sales representatives t@zaippately 130, excluding sales management, in thiged States to focus on the sales
territories that we believe have demonstrated thatgst potential for Vascepa sales growth. We mawrket Vascepa in the United States
through our sales force of approximately 150 sptegessionals and their managers. We also emplogusamarketing and medical affairs
personnel to support our commercialization of Vasc®©ur
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clinical and commercial supply is provided to uslenagreements with various third-party suppliéssof February 1, 2014, over 16,000
clinicians had written prescriptions for Vascepa.

In December 2013, we completed our eleventh fudrcdar month of marketing and selling Vascepa. Basemonthly compilations of
data provided by a third party, Symphony Healtru8ohs, the estimated number of normalized totadcépa prescriptions for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was approximately 225,000. Adegrib data from another third party, IMS Healtie £stimated number of normalized
total Vascepa prescriptions was approximately 185f0r that same period. Normalized total presoips represent the estimated total numbe
of Vascepa prescriptions shipped to patients, tatled on a normalized basis (i.e., total capsuigsped divided by 120 capsules, or one
month’s supply). The data reported above is basddformation made available to us from a thirdtpaesource and may be subject to
adjustment and may overstate or understate aatestiptions.

Although we believe these data are prepared omiadp®-period basis in a manner that is genematlysistent and that such results are
generally indicative of current prescription trentfese data are based on estimates and shoube melied upon as definitive. In addition,
because of our limited selling history, during ffear ended December 31, 2013, we only recognizeshte on product that was resold for
purposes of filling prescriptions. Those prescaptdata may differ from data reported by otherdtiparties.

Prior to commencing our U.S. commercial launch aétepa in January 2013, we had no revenue fromeydas8ecause of our limited
selling history, change in the size of our salesdand uncertainty regarding resolution of the ANGIR sNDA with the FDA, we do not
believe that we can provide a reasonably accuoasieeést of Vascepa prescriptions or revenues. Welexpect to be able to grow Vascepa
revenues, we provide no quantified guidance reggrédnticipated levels of Vascepa prescriptioneuenues and no such guidance should be
inferred from the operating metrics described ab@Ve believe that investors should view the ab@aferenced operating metrics with caution,
as data for this limited period may not be represtére of a trend consistent with the results pnése or otherwise predictive of future results.
Seasonal fluctuations in pharmaceutical saleseXample, may affect future prescription trends asepa, as could changes in prescriber
sentiment and other factors. We believe investioosilsl consider our results over several quarterrmer, before making an assessment ¢
potential future performance.

We secured managed care coverage for over 20@miilies, including as of February 1, 2014 over tillion lives covered on Tier 2.
This level of Tier 2 coverage exceeds 66% of th&imam level of Tier 2 coverage which has been aadeover multiple years by compara
therapies.

The commercial launch of a new pharmaceutical prbdua complex undertaking, and our ability teeeffvely and profitably launch
Vascepa will depend in part on our ability to gettemmarket demand for Vascepa through educatiorkatiag and sales activities, our ability
to achieve market acceptance of Vascepa, ounatuligenerate product revenue and our ability teiree adequate levels of reimbursement
from third-party payers. SeeRisk Factors—Risks Related to the CommercializatimhDevelopment of Vascefia

Commercial Supply Update

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we aatjaperoximately $25.7 million of Vascepa active phaceutical ingredient, or API,
of which $22.0 million was capitalized to inventay of December 31, 2013. The balance of such Yas&PI purchase costs was included as
a component of research and development expensedeit was received from suppliers that had nobgen qualified by the FDA.

In April 2013, the FDA approved our SNDAs coveri@gemport, Inc. and BASF (formerly Equateq Limited)additional Vascepa API
suppliers. We are working with Slanmhor Pharmacaigj Inc. to pursue FDA approval for Slanmhor nofacture Vascepa APl and
submitted an sNDA in August 2013. Until an API sligapis approved, all Vascepa API purchased froshssupplier is included as a
component of research and development expense.

64



Table of Contents

The amount of supply purchases in 2014 and beyadihdepend on the level of growth of Vascepa revenwhich will be significantly
impacted by the outcome of the FDA'’s decision oprapal of the ANCHOR indication, and, with certamppliers, will depend on the timing
of their qualification to consistently produce Vepa to our specification and to minimum purchaserndgments. We anticipate that our gross
margin from Vascepa sales will be lower in 2013thasubsequent years due to multiple factorsuitiolg API supply pricing with our earliest
approved supplier, Nisshin. This is the case pagity as it relates to our earliest volume of fnases from Nisshin being higher than supply
pricing later agreed with other suppliers, tierag@y pricing at certain suppliers such that castlplogram of supply purchases are schedulec
to decline as volume of purchases increase, rémgmbvement in currency exchange rates, geogrdpbation of our suppliers, special initial
stocking discounts provided to wholesalers andiphares to encourage them to stock Vascepa in adwafriéascepa’s January 2013
commercial launch, and rebate cards offered touwroess filling prescriptions for Vascepa to reduee size of the consumer’s co-payment
requirements while we work with payors to migrats@epa coverage from “tier-3” to “tier-2” in thgs&yors’ drug pricing systems. We
anticipate rebate amounts that we will agree toigempayors for tier-2 insurance coverage on salléascepa will ultimately cost us less than
our current rebate card program.

Financial Position

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents talai$191.5 million at December 31, 2013 is sigfit to fund our projected
operations for at least the next twelve monthduifiag the continued commercialization of Vascepatfie MARINE indication, preparations
for commercialization of Vascepa for the ANCHORIiaadion, if approved, and the advancement of th®BEE-IT cardiovascular outcomes
study.

Financial Operations Overview

RevenueAll of our revenue is derived from product sales/akcepa, net of allowances, discounts, incentretmtes, chargebacks and
returns. We sell product to a limited number of anayholesalers, as well as selected regional whtdes and specialty pharmacy providers, ol
collectively, our Distributors, who resell the ptad to retail pharmacies for purposes of their lfiegethe product to fill patient prescriptions.
accordance with GAAP, until we have the abilityétiably estimate returns of Vascepa from our hstiors, revenue will be recognized ba
on the resale of Vascepa for the purposes ofdilfatient prescriptions, and not based on sales fi@to such Distributors. Consistent with
industry practice, once we achieve sufficient iigguch that we can reliably estimate returns baseshles to our Distributors, we anticipate
that our revenues will be recognized based on salesr Distributors. We currently defer Vascepeeraie recognition until the earlier of the
product being resold for purposes of filling patiprescriptions; and the expiration of the righteturn (twelve months after the expiration ¢
of the product). We also defer the related cogtrofiuct sales and record such amounts as finisbedisgnventory held by others until revenue
related to such product sales is recognized. Thr@&cember 31, 2013, product returns were deminimus

Cost of Goods Sol€ost of goods sold includes the cost of API for 34 on which revenue was recognized during thiegheas well
as the associated costs for encapsulation, paakagiipment, supply management, insurance andtgaalsurance. The cost of the API
included in cost of goods sold reflects the averaag method of inventory valuation and relief. Saverage cost reflects the actual purchase
price of Vascepa API, the majority of which througbcember 31, 2013 was from Nisshin, our first appd API supplier.

Research and Development Expef&esearch and development expense consists prino&fiyes paid to professional service providers
in conjunction with independent monitoring of olinical trials and acquiring and evaluating datadmjunction with our clinical trials, fees
paid to independent researchers, costs of qualifgantract manufacturers, services expenses irtimmaeveloping and testing products and
product candidates, salaries and related expeasggffsonnel, including stock-based compensatipermse, costs of materials, depreciation,
rent, utilities and other facilities costs. In adufi, research and development expenses include the

65



Table of Contents

cost to support current development efforts, iniciggatent costs and milestone payments. We expessarch and development costs as
incurred. In addition, research and developmensdoslude the costs of product supply receivechfsuppliers when such receipt by the
Company is prior to regulatory approval of the digsp

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of salaries and other related
costs for personnel, including stock-based compmmsaxpense, in our sales, marketing, executiusirtess development, finance and
information technology functions. Other costs priityainclude facility costs and professional fees &ccounting, consulting and legal services

Interest and Other (Expense) Income, N#kerest expense consists of interest incurred ledse obligations, interest incurred under ou
3.5% exchangeable debt and interest incurred ungebecember 2012 financing arrangement with BioPhaSecured Debt Fund Il Holdings
Cayman LP, or BioPharma. Interest expense undeB.6@6 exchangeable debt includes the amortizatidimeoconversion option related to our
exchangeable debt, the amortization of the reldédd discount and debt obligation coupon intetestrest income consists of interest earned
on our cash and cash equivalents. Other (expemsehie, net, consists primarily of foreign exchalogses and gains.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgmeats and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations is based on our dimtaded financial statements and no
which have been prepared in accordance with actmuptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé#taThe preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgriat affect the reported amounts of assetslitias, revenue and expenses. On an
ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judtgmi@cluding those related to derivative finahtiabilities. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumgtihat we believe to be reasonable under themstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying v@hfeassets and liabilities that are not readilyaapnt from other sources. Actual results
differ from theseestimates under different assumptions or conditidBrsummary of our significant accounting policisgontained in Note 2 1
our consolidated financial statements includedvetsge in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We bedi¢ie following critical accounting
policies affect our more significant judgments astimates used in the preparation of our cons@itifibancial statements.

Revenue Recognitier-We sell Vascepa principally to a limited numbeiDagtributors, that in turn resell Vascepa to fgthiarmacies
that subsequently resell it to patients and hezltk providers. In accordance with GAAP, our reeracognition policy requires that: (i) there
is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exasigebn us and the Distributor, (ii) delivery hasweed, (iii) collectability is reasonably
assured and (iv) the price is fixed or determinable

We began recognizing revenue from the sale of fmséallowing our commercial launch in the Uniteci®s in January 2013. Prior to
2013, we recognized no revenue from Vascepa dalescordance with GAAP, until we have the abitiyreliably estimate returns of Vascepa
from our Distributors, revenue will be recognizessbd on the resale of Vascepa for the purposélirgf patient prescriptions, and not based
on sales from us to such Distributors. Consistetit imdustry practice, once we achieve sufficieistdry such that we can reliably estimate
returns based on sales to our Distributors, wesipatie that our revenues will be recognized baseshtes to our Distributors. We currently
defer Vascepa revenue recognition until the eadli¢he product being resold for purposes of fijlpatient prescriptions; and the expiration of
the right of return (twelve months after the exjina date of the product). We also defer the relaist of product sales and record such
amounts as finished goods inventory held by othaté revenue related to such product sales isgeized. As of December 31, 2013, we had
experienced deminimus product returns.

We have written contracts with our Distributorsgatelivery occurs when a Distributor receives VascéVe evaluate the
creditworthiness of each of our Distributors toadgtine whether revenues can be recognized upon
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delivery, subject to satisfaction of the other riegments, or whether recognition is required tabkyed until receipt of payment. In order to
conclude that the price is fixed or determinable,must be able to (i) calculate our gross prodentmues from the sales to Distributors and
(ii) reasonably estimate our net product revenés calculate gross product revenues based on thkesdie acquisition cost that we charge
our Distributors for Vascepa. We estimate our metipct revenues by deducting from our gross prodewanues (a) trade allowances, such as
invoice discounts for prompt payment and distribdées, (b) estimated government and private peglmates, chargebacks and discounts, suc
as Medicaid reimbursements, (c) reserves for egpgmtoduct returns and (d) estimated costs of tneenoffered to certain indirect custome
including patients.

Derivative Financial Liabilities—Derivative financial liabilities are initially rexded at fair value. They are subsequently hefdiat
value, with gains and losses arising for changéaiinvalue recognized in the statement of openatid he fair value of derivative financial
liabilities is determined using valuation technigugypically we use the Black-Scholes option pgcmodel. We use our judgment to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that amnglyrtzased on market conditions existing at eadarm® sheet date. Fluctuations in the
assumptions used in the valuation model would téswadjustments to the fair value of the warragrivchtive liability reflected on our balance
sheet and, therefore, our statement of operatibn® issue shares to discharge the liability,derevative financial liability is derecognized
common stock and additional paid-in capital ar@gaized on the issuance of those shares. For agpéind warrants treated as derivative
financial liabilities, at settlement date the cargyvalue of the options and warrants are transéeto equity. The cash proceeds received from
shareholders for additional shares are recordedrinmon stock and additional paid-in capital. Weorded a financial derivative related to the
change in control provision associated with ouréeber 2012 debt financing. During 2013, we recoieerivative liability related to our
forward foreign exchange contracts, which was gxtished prior to December 31, 2013. The fair valiihese derivatives could fluctuate
based on changes in the assumptions used in thatiad models.

Inventory—Prior to July 26, 2012, when we received apprénaah the FDA to market and sell Vascepa in the ebhiBtates for the
MARINE indication, Vascepa was considered a prodacididate under development. All supply of Vasgayprghased prior to July 26, 2012
was not capitalized and instead charged as a cosnpof research and development expense in thedoerceived. After Vascepa was
approved, we began to capitalize inventory purathfisenm Nisshin, the API supplier approved in the NPrior to April 2013, only Nisshin
was an FDA-approved supplier of API for VascepaApmil 2013, the FDA approved our sSNDAs coveringe@tport and BASF as additional
Vascepa API suppliers. All supply from Chemport &#5F prior to FDA approval of these API suppligras not capitalized and instead
charged as a component of research and develomxpense in the period received. Subsequent topihvzal of these suppliers, we capita
API purchases from them. We are working with Slaamntb pursue FDA approval for Slanmhor to manufeeMascepa APl and submitted an
sNDA in August 2013. Until an API supplier is apped, all Vascepa API purchased from such sup@iérdluded as a component of researcl
and development expense. Upon sNDA approval of additional supplier, we capitalize subsequent ¥pacAPI purchases from such
supplier as inventory. Purchases of Vascepa ARlived and expensed before such regulatory appravalsot subsequently capitalized, and
all such purchases are quarantined and not usexbfemercial supply until such time as the sNDAtf@ supplier that produced the APl is
approved. Additionally, the determination of thasdification of our inventory requires the usesifreates in order to determine the portion of
inventories anticipated to be utilized within twelmonths of the balance sheet date.

Income Taxes—Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe future tax consequences of differencewden the carrying
amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilitie®parhting loss carryforwards and other attributgag enacted rates expected to be in effect
when those differences reverse. Valuation allowssee provided against deferred tax assets thatcam®ore likely than not to be realized.

We provide reserves for potential payments of texarious tax authorities or do not recognize tamdiits related to uncertain tax
positions and other issues. Tax benefits for uagetax positions are based on a
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determination of whether a tax benefit taken byGloenpany in its tax filings or positions is moreelly than not to be realized, assuming that
the matter in question will be decided based oteithnical merits. The Company’s policy is to retmterest and penalties in the provision for
income taxes.

We assess the realizability of deferred tax asgetach reporting period. The realization of deféax assets depends on generating
future taxable income during the periods in whith tax benefits are deductible or creditable. Tom@any has been historically profitable in
the U.S. When making its assessment about theatial of its U.S. deferred tax assets at Decerdbe?013, the Company considered all
available evidence, placing particular weight oidemce that could be objectively verified. The evide considered included the (i) historical
profitability of the Company’s U.S. operations) §burces of future taxable income, giving weighsources according to the extent to which
they can be objectively verified, and (iii) thekssto our business related to the commercializaimh development of Vascepa. Based on its
assessment, the Company concluded that the U.&reeftax assets are more likely than not reakzablof December 31, 2013. Changes in
historical earnings performance and future earnprggctions, among other factors, may cause asljist our valuation allowance on defer
tax assets, which would impact our income tax egpén the period in which we determine that theséors have changed. In the event
sufficient taxable income is not generated in fetperiods, additional valuation allowances of uppgproximately $12 million could be
required relating to these U.S. deferred tax assets

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardam@assued an update that clarified existing guigaon the presentation of
unrecognized tax benefits when various qualifyeuqglienefit carryforwards exist, including when thneecognized tax benefit should be
presented as a reduction to deferred tax assefsaltiability. This update is required to be addgor all annual periods and interim reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2013, witlyesdoption permitted. The adoption of this proncement is not expected to have a
material impact on our financial statements.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgssaued by FASB and are adopted by us as of #wfigul effective date. Unless
otherwise discussed, we believe that the impacta#ntly issued accounting pronouncements willaee a material impact on consolidated
financial position, results of operations, and ci@ls, or do not apply to our operations.

Effects of Inflation
We believe the impact of inflation on operations baen minimal during the past three years.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20&Bsus December 31, 2012

RevenueWe recorded revenue of $26.4 million during therysraded December 31, 2013. We commenced our falhwercial launch of
Vascepa in the United States for use in the MARIhtication in January 2013. We recorded no reven@812. All of our revenue in the ye
ended December 31, 2013 was derived from prodies sd Vascepa, net of allowances, discounts, itives) rebates, chargebacks and rett

We sell Vascepa to Distributors. In accordance withrevenue recognition policy, until we have mexperience with the sale of
Vascepa and can better estimate product returnsuwently recognize revenue only for product whiels been used for of the purpose of
filling prescriptions. The excess of the amouniebiland the amount recognized as revenue for thegreded December 31, 2013, net of
applicable discounts and rebates, has been recasddefferred revenue.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, our relyat revenues included an adjustment for co-pdigation rebates provided by us
to commercially insured patients. Such rebatesnseaded to offset the
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differential for patients of Vascepa not coveredcbynmercial insurers at the time of launch on2ieresulting in higher co-pay amounts for
such patients. Our cost for thesepaysment mitigation rebates is up to $75 per prpson filled during 2013. Commencing in March angriA
2013, certain third-party payors added Vascephéduw tier 2 coverage, which results in lower cospawnts for patients covered by these third-
party payors. As of February 1, 2014, approximai€l§ million lives covered by medical insurance evender insurance plans that have adde
Vascepa to their tier 2 coverage. In connectiom Wik start of such tier 2 coverage, we have agepdy customary rebates to these third-
party payors on the resale of Vascepa to patievsred by these third-party payors.

As is typical for the pharmaceutical industry, thajority of Vascepa sales are to major commerclalasalers which then resell Vasc
to retail pharmacies. As of February 1, 2014, d&000 clinicians had written prescriptions for ¥&ga. As of February 1, 2014, we are not
aware of any clinician who is responsible for 1086nmre of the aggregate prescriptions written fastépa.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to reduce opegatixpenses following the recommendation of thesady committee to the FDA, we
implemented a worldwide reduction in force inclugle reduction of approximately fifty percent of aales representatives. Following the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18gs representatives in the United States in satdsories which have demonstrated what
believe is the greatest potential for Vascepa sgi@sth. This team will cover the target base ofgitians responsible for the majority of
Vascepa prescription volume and growth since itada in early 2013. With these changes and reguliirget base coverage, we anticipate
continued Vascepa revenue growth over time. Wédéuranticipate that such revenue growth may benisistent from period to period.

Cost of Goods Sol€ost of goods sold during the year ended Decembe2®L3 was $11.9 million, and includes the cosA®f for
Vascepa on which revenue was recognized duringehied, as well as the associated costs for entamsy packaging, shipment, supply
management, insurance and quality assurance. Bi@ktthe API included in cost of goods sold retiethe average cost of API included in
inventory. This average cost reflects the actuatipase price of Vascepa API, as well as a portfokRd carried at zero cost for material which
was purchased prior to FDA approval of Vascepauiyn 26, 2012 or was purchased prior to the SNDArapgl of our suppliers.

The majority of API included in the calculationtbe average cost of goods sold during the yearcebaéeember 31, 2013 was sourced
from one API supplier. The contracted cost of syppim this API supplier for initial purchase volesis higher than the contracted cost from
our other API suppliers. Contracted purchase daosits this initial API supplier reflect that they veeworking with Amarin prior to
commencement of the MARINE and ANCHOR clinical lsiand are anticipated to decline as additional dlime is purchased. In the futu
we anticipate making continued purchases fromitfitigl supplier at substantially lower unit prigithan the pricing of the initial purchases
from this supplier and to make additional lowertwaist purchases of Vascepa API from other API Bergp We began purchasing lower unit
cost API from Chemport, which was approved by tBé\Fn April 2013 to produce Vascepa, in the threenths ended June 30, 2013. During
the year ended December 31, 2013, the cost bapi®dfict sold that had a carrying value of zero agsoximately $4.0 million. Had such
inventories been valued at acquisition cost, it diave resulted in an increase in cost of goottsaud a decrease in gross margin during
periods. We expect current inventories with a dagyalue of zero to be utilized in 2014. We maydadditional zero cost inventories in the
future to the extent that we receive approval efsNDA for our fourth commercial supplier. As ofd@enber 31, 2013, we maintained
inventory with a carrying value of zero and an asigjon cost of approximately $0.6 million, whiclashan estimated net realizable value of
million based on our average net selling pricettieryear ended December 31, 2013.

Our gross margin improved during each quarterfentear ended December 31, 2013. This improvemastpnmarily driven by lower
unit cost API purchases made during 2013. The grasgin for the year ended December 31, 2013 wés &baddition to expected continued
lower average unit cost purchases of API, we
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also expect that API costs will be lower in theufetdue to recent improvements in foreign currezxghange rates and potential advantages
derived from the geographical mix of our suppli&&e recorded no cost of goods sold in 2012.

Research and Development Expemsearch and development expense for the year &atmanber 31, 2013 was $72.8 million, versus

$59.0 million in the prior year period, an increa$&13.8 million, or 23.4%. Research and develapnespenses for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized in ithe b@low (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

REDUCE-IT study (1) $46,99: $25,56:
Other clinical trial programs (- 1,51¢ 60¢€
Pre-approval commercial supply ( 5,81¢ 16,14:
Regulatory filing fees and expenses 3,81¢ (25€)
Internal staffing, overhead and other 11,76 13,20z
Research and development expense, excludin-cash expens 69,91: 55,25¢
Non-cash stoc-based compensation ( 2,83 3,70(
Total research and development expe $72,75( $58,95¢

The increase in research and development expenmstteefyear ended December 31, 2013, as compatbd fwior year period, is

primarily due to an increase in costs associateld the REDUCE-IT study as further described below.

1)

(2)

In December 2011, we announced commencemeydtigit dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes sufdyascepa, titted REDUCE-IT,
which is designed to evaluate the efficacy of Vasda reducing major cardiovascular events in & higk patient population on statin
therapy. The study duration is dependent on theeaktlinical events in the study, which rate mayalffected by the number of patients
enrolled in the study and the epidemiology of thggmts enrolled in the study. We manage the stluahugh a contract research
organization (CRO) through which all costs for thigcomes study are incurred with the exceptiocosts for clinical trial material
(CTM) and costs for internal management. Our irdepersonnel are responsible for managing mulppdgects and their costs are not
specifically allocated to REDUCE-IT or any othedividual project. We currently have over 6,500 @at$ enrolled in REDUCE-IT. We
estimate that we will complete patient enrollmenthis study in the first half of 2015. The REDUCEstudy will be completed after
reaching an aggregate number of cardiovasculait&vBased on event rates in other outcomes studéesstimate completing the
REDUCE-IT study in or about 2017 with results expddo be available in 2018. For 2013, we incuerpenses through our CRO in
connection with this trial of approximately $38.4lian. Inclusive of CTM costs, the combined CRCJaDTM costs in 2013 for
REDUCE-IT were approximately $47.0 million. We erpe costs for CTM upon receipt. The aggregateafdbis outcomes study will
depend on the rate of clinical events in the stidg.currently estimate that costs incurred for stigly in 2014 will continue at
approximately the same levels as we have incurr@®13. Based on our current assumptions of CRQCamd costs, we estimate that
aggregate remaining costs to complete the REDUCSd@ly and evaluate its results to likely excee@0®hillion. We anticipate that our
costs for this outcomes study will continue to esgnt the most significant component of our reseand development expenditures.
However, if we do not receive FDA approval of th@HOR indication, we plan to re-evaluate the REDUICEtudy, including the
likelihood of REDUCEIT providing clinically and commercially useful ndss, the likelihood of FDA approval for an expaddedicatior
for Vascepa based on these results and whetlgeadvisable to continue or discontinue the studg.afticipate that in any such re-
evaluation we will seek further feedback from tHaA-

In 2012 and 2013, other clinical trial progracesisisted of fixed-dose combination studies. lcddeber 2012, we completed dosing and
pharmacokinetic sampling in a study to test a -dose combination ¢
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3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Vascepa capsules and a leading statin which we teefes AMR102. In August 2013, we completed dosing randomized, open-label,
single-dose, 4-way cross-over study to continueénig®f the relative bioavailability of AMR102 cagss, Vascepa capsules with a
selected statin taken concomitantly, Vascepa takame and the selected statin taken alone. Thétsexuhis study support the feasibil
of AMR102. We have suspended additional developraEAMR102 pending resolution of the ANCHOR sNDAtwthe FDA.

Until an API supplier is approved by the FDAm@nufacture commercial supply of Vascepa, all ¥pagurchased from such supplier is
included as a component of research and developaxgense. Upon approval of the supplier, we capéaubsequent Vascepa API
purchases from such supplier as inventory. Purchais€ascepa API received and expensed beforersgehatory approvals are not
subsequently capitalized, and all such purchasequarantined and not used for commercial suppiiy such time as the supplier that
produced the APl is approved. The commercial supppense for the periods shown above represergatory received from Nisshin
prior to NDA approval of Vascepa on July 26, 201 2exeived from our other suppliers prior to theN{DA approvals. In April 2013,
sNDAs were approved for two of our additional sugngl, BASF and Chemport. A sSNDA was submitted irgdst 2013 for Novasep as
part of the Slanmhor consortium. The amount of cenumal supply that we receive from Novasep pricsMDA approval depends upon
production schedules at Novasep and the timinggdlatory approval, and we are unable to estintetset amounts at this time. We will
continue to expense inventory received from theppraved supplier until such time as FDA approvalb$ained. Additionally, during tt
year ended December 31, 2013, we wrote off $1.Bomitelated to product that is not recoverableisTaroduct is from a supplier fro
which no supply has yet been released for commiars&

The regulatory filing fees primarily represeossts incurred in connection with regulatory fikngssociated with requests for regulatory
approvals, such as the sNDA for the ANCHOR ind@atind annual FDA fees for maintaining manufactysites. In the year ended
December 31, 2013, such fees also include costsiassd with preparing for the October 16, 2013 Favisory committee meeting. In
the year ended December 31, 2012, the regulataryg fees balance included a credit representiegéimbursement of $1.5 million in
fees by the FDA related to the NDA filing for Vagee

Internal staffing, overhead and other researchdevelopment expenses primarily relate to tisésanf our personnel employed to
managed research, development and regulatorysaffafivities and related overhead costs includowsualting and other professional f
that are not allocated to specific projects. Sumdtscalso include costs related to qualifying sigppland legal costs. We anticipate a
reduction in such costs in 2014 compared to 20d&deas a result of a compamyde reduction in force announced in October 2@43a
result of the reduction in force, we incurred apmately $0.2 million in severance expenses in 2

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense repreBergssts associated with equity awards issuedeonial staff supporting our
research and development and regulatory funct

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense forytras ended December 31, 2013 was

$123.8 million, versus $57.8 million in the pricgar, an increase of $66.0 million, or 114.2%. 8glligeneral and administrative expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 areanigechin the table below (in thousands):

(1)

2013 2012
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) $113,10( $43,17:
Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) exp@): (3,709 247
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 11,84¢ 14,37¢
Severance (4 2,55(

$123,79! $57,79¢

Selling, general and administrative expenselugling non-cash charges for stock and warrant emsation, for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $113.1 million, versus $48li®on in the prior year, an increase of $69.9lioi, or 161.8%. The increase was
primarily due to cost increases in 2013
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sales force staffing, an increase in marketing rEnwgspending and increased general and admimn&redists incurred in connection with
the initial commercialization of Vascef

(2) Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) expensbe year ended December 31, 2013 was $3.7omitif income, versus $0.2
million of expense in the prior year. Warrant rethtompensation income (expense) reflects the ash-change in fair value of the
warrant derivative liability associated with wararssued in October 2009 to three former offiedrAmarin, net of warrants exercised.
The change in fair value in 2013 and 2012 was dineguily to the change in our stock price duringle@eriod. The value of this warrant
derivative liability may increase or decrease frpeniod to period based upon changes in the priceio€ommon stock. Such non-cash
changes in valuation could be significant as tis¢olny of our stock price has been volatile. Thengailoss resulting from such non-cash
changes in valuation could have a material impaaiwr reported net income or loss from period toggk In particular, if the price of ol
stock increases, the change in valuation of thisama derivative liability will add to our historyf operating losse:

(3) Nonr-cash stock based compensation expense for theeydad December 31, 2013 was $11.8 million, ve$dds4 million in the prior
year period, a decrease of $2.6 million, due prilpér a decrease in the number of awards outstenas a result of the compewide
reduction in force announced in October 2(

(4) Severance costs in 2013 relate to cash expgadifor one-time termination benefits and assediabsts incurred in conjunction with a
compan-wide reduction in force announced in October 2(

Selling, general and administrative costs in 20da&hincreased over 2012 levels as we continuegpastithe commercialization of
Vascepa, including costs for market research, $aftes staffing and support costs and investmenisfrastructure. We anticipate a reduction
in the level of such costs in 2014 as a resulhefreduction in force announced in October 2013exmebcted reductions in certain marketing
program spend and other overhead costs.

Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of DerivativieHilities. Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivativabilities for the year
ended December, 2013 was a gain of $47.7 millioaugea loss of $35.3 million in the prior year pdriGain (loss) on change in fair value of
derivative liabilities is comprised of the changdair value of the warrant derivative liability dthe change in fair value of the derivative
liability related to the change in control provisiassociated with the December 2012 BioPharmadingn

The warrant derivative liability is related to tbieange in fair value of warrants issued in conjiomctvith the October 2009 private
placement. In October 2009 we issued 36.1 milli@mrants at an exercise price of $1.50 and recoadetB.3 million warrant derivative
liability, representing the fair value of the wartsiissued. As these warrants have been classsiedderivative liability, they are revalued at
each reporting period, with changes in fair vakeeognized in the statement of operations. Theviire of the warrant derivative liability at
December 31, 2013 was $6.9 million and we recogh&®44.2 million gain on change in fair value efidative liability for the year ended
December 31, 2013 for these warrants. The fairevafithe warrant derivative liability at Decembdr, 2012 was $54.9 million and we
recognized a $35.4 million loss on change in falue of derivative liability for the year ended Betber 31, 2012. The change in fair value of
the warrant derivative liability is due primarily the change in the price of our common stock erdéite of valuation.

Our December 2012 financing agreement with BioPlarontains a redemption feature whereby, upon agehaf control, we would be
required to pay $140 million, less any previouspaid amount, if the change of control occurs obefore December 31, 2013, or required to
repay $150 million, less any previously repaid anipif the change of control event occurs after &@eber 31, 2013. The fair value of the
derivative liability is recalculated at each repaytperiod using a probability-weighted model inmanating management estimates for potentia
change in control, and by determining the fair eadfi the debt with and without the change in cdrgrovision included. The difference
between the two fair values of the debt was deteethio be the fair value of the embedded derivafitddecember 31, 2013, the fair value of
the derivative was determined to be $11.1 milleamd at December 31, 2012, the fair value of thavdeve was determined to be $14.6 milli
We recognized a gain on change in fair value ofveéwve liability of $3.5 million and $0.02 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2013
2012, respectively.
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Interest Expense, ndiet interest expense for the year ended Decemhe&(3B was $33.8 million, versus $17.5 million le fprior year

period, an increase of $16.3 million, or 93.1%. Mé&trest expense for the years ended Decemb&033B,and 2012 is summarized in the table
below (in thousands):

(1)

(2)

Year Ended
December 31
2013 2012
Exchangeable senior nott
Amortization of debt discount created upon allamaf proceeds to the convers
option $12,54¢ $10,68¢
Contractual coupon intere 5,25( 5,11¢
Amortization of the discount from the underwr's discounts and offering cos 2,521 2,14
Total Exchangeable senior notes interest exp 20,31% 17,95:
Long-term dek—BioPharma financing (1
Cash intere—current 1,84: 114
Cash intere—deferrec 9,451 —
Non-cash interes 2,56¢ 23
Total lon¢-term debt interest expen 13,85¢ 137
Other interest expen: 3 2
Total interest expens 34,17¢ 18,09:
Interest income (2 (343) (544)
Total interest expense, r $33,83¢ $17,54.

Cash and non-cash interest expenses relatbeé ®ioPharma financing for the year ended Decer@beR013 were $11.3 million and
$2.6 million, respectively. These amounts reflbet assumption that our Vascepa revenue levelsatilbe high enough to support
repayment to BioPharma in accordance with the negay schedule without the optional reduction whéchllowed to be elected by us if
the threshold revenue levels are not achievedtheothree months ended September 30, 2013 and Dec&t, 2013, our revenues were
below the contractual threshold amount such thatnade a cash payment of $0.8 million in Novembdr328ased on $8.4 million in
revenue recognized in the third quarter of 2013wedvill make a cash payment of $1.0 million in Relyy 2014 based on $10.1 million
in revenue recognized in the fourth quarter of 20&8ecting the calculated optional reduction amtaas opposed to the contractual
threshold payments of $2.5 million for each quéytperiod.

Interest income for the year ended DecembeR@13 was $0.3 million, versus $0.5 million in {iwéor year period, a decrease of $0.2
million, or 40.0 %. Interest income represents inecearned on cash balanc

Other (Expense) Income, nétther (expense) income, net for the year endedibleee31, 2013 was a $1.2 million expense versusé $

million expense in the prior year. Other (experisedme, net primarily consists of losses and gam$oreign exchange transactions, including
realized gains and losses on foreign exchange fdra@ntracts. We use foreign exchange forward estarto hedge against changes in
exchange rates for inventory purchases denominatedeign currency. The unrealized gains and Isgsesuch contracts are recorded within
gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiadbility. As of December 31, 2013, all such contsdtad been settled. For the year

ended December 31, 2013, we recognized a realizsdf $1.1 million related to the settlement & fibreign exchange forward contracts,
which was included as a component of other (expdnseme, net. There were no forward exchange fowantracts outstanding in 2012.
Other (expense) income for the year ended DeceBthe1012 was a net expense of $0.4 million.

Benefit from (Provision for) Income Tax&enefit from (provision for) income taxes for theay ended December 31, 2013 was a $3.2

million benefit versus a $9.1 million provisiontime prior year. The current
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benefit (provision) relates entirely to our Unitgtates subsidiary operations. We are profitabtbénUnited States as a result of intercompany
transactions between our United States subsidizhoar other companies. The 2013 benefit primaelgites to tax credits for research and
development activities. The 2012 provision for imeptaxes primarily relates to the exercise of stymions of which the excess benefits
related to the option exercises are recorded tdiaddl-paid-in capital.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20&8sus December 31, 2011
RevenueWe recorded no revenue in 2012 or 2011.
Research and Development Expemsearch and development expense for the year &watmanber 31, 2012 was $59.0 million, versus

$21.6 million in the prior year period, an increa$&37.4 million, or 173%. Research and developregpenses for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized in itie balow:

2012 2011
Research and development expenses (1) $55,25¢ $20,13¢
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 3,70( 1,46¢
$58,95¢ $21,60:

(1) Research and development expense, excludingasincharges for stock compensation, for the geded December 31, 2012 was $55.:
million, versus $20.1 million in the prior year Et, an increase of $35.2 million, or 175%. Theréase in research and development
expense was due to increased costs in 2012 fovasgepa cardiovascular program, primarily increadimical costs for the REDUCEF
cardiovascular outcomes study, costs of supplylases prior to NDA approval and costs associatdustiidy of AMR102. Prior to
FDA approval of Vascepa on July 26, 2012, all sygpirchases of Vascepa were expensed to reseatateanlopment. After FDA
approval, supply purchases of Vascepa were ca@thlwith the exception of clinical trial matenghich continues to be expensed to
research and development. During the year endedrbteer 31, 2012, non-capitalized supply purchasdsandor qualification costs
were approximately $16.1 million. During the yeaded December 31, 2012, expenses incurred thromg8RO for the REDUCE-IT
study were approximately $23.3 millic

(2) Non-cash stock based compensation expense includbohwésearch and development was $3.7 million dn# hillion for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense foyttee ended December 31, 2012 was ¢
million, versus $22.6 million in the prior year, entrease of $35.2 million, or 155.8%. Selling, get and administrative expenses for the y
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarizbd table below:

2012 2011
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) $43,17: $14,82¢
Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) exp@): 247 (96)
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 14,37t 7,83(
$57,79¢ $22,55¢

(1) Selling, general and administrative expenselueling non-cash charges for stock and warrant esrsgtion, for the year ended
December 31, 2012 was $43.2 million, versus $14l&min the prior year, an increase of $28.4 ioif, or 192%. The increase was
primarily due to cost increases in 2012 for marigtiesearch activities, medical education (appreaséy $16.1 million) and higher
staffing levels and related travel (approximatedy2dmillion) plus increased facility costs and atgeneral and administrative costs
incurred in order to prepare for the commercialmabf Vascepa
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(2) Non-cash warrant related compensation expense (inctaim#)e year ended December 31, 2012 was $0.8miiif expense, versus $0.1
million of income in the prior year. Warrant reldteompensation expense for the period ended Dece3ib2012 reflects non-cash
income for the change in fair value of the wardetivative liability associated with warrants isdue October 2009 to three former
officers of Amarin, net of warrants exercised. Bx@ense in 2012 was due primarily to the increaghe fair value of these warrants,
increase in the fair value of the warrants is duegrily to an increase in our stock price betwBatember 31, 2011 and December 31,
2012. The value of this warrant derivative lialyilihay increase or decrease from period to perisédbapon changes in the price of our
common stock. Such non-cash changes in valuatiold ¢ significant as the history of our stock prims been volatile. The gain or loss
resulting from such non-cash changes in valuatimridchave a material impact on our reported nedrime or loss from period to period.
In particular, if the price of our stock increastt® change in valuation of this warrant derivatiability will add to our history of
operating losse!

(3) Non-cash stock based compensation expense for theegdad December 31, 2012 was $14.4 million, ve$3u8 million in the prior
year period, an increase of $6.6 million due pritpaeflects an increase in the number of awardstanding during the 2012 year ver:
the prior period, and also in the fair value of ngytion awards granted to attract and retain gedl€mployees

Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of DerivativiaHilities. (Gain) loss on change in fair value of derivatixability for the year ended
December 31, 2012 was a loss of $35.3 million v@esloss of $22.7 million in the prior year peridtie loss on change in fair value of
derivative liability is primarily related to the ahge in fair value of warrants issued in conjunctioth the October 2009 private placement. In
October 2009 we issued 36.1 million warrants atearcise price of $1.50 and recorded a $48.3 milvarrant derivative liability, representi
the fair value of the warrants issued. As theseamtis have been classified as a derivative ligbilitey are revalued at each reporting period,
with changes in fair value recognized in the statenof operations. The fair value of the warrart\@give liability at December 31, 2011 was
$123.1 million and we recognized a $22.7 millioed®@n change in fair value of derivative liability the period ended December 31, 2011 fol
these warrants. The fair value of the warrant @éine liability at December 31, 2012 was $54.9 imilland we recognized a $35.4 million loss
on change in fair value of derivative liability fire period ended December 31, 2012. The decradke varrant derivative liability value was
due primarily to the exercises of warrants. Upoereise, the fair value of warrants exercised ise@snred and reclassified from warrant
liability to additional paid-in-capital. The faialue of the long term debt redemption feature ateDeber 31, 2012 was $14.6 million. The
Company recognized a $0.02 million gain on chandair value of derivative liability at December,2012. See further discussion of the
warrant derivative liability in Note 2 and Note 7tbe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

Interest Expense, ndhterest income includes interest earned on calsimbas. Interest expense includes the amortizafitime exchang
option related to our exchangeable debt, the amatitin of debt discounts and debt obligation coupterest. During the twelve months endec
December 31, 2012, we recognized interest expers&3ol million, of which $10.7 million represeramortization of the debt discount,
$5.2 million represents contractual coupon inteaest $2.2 million represents the amortization efdiscount from underwriter discounts and
offering costs. Interest expense in 2011 was demisi

Other (Expense) Income, n€tther (expense) income, net in 2012 primarily repngs a loss due to the fluctuation in the exchaatgeof
a milestone payment to Laxdale in the amount o6 $@llion. Also included are gains and losses dreoforeign exchange transactions. Other
(expense) income in 2011 was deminimus.

Benefit from (Provision for) Income Tax&genefit from (provision for) income taxes for theay ended December 31, 2012 was a $9.1
million provision versus a $2.5 million provision the prior year. The current provision relatesrelytto the United States subsidiary
operations. We are profitable in the United Stakea result of intercompany transactions betweetJaited States subsidiary and our other
companies. The increase in the 2012 provisionrfoorine taxes primarily relates to the exerciseaflsbptions of which the excess benefits
related to the option exercises are recorded tdiaddl-paid-in capital.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity as of December 31, 20X3ude cash and cash equivalents of $191.5 mill@ur. projected uses of cash include
commercialization of Vascepa for the MARINE indioat preparations for commercialization of Vascépahe ANCHOR indication, if
approved, the continued funding of the REDUCE-ITdaavascular outcomes study, working capital afeeogeneral corporate activities. Our
cash flows from operating, investing and financaatjvities, as reflected in the consolidated statets of cash flows, are summarized in the
following table (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Cash (used in) provided b
Operating activitie: $(190.9) $(122.9) $(39.9)
Investing activities (0.0 (14.3 (2.0
Financing activitie: 121.¢ 280.2 126.€
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equive $ (68.7) $ 143.¢ $ 85.2

In July 2013, we sold 21.7 million shares of oumoaon shares, par value £0.50 per share, at aqiit® 60 per share, resulting in net
proceeds of approximately $121.2 million after detthg underwriting commissions and expenses payaples associated with this
transaction.

On December 6, 2012 we entered into a financingeagent with BioPharma. Under this agreement, wetgdato BioPharma a security
interest in future receivables and all relatedtsgb Vascepa, in exchange for $100 million recgtigethe closing of the agreement which
closing occurred in December 2012. We have ageegpay BioPharma up to $150 million of future newe and receivables. The first
repayment under the agreement was a repayment®h$lion of interest in November 2013, reflectiokthe option reduction described
below. Additional quarterly repayments are duedhéer in accordance with the following schedul25%million of interest in the first quarter
of 2014; $8.0 million per quarter in each of thetrfeur quarters, $10.0 million per quarter in ea€lhe next four quarters, $15.0 million per
quarter in each of the next four quarters and @ fiayment of $13.0 million due in May 2017. Theadarly repayments through the third
quarter of September 2014 represent interest @ugrterly payments do not begin to reduce the jaddalance until the fourth quarter of
2014. For the three months ended September 30,&td®ecember 31, 2013, revenues were below theaotumal threshold amount such that
a cash payment of $0.8 million is was made in Ndven2013 and a cash payment of $1.0 million isiduéebruary 2014, reflecting the
calculated optional reduction amount as opposéde@ontractual threshold payment of $2.5 milliondach quarterly period. In accordance
with the agreement with BioPharma, quarterly ddéfeses between the calculated optional reductioruate@nd the repayment schedule
amounts are rescheduled for payment beginningeiséicond quarter of 2017. Any such deferred paysneilitremain subject to continued
application of the quarterly ceiling in amounts astablished by the calculated threshold basediarterly Vascepa revenues. Except upon a
change of control in Amarin, the agreement doesrpire until $150 million has been repaid. Under agreement, upon a change of control,
we would be required to pay $140 million, less prgviously repaid amount, if the change of conbadurs on or before December 31, 2013,
or required to repay $150 million, less any presiguepaid amount, if the change of control evertuos after December 31, 2013. We can
prepay after October 1, 2013, an amount equal 50 $dillion less any previously repaid amount. Werently estimate that Vascepa revenue
levels will not be high enough in each quarterupport repayment to BioPharma in accordance witstiold amounts in the repayment
schedule.

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through our wholly-od/sebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, or Corsicantoyiagie limited company
incorporated under the laws of Ireland, completgdizate placement of $150.0 million in aggregategpal amount of its 3.5% exchangeable
senior notes due 2032. The proceeds we receivettfre January 2012 debt offering were approxima#&i4.3 million, net of fees and
transaction costs. These notes
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were issued pursuant to an indenture dated asabda9, 2012, by and among Corsicanto, us as giumyand Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee. The notes are the senggaured obligations of Corsicanto and are guagdritg us. The notes bear interest at a ra
3.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arreadaonary 15 and July 15 of each year, beginningugn15, 2012. The notes mature on
January 15, 2032, unless earlier repurchased, meztber exchanged. On or after January 19, 201 mayeelect to redeem for cash all or a
portion of the notes for the principal amount of tiotes plus accrued and unpaid interest. On datdmaary 19, 2017, January 19, 2022 and
January 19, 2027, the holders of the notes mayinethat we repurchase in cash the principal amofitite notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest. At any time prior to January 15, 203Qymupertain circumstances, which circumstances dechur issuing a notice of redemption to
the note holders, the price of our shares tradimya 130% of the exchange price, or certain ottients defined in the note agreement, the
holders of the notes may elect to convert the ndes exchange rate for conversion is 113.4752 A8s51,000 principal amount of the nc
(equivalent to an initial exchange price of appneadely $8.8125 per ADS), subject to adjustmentirtadn circumstances, including adjustn
if we pay cash dividends. Upon exchange, the nogsbe settled, at our election, subject to cetaimditions, in cash, ADSs or a combinatior
of cash and ADSs.

As of December 31, 2013, we had cash and cashaquots of $191.5 million, a decrease of $68.7 omllirom December 31, 2012. The
decrease is primarily due to net cash used in tipgractivities in support of the commercial lauraffVascepa, net of proceeds from financing
activities. We have incurred annual operating lessece our inception and, as a result, we hadcamnaulated deficit of $913.9 million as of
December 31, 2013. We believe that our cash artdesivalents balance of $191.5 million at Decen81er2013 will be sufficient to fund o
projected operations for at least the next twelomtins. We anticipate that net cash outflows in 28lH4be significantly lower than net cash
outflows in 2013 as a result of a reduction in egeess associated with the commercialization of Viaaclwer headcount and lower supply
purchases.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions at December 31, 2013 and the effects shiajetions are expected to have on
our liquidity and cash flows in future periods fmillions):

Payments Due by Period

2015 2017
Total 2014 to 2016 to 201¢ After 2018
Contractual Obligations
Purchase obligations ( $106.¢ $18.7% $ 60.€ $23.¢ $ 3.€
Operating lease obligations ( 3.C 0.8 1.2 0.9 —
Interest payment obligatio—exchangeable debt ( 26.2 5.2 10.t 10.t —
Principal & Interest payment obligatic—Biopharma (4. 149.2 25.C 93.C 31.2 —
Total contractual cash obligatio $285.¢ $49.¢ $165.¢ $66.4 $ 3.

(1) We have agreements with API suppliers whicluide minimum purchase levels to enable us to miairteclusivity with each respective
supplier, and to prevent potential terminationte agreements based on our estimated minimum @B&chguirements. The amounts in
the table above reflect amounts potentially pay&bleur suppliers based on our minimum purchasigatibns. These amounts reflect
assumption that the sNDA for Slanmhor is approvatithat Slanmhor completes construction and vadidaif its manufacturing facility
and that BASF is able to successfully completevtiiglation of its manufacturing proce:

(2) Represents operating lease costs, primarily cangisf leases for facilities in Dublin, Ireland, @ainster, NJ and Groton, C

(3) Represents interest payments due under the tefiour 3.5% exchangeable senior notes (“notes8)2D32, assuming they remain
outstanding for the next five years and have nehtexchanged for ADRs. Tl
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above table does not reflect the repayment of #$ million notes as they may be exchanged foRAl

(4) Represents principal and interest paymentstwlvig anticipate paying under the terms of the agess entered into with Biopharma
Secured Debt Fund Il Holdings Cayman LP (Biopharrefigcting full payment based on the quarterlyaggpent schedule under that
agreement, without regard to our potential to elgetrterly reductions in such payment amountseénethent that Vascepa revenue levels
result in calculation under the agreement of loguaarterly repayment amounts. Under this agreentemiCompany granted to Biophar
a security interest in future receivables andiglits to Vascepa, in exchange for $100 million hese at the closing of the agreement
which closing occurred in December 2012. The Compeas agreed to repay Biopharma up to $150 mithiofuture revenue and
receivables. The first repayment under the agreenfe$0.8 million was made to Biopharma in Novemd@t3 and a second quarterly
payment of $1.0 million is due in the first quartéi2014. Additional quarterly repayments are chexeafter in accordance with the
following schedule: $8.0 million per quarter in baaf the next four quarters, $10.0 million per deaim each of the next four quarters,
$15.0 million per quarter in each of the next fquarters and a final payment of $13.0 million dudliay 2017. All such payments red
the remainder of the $150 million in aggregate pawyts to Biopharma. For accounting purposes, theelarepayments through the
third quarter of September 2014 represent intenelgt Quarterly payments do not begin to reduceptiecipal balance until the fourth
quarter of 2014. These quarterly payments are sutgjex quarterly threshold amount whereby, if lewdated threshold, based on
quarterly Vascepa revenues, is not achieved, tagaply payment payable in that quarter can atetegtion be reduced and with the
reduction carried forward without interest for pagmhin a future period. The table above reflectgnent in full of the scheduled
quarterly amounts without regard to such potemfiatted reduction:

We do not enter into financial instruments for tngdor speculative purposes.

In April 2013, we announced the approval by the FidAhe sNDAs covering two of our API suppliers,édfiport, Inc. and BASF
(formerly Equateq Limited). On December 30, 2018,igsued a notice of termination of our API agreatnt@ BASF as a result of BASF's
non-compliance with the terms of such agreemenSB#s entitled to a 60-day cure period and thestabbve includes minimum purchase
commitments to BASF assuming that BASF cures withis period and successfully completes the vabdadf its manufacturing process for
the manufacture of Vascepa API. These commercllglagreements provide access to additional ABplsuthat is incremental to supply
from Nisshin, our other existing FDA-approved ABpplier. Each of these additional API agreementdaraplates a phased capacity
expansion plan aimed at creating sufficient cagdoiimeet anticipated demand for API material fais®epa following commercial launch.
These API suppliers are self-funding these expanslians with contributions from us. These agreemamude requirements for the suppliers
to qualify their materials and facilities. We aiiiite incurring certain costs associated with thalification of product manufactured by these
suppliers. These agreements include annual purétnasis enabling us to maintain supply exclusiviiyh each respective supplier, and to
prevent potential termination of the agreement& CThemport agreement includes a provision thasaoytfall in the minimum purchase
commitments is payable in cash, and the maximuruatsgayable pursuant to this provision are reflg¢@ the table above. The sNDA for
the consortium led by Slanmhor, our intended foeh supplier, is not yet approved and the consimacand validation of their facility has
not been completed for the manufacture of Vascdpla Wowever, the minimum purchase commitmentsabatd result in a future cash
obligation have been included in the above table.

The two supply agreements entered into in 2011 BABF and Chemport also include (i) developmens igeto a maximum of
$0.5 million, (ii) material commitments of up to.$5million for initial raw materials, which will beredited against future API purchases, a1
refundable to us if a supplier does not succesgstidielop and qualify the API by a certain date] éii) a raw material purchase commitment
of $1.1 million. We have paid $3.1 million relatedthese commitments through December 31, 2013etJaitiof our supply agreements,
during the year ended December 31, 2013 we purdhegaroximately $25.7 million of Vascepa API. Tlggeement with the fourth API
supplier, when all contingencies are eliminatedh®ysupplier, provides for development fees ofauf2.3 million and a commitment of up to
$15.0 million, which will be credited against futuUAPI material purchases. We have paid $6.2 mille@ated to these commitments through
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December 31, 2013. The $15.0 million commitmenti$eeontingent upon the mutually agreed upon exparsf Slanmhor’'s API
manufacturing capacity beyond the facility whicls ladready been constructed and is in the processing qualified by Slanmhor. As of the
date of this Annual Report, the parties have notedjupon such additional expansion. Under thiseagent, during 2013 and 2012, we made
payments of $6.1 million and $1.6 million to Slaronhelated to stability and technical batches athhaces on future API purchases.

Concurrent with our supply agreements with Chemeotéred into in 2011 for the supply of APl matisrfar Vascepa, we agreed to
make a non-controlling minority share equity inwesht in the supplier of up to $3.3 million. We isted $1.7 million under this agreement in
July 2011 and the remaining $1.6 million during 20th September 2013, we entered into an equityaadl purchase agreement between this
supplier and a third party in which we agreed tbaggproximately $1.3 million of our investmenttime supplier to the third party at cost. This
transaction closed in the first quarter of 2014e Thrrying amount of $3.3 million as of DecemberZ113 and 2012 is included in other long
term assets and is accounted for under the cosioehet

Under the 2004 share repurchase agreement withalekdmited, or Laxdale, upon approval of Vascepdhe FDA on July 26, 2012, \
were required to make a milestone payment to LaxdbE7.5 million. We made this payment in 2012 aaglitalized this Laxdale milestone
payment of $11.6 million as a component of othaglterm assets. This long-term asset is being &adrover the estimated useful life of the
intellectual property we acquired from Laxdale averecognized amortization expense of $0.6 miliod $0.3 million during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Also utideLaxdale agreement, upon receipt of markegmgroval in Europe for the first
indication for Vascepa (or first indication of apgoduct containing Amarin Neuroscience intelleciuralperty acquired from Laxdale in 2004),
we must make an aggregate stock or cash paym#ém former shareholders of Laxdale (at the sol®nopif each of the sellers) o7 & million
(approximately $12.4 million at December 31, 20¥8jditionally, upon receipt of a marketing approwathe U.S. or Europe for a further
indication of Vascepa (or further indication of astjer product using Amarin Neuroscience intellatproperty), we must make an aggregate
stock or cash payment (at the sole option of efdtheosellers) of £5 million (approximately $8.2lioin at December 31, 2013) for each of the
two potential market approvals (i.e. £10 millionximum, or approximately $16.5 million at Decembér 3013).

In addition to the obligations in the table abowe,have recorded a liability of $0.6 million foreertain tax positions that have been
recorded in long-term liabilities at December 3012. We are not able to reasonably estimate inwhiture periods these amounts will
ultimately be settled.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any special purpose entities or afidbalance sheet arrangements.

Shelf Registration Statement

On March 29, 2011, we filed with the SEC a univestelf registration statement on Form S-3 (Regii&in No. 333-173132), which
provides for the offer, from time to time, of améterminate and unlimited amount of: ordinary shangich may be represented by American
Depositary Shares; preference shares, which maggdresented by American Depositary Shares; senisulwordinated debt securities;
warrants to purchase any of these securities; apg@mbination of these securities, individuallyasrunits. In addition, if we identify any
security holder(s) in a prospectus supplement, thay also offer identified securities under thigiseration statement although we will not
receive any of the proceeds from the sale of skesitby any of these selling security holders. Tiniversal shelf registration statement was
automatically effective upon its filing. The additi of any newly issued equity securities into tterket may be dilutive to existing stockholc
and new issuances by us or sales by our sellingrisebolders could have an adverse effect on timf our securities.
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ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risks, which include chamg interest rates. We do not use derivativenfired instruments in our investment
portfolio, and prior to 2013 we entered into ncefign exchange contracts. Our investments meetdriggit quality and diversification
standards, as specified in our investment policyDAcember 31, 2013, we recorded as a liabilityfélirevalue of warrants to purchase
8.1 million shares of our common stock issued tedtors. The fair value of this warrant derivatiability is determined using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model and is thereforsisigr to changes in the market price and volgtdit our common stock among other
factors. In the event of a hypothetical 10% inceciasthe market price of our common shares ($2aket on the $1.97 market price of our
stock at December 31, 2013) on which the Decembg2@®1 3 valuation was based, the value of the dtvi liability would have increased by
$1.3 million. Such increase would have been refiéets a loss on change in fair value of derivdialglity and increase in warrant
compensation expense in our statement of operations

Foreign Currency Exchange RisRur results of operations and cash flows are stibjetuctuations due to changes in the Euro, Bigrl
and Yen. The majority of cash and cash equivalamtsthe majority of our vendor relationships ameaeinated in U.S. dollars. We therefore
believe that the risk of a significant impact o operating income from foreign currency fluctuagds not substantial. From time to time, we
maintain a small amount of our cash and cash elguitsain Euro and Pound Sterling. We purchase suppin Nisshin in Japanese Yen. As
our level of supply purchases from Nisshin increlese2013, we entered into short-term forward coeyepricing contracts to lock-in the
exchange rate on a portion of our anticipated psek denominated in Japanese Yen. All such cositnage settled as of December 31, 2013
and there are no outstanding forward currency eotsr

Interest Rate RiskiVe believe that we are not exposed to significat@rest rate risk through market value fluctuatiohbalance sheet
items (i.e., price risk) or through changes iniiest income or expenses (i.e., re-financing onvestment risk). Interest rate risk mainly arises
through interest bearing liabilities and assets.ilVest funds not needed for near-term operatiqgesges in diversified shaterm investment:
consisting primarily of investment grade securitiés of December 31, 2013, the fair value of owghcand cash equivalents maturing in one
year or less was $191.5 million and represente@dl60our cash, cash equivalents and investmentghiortA hypothetical 50 basis poi
change in interest rates would not result in a nealtdecrease or increase in the fair value ofsmaurities due to the general short-term nature
of our investment portfolio.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary De
Our consolidated financial statements are annaxduig report beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéagnting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requindaetdisclosed in the reports that we
file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act®84, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is (1) ided, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in tH&CS rules and forms and (2) accumulated and conrated to our management, including
our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Fic#l Officer, to allow timely decisions regardingguired disclosure. As of December 31,
2013 (the “Evaluation Date”), our management, lith participation of our Principal Executive Officnd Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsiaind procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15()1&d415(e) under the Exchange Act). (
management recognizes that any controls and proegdwo matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable assurance of
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achieving their objectives, and management nedsagplies its judgment in evaluating the cost-&firrelationship of possible controls and
procedures. Our Principal Executive Officer andh&ipal Financial Officer have concluded based ugherevaluation described above that, as
of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls pratedures were effective at the reasonable asseitavel.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for our company.
Internal control over financial reporting is defihim Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(dB(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a pdesigne
by, or under the supervision of, our Principal Exe® Officer and Principal Financial Officer anffezted by our board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakpassurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ttetuthose policies and procedures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records that in realsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@aetions and disposition of our
assets

» provide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiflahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting princip

» provide reasonable assurance that our receipte)gehditures are being made only in accordanceawithorization of our
management and directors; &

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the finansfatements

Because of inherent limitations, internal contmler financial reporting may not prevent or detaitstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risks that controls may become inadegfibecause of changes in conditions o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Our management, including our Principal Executi¥o®r and Principal Financial Officer, has condadtan evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcegporting as of December 31, 2013. In conductirig evaluation, we used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO)Jiternal Control-Integrated Framework

Based upon this evaluation and those criteria, gemant believes that, as of December 31, 2013ntennal controls over financial
reporting were effective.

Deloitte and Touche LLP, our independent registgndulic accounting firm, has audited our consokddfinancial statements and the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcegporting as of December 31, 2013. This repopieaps below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control éwamncial reporting during the fourth quarter ofl3hat have materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interantrol over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Amarin Corporation plc
Dublin, Ireland

We have audited the internal control over finangglorting of Amarin Corporation plc and its sulisigbs (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishbdemal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camsamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanyiidanagement’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti. Our responsibility is to express an opinion o& @ompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pErs performing similar functions, and effected g tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakpassurance regarding the reliability of financeglorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comgisaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thakasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetesof the company; (2) provide reasonable asserdat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stat@siin accordance with generally accepted acougiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management anedtdrs of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventatktected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fingl reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on the criteria establishethtarnal Control—Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizal
of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#s ended December 31, 2013 of the Company ancepart dated February 27, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstatements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 27, 2014
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Item 9B.  Other Information
Entry into Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

Our policy governing transactions in our securibgsour directors, officers and employees permitsafficers, directors and certain ot
persons to enter into trading plans complying Wtlle 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act 8418s amended. We have been advisec
that a number of our directors and employees, dictumembers of our senior management team, amdiment funds associated with such
persons, have entered into trading plans in acoolwith Rule 10b5-1 and our policy governing teati®ns in our securities. We undertake
no obligation to update or revise the informatioavided herein, including for revision or termiratiof an established trading plan.
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2014 Annual General Meeting of Shareha@d&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of basisenduct and ethics that applies to our directdfisers and employees. There have
been no material modifications to, or waivers frahg provisions of such code. This code is avaglainl the corporate governance section of
our website (which is a subsection of the investtations section of our website) at the followadgdress: www.amarincorp.com. Any waivers
from or amendments to the code will be filed whie SEC on Form 8-K. You may also request a priotgry of the code, without charge, by
writing to us at Amarin Pharma, Inc., 1430 Routé,ZBedminster, NJ 07921, Attention: Investor Relasi

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2014 Annual General Meeting of Sharehadd&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information required by this item will be cointed in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2014 Annual General Meeting of Sharehadd&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independenci

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2014 Annual General Meeting of Shareha@d&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item will be cointed in our definitive proxy statement, which v filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2014 Annual General Meeting of Sharehadd&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduli

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Association of the Company
4.1 Form of Amended and Restated Deposit
Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2011,
among the Company, Citibank, N.A., as
Depositary, and all holders from time to time of
American Depositary Receipts issued thereu
4.2 Indenture, dated as of January 9, 2012, by and
among Corsicanto Limited, the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
trustee
4.3 Form of Ordinary Share certificate
4.4 Form of American Depositary Receipt
evidencing ADSs
10.1 The Company 2002 Stock Option Plan*
10.2 The Company 2011 Stock Option Plan*
10.3 Amendment No. 1 to 2011 Stock Option
Incentive Plan*
10.4 Amendment No. 2 to 2011 Stock Option
Incentive Plan*
10.5 Amendment No. 3 to 2011 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan*
10.6 Amarin Corporation plc Management Incentive
Compensation Plan*
10.7 Form of Incentive Stock Option Award

Agreement

PART IV

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Form Date

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. O- August 8, 2013
21392, as Exhibit 3.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 29, 2012
ended December 31, 2011, File Nd21892, a
Exhibit 4.1

Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 9, January 10, 2012
2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 4.1

Annual Report on Form 2B-for the year ende  April 24, 2003
December 31, 2002, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 2.4

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 29, 2012
ended December 31, 2011, File Nd21B92, a
Exhibit 4.4

Annual Report on Form 2B-for the year end¢ ~ March 5, 2007
December 31, 2006, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 4.17

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
ended June 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.4

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly  August 8, 2008
period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
as Exhibit 10.!

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly  August 8, 2008
period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
as Exhibit 10.z

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 28, 2012
ended December 31, 2012, File Nd21B92, a
Exhibit 10.5

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year March 16, 2011
ended December 31, 2010, File Na2TB92, a
Exhibit 10.44

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 29, 2012
ended December 31, 2011, File Nd21B892, a
Exhibit 10.3
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Exhibit

Number

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Incorporated by Reference Hereir

Description Form Date
Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
Agreement December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
10.4

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

10.5
Letter Agreement dated August 1, 2008 with Pe  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
Soni* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

10.20
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with DrRegistration Statement on Form F-1, File No.  December 14, 2009
Declan Doogan 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009
Joseph S. Zakrzewsk 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C
Letter Agreement dated October 16, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009
Thomas G. Lynch: 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C

Letter Agreement, dated December 2, 2009, amorginual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
the Company, Sunninghill Limited, Michael WalshDecember 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
and Simon Kuke 10.35

Letter Agreement dated December 9, 2009 with Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. = December 14, 2009
Thomas G. Lynch, Alan Cooke and Tom Mah 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C

Letter Agreement, dated August 16, 2010, betweefinnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011

the Company and Colin Stewart* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

10.39
Letter Agreement, dated November 15, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between the Company and John F. Thero* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

10.42
Letter Agreement dated March 1, 2010 with Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
Frederick W. Ahlholm* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

10.46
Letter Agreement dated January 28, 2011 with  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period May 10, 2011
Huff* ended March 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.1
Letter Agreement with Joseph Kennedy, dated  Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
December 13, 2011* 2011, File

No. (-21392, as Exhibit 10.

Letter Agreement with Stuart Sedlack, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
December 23, 2011* 2011, File
No. (-21392, as Exhibit 10.
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Exhibit

Number

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Incorporated by Reference Hereir

Description Form Date
Letter Agreement with John Thero, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
December 23, 2011 2011, FileNo. (-21392,as Exhibit 10.1
Letter Agreement with Paul Huff, dated DecembelCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
23, 2011* 2011, FileNo. C-21392,as Exhibit 10.:
Letter Agreement with Paresh Soni, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
December 23, 2011* 2011, File

No. (-21392, as Exhibit 10.

Letter Agreement with Steve Ketchum, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 16, February 16, 2012
February 8, 2012 2012, File No. -21392, as Exhibit 10.

2011 Long Term Incentive Award with Joseph ~ Form S-8, File No. 333-180180, as Exhibit 4.1 March 16, 2012
Kennedy dated December 16, 20:

2012 Long Term Incentive Award with Steven Form S-8, File No. 333-180180, as Exhibit 4.2 March 16, 2012
Ketchum dated March 1, 201,

Compromise Agreement, dated October 16, 2009 Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
between the Company and Alan Cooke December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
4.95

Warrant Agreement, dated October 16, 2009, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
between the Company and Thomas G. Lynch*  December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

4.96
Employment Agreement dated November 5, 2009Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009
with John F. Thero 33:-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C
Compromise Agreement dated December 10, 200Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 14, 2009
with Tom Maher* K, File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 99.

Transitional Employment Agreement, dated Aur  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
16, 2010, between the Company and Declan December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Doogan* 10.38

Resignation and Release Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
November 9, 2010, between the Company December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Colin Stewart* 10.41

Employment Agreement, effective December 31, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
2010, between the Company and Joseph S. December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Zakrzewski* 10.43

Consulting Agreement, dated November 10, 2010Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between the Company and Joseph S. ZakrzewskiBDecember 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
10.45
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Exhibit

Number

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

Incorporated by Reference Hereir

Description Form Date
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 20, October 20, 2011
with Joe Zakrzewski, dated October 20, 20 2011, File No. -21392, as Exhibit 10.

Stuart Sedlack offer letter, dated August 1, 2007* Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period November 8, 201
ended September 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.1

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated March 14, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended April 24, 2003
2003, between F. Hoffmann-La Roche Limited, December 31, 2002, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Hoffmanr-La Roche Inc., and the Compa 4.22

Share Purchase Agreement, dated October 8, 20@Registration Statement on Form F-3, File No. December 20, 2004
between the Company, Vida Capital Partners 333-121431, as Exhibit 4.24
Limited and the Vendors named ther

Agreement, dated January 18, 2007, between  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008

Neurostat Pharmaceuticals Inc., Ame December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited, the Company anl62
Mr. Tim Lynch

Development and License Agreement dated MarcAnnual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
6, 2007 between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Limited and Elan Pharma International Limited 4.67

Termination and Assignment Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
July 21, 2009 between Elan Pharma International December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Limited and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland 4.90

Limited T+

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2007Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
between the Company and the Purchasers namedecember 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
therein 4.69

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreement foReport of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, betweknFile No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 99.5
the Company and the Purchasers named th

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreement foReport of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
Non-U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, K, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 99.6

between the Company and the Purchasers named

therein
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Exhibit

Number

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Form of Debt Securities Purchase Agreement, ( Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
December 4, 2007, between the Company and th&, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 99.7
Purchasers named ther

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 5, Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-January 28, 2008
2007, between the Company, the selling K, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 99.1

shareholders of Ester Neurosciences Limited, Ester

Neurosciences Limited and Medica Il Managen

L.P. Tt
Letter Agreement, dated December 6, 2007, Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-February 1, 2008
between the Company and the Sellers’ K, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 99.1

Representative of the selling shareholders of Ester
Neurosciences Limite

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement,Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
dated April 7, 2008, between the Company and December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Medica Il Management L.f 4.79

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 12, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
2008, among the Company and the Purchasers December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
named therei 4.80

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
13, 2008, between the Company and the Purch December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
named therein 4.81

Amendment and Waiver Agreement, dated May Annual Report on Form 2BfA for the year ende December 4, 2009
2009, between Ester Neurosciences Limited, December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Medica Il Management L.P. and the Compan 4.88

Bridge Loan Agreement, dated July 31, 2009 Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
between the Company and the Lenders identified December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
therein 4.93

Amendment No. 1 to Bridge Loan Agreement,  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
dated September 30, 2009, between the Companpecember 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
and the Lenders identified there 10.21

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
October 12, 2009 between the Company and the December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Purchasers named ther 4.94
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Number Description Form Date

10.56 Amendment No. 1, dated December 2, 2009, to Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No.  December 14, 2009
Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 12333-163704, as Exhibit 4.105
2009 between the Company and the Purchasers
named thereil

10.57 Master Services Agreement, dated September 29Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
2009, between Medpace Inc. and Amarin PharmaDecember 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Inc. and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limi 492

10.58 Amendment Agreement dated October 12, 2009, thnnual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
the Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreemeribecember 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
dated May 13, 2008 between the Company and th&97
Purchasers named ther

10.59 Management Rights Deed of Agreement dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended June 25, 2010
October 16, 2009 by and among the Company anBecember 31, 2009, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Purchasers named ther: 4.100

10.60 Supply Agreement, dated November 1, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between Nisshin Pharma Inc. and Amarin December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited 10.40

10.61 API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland ended June 30, 2011, File No20392, as Exhib
Ltd. and Chemport Inc. 1 10.2

10.62 Amendment to APl Commercial Supply Agreen  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
by and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

Ltd and Chemport Inc., dated April 4, 2012 Exhibit 10.6
10.63 Second Amendment to APl Commercial Supply Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly November 8, 201
Agreement by and between Amarin period ended September 30, 2012, File No. 0-

Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. and Chemport Inc., 21392, as Exhibit 10.1
dated July 19, 2012 1

10.64 API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland ended June 30, 2011, File No20392, as Exhib
Ltd. and Equateq Limitedt 10.1
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Exhibit

Number

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

10.73

Incorporated by Reference Hereir

Description Form Date
Amendment to API Commercial Supply Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012

Agreement, dated October 19, 2011, between  December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. and Equategl10.51
Limited T

Second Amendment to APl Supply Agreement by Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly May 5, 2012
and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltdperiod ended March 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
and Equateq Limited dated January 9, 201 as Exhibit 10.1

Third Amendment to APl Supply Agreement by  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly May 5, 2012
and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltdperiod ended March 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
and Equateq Limited dated May 7, 2012 as Exhibit 10.Z

Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of April Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period  August 9, 2011
11, 2011, as amended by the First Amendment toended June 30, 2011, File No20392, as Exhib

Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of May 910.3

2011, each by Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland

and Bedminster 2 Funding, LL

Second Amendment to Irrevocable License Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Agreement, by and between Bedminster 2 Func period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,  Exhibit 10.4

dated April 25, 201!

Third Amendment to Irrevocable License Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Agreement by and between Bedminster 2 Fundingeriod ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,  Exhibit 10.5

dated July 17, 201

Fourth Amendment to Irrevocable License Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 28, 2012
Agreement by and between Bedminster 2 Fundind)ecember 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,, 10.71

dated December 15, 20

Online Office Agreement dated as of Septembe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period November 8, 201
2011 by Amarin Corporation plc and Regus CME ended September 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Ireland Ltd. Exhibit 10.2

Lease Agreement, dated January 22, 2007, bet Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 5, 2007
the Company, Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland December 31, 2006, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Limited and Mr. David Colgan, Mr. Philip 4.71
Monaghan, Mr. Finian McDonnell and Mr. Patrick
Ryan
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Exhibit

Number

10.74

10.75

10.76

10.77

141

21.1
23.1

311

31.2

32.1

101
101

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Lease Agreement dated May 8, 2013, by and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period May 9, 2013
between Amarin Pharma, Inc. and Bedminster 2 ended March 31, 2013, File No. 0-21392, as
Funding, LLC. Exhibit 10.1

Lease Agreement dated November 28, 2011, b  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
Company, 534 East Middle Turnpike, LLC, Peter December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Jay Alter, as Trustee of the Leon C. Lech 10.61

Irrevocable Trust under Declaration of Trust dated

October 14, 1980 and Ferndale Realty, L

Sublease Agreement by and among Advance F  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Management, Inc., Bedminster 2 Funding, LLC period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as
Amarin Pharma Inc., dated April 25, 20 Exhibit 10.3

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December &nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 28, 2012
2012, by and between Amarin Corporation plc, December 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited and 10.76

Biopharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holdings Cay

LPTT

Code of Ethics Registration Statement on Form F-3, File No. November 10, 201
332-170505, as Exhibit 99.

List of Subsidiarie: Filed herewitt

Consent of Independent Registered Public Filed herewith

Accounting Firm

Certification of President and Chief Executive Filed herewith
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Controller (Principal Financial Filed herewith
Officer) pursuant to Section 302 of Sarba@edey
Act of 2002

Certification of President and Chief Executive Filed herewith
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Contra

(Principal Financial Officer) pursuant to Section

906 of Sarban«+Oxley Act of 200z

INS XBRL Instance Documelt

SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Number Description Form Date
101 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase
Document
101 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Documer
101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase
Document
101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase
Document

tt Confidential treatment has been granted witheeisto portions of this exhibit pursuant to anleyagpion requesting confidential treatment
under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Adi9®4. A complete copy of this exhibit, includingtfedacted terms, has been
separately filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ission.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

A MARIN C ORPORATIONP LC

By:
/s/ John F. Thero
John F. Thert
PresidentandChief Executive Office

Date: February 27, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#te indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ John F. Thero President and Chief Executive Officer ( Princ February 27, 2014
John F. Thert Executive Officer)
/sl Michael J. Farrell Controller February 27, 2014
Michael J. Farrel (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Lars Ekman Director February 27, 2014
Lars Ekmar
/s/ James Healy, M.D., Ph.D. Director February 27, 2014
James Healy, M.D., Ph.I
/s/ Patrick O'Sullivan Director February 27, 2014
Patrick C Sullivan
/s| Kristine Peterson Director February 27, 2014
Kristine Petersol
/s/ David Stack Director February 27, 2014
David Stack
/s/ Jan van Heek Director February 27, 2014
Jan van Hee
/sl Joseph Zakrzewski Director February 27, 2014

Joseph Zakrzews!

94



Table of Contents

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-2
Financial Statement
Consolidated Balance She: F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operati F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Deficit F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt F-7

Financial Statement Schedul:

Financial statement schedules have been omittethdareason that the required information is preskim the consolidated financial statem
or notes thereto, the amounts involved are notfgignt or the schedules are not applicable.

F-1



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Amarin Corporation plc
Dublin, Ireland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Amarin Corporation plc and subsidigtiee “Company”) as of December
31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidatéeinséants of operations, stockholders’ deficit, aashcflows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2013. These financi@retnts are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemerstschan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of Amarin Corporation plc
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 20tthe results of their operations and their ¢lasts for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity \&itbounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013, based on the criteria establishbdarnal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission and our report datdaeey 27, 2014 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company'’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 27, 2014
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Inventory, curren
Deferred tax asse
Other current asse
Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |
Inventory, long tern

Deferred tax asse

Other noi-current assel
Intangible asset, ni

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl
Accrued interest payab
Warrant derivative liability, currer
Deferred revenu
Accrued expenses and other current liabili

Total current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Warrant derivative liability, lon-term
Exchangeable senior not
Long-term debt
Long-term debt redemption featu
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' Deficit:
Common stock, £0.50 par value, unlimited authoridé®,691,063 issued, 172,670,984 outstandin
December 31, 2013; 150,360,933 issued, 150,34@8&4anding at December 31, 2(
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury stock; 20,079 shares at December 31, 2042012
Accumulated defici
Total stockholder deficit
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne
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As of

December 31,

2013

2012

(in thousands, excep
share amounts)

$ 191,51
1,00(
3,64t

21,20¢
471
1,567
219,40:
57¢
5,48:
11,94«
4,36(
10,70¢

$ 252,47

$ 6,37t
12,97
6,89¢
1,70:
9,59¢
37,54(

149,31
87,71,
11,10(

65¢

286,33:

141,47
738,75
(217)
(913,871
(33,85¢)

$ 252,47

$ 260,24:

21,26:
937
3,25¢
285,69:
811

8,04«
4,951
11,35¢

$ 310,85!

$ 17,45¢
2,52(

5,22¢
25,20:

54,85«
134,25(
85,15!
14,571
81¢€
314,85:

124,59°
619,26
(217)
(747,64
(3.99)

$ 310,85!
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Revenue:
Operating Expense

Cost of goods sol

Research and developmt

Selling, general and administrati

Total operating expens

Operating los!
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiabilities
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Other (expense) income, r
Loss from operations before tax
Benefit from (provision for) income tax
Net loss

Loss per share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

F-4

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except pe
share amounts)

$ 26,35: $ = $ —
11,910 — —
72,75( 58,95¢ 21,60:
123,79! 57,79¢ 22,55¢
208,45 116,75( 44,16:
(182,101 (116,75() (44,167)
47,71( (35,344 (22,669
(34,179 (18,097 (1)
34z 544 231
(1,189 (427) (10)
(169,42) (170,06¢) (66,61()
3,19¢ (9,116) (2,516)
$(166,22)  $(179,18)  $(69,12¢)
$ (109 $ (129 $ (059
$ (120 $ (129 $ (059
161,02. 144,01 130,24
167,07( 144,01 130,24
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(in thousands, except share data)

At January 1, 2011

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Stock issued in January financi

Tax benefits realized from stc-based compensatic

Transfer of fair value of warrants exercised from
liabilities to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

At December 31, 201

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Vesting of restricted stock uni

Conversion option contained in exchangeable r

Tax benefits realized from stc-based compensatic

Transfer of fair value of warrants exercised from
liabilities to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

At December 31, 201.

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Stock issued in July financir

Vesting of restricted stock uni

Tax provision on stoc-based compensatic

Transfer of fair value of warrants exercised from
liabilities to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

At December 31, 201:

Total

Additional Treasury Accumulated Stockholders’
Common Common Paid-in
Shares Stock Capital Stock Deficit Deficit
106,856,73 $ 90,46 $206,71¢ $ (217) $(499,33) $(202,36)
12,888,36 10,28¢ 8,41 — — 18,70:
2,273,22 1,83: 3,261 — — 5,094
13,800,00 10,72: 87,93 — — 98,65
— — 4,19¢ — — 4,19¢
— — 129,51 — — 129,51
14,22: 11 60 — — 71
_ — 9,29¢ — — 9,29¢
— — — — (69,126) (69,12¢)
135,832,54  $113,32: $449,39. $ (217) $(568,45) $ (5,967)
11,047,57 8,54( 8,18( — — 16,72(
3,380,41 2,65¢ 5,54¢ — — 8,20t
97,39¢ 76 (76) — — —
— — 22,89¢ — — 22,89¢
— — 11,33¢ — — 11,33¢
— — 103,88! — — 103,88!
3,001 1 31 — — 32
— — 18,07t — — 18,07
— — — — (179,18, (179,18,
150,360,93  $124,59° $619,26t $ (217) $(747,64) $ (3,99
147,05( 118 47 — — 16C
386,00( 292 33t — — 627
21,700,00 16,40: 104,80! 121,20t
93,04¢ 71 (72) — — —
- - (361) - - (361)
— — 24 — — 24
4,032 3 24 — — 27
— — 14,68¢ — — 14,68¢
— — — — (166,22) (166,22)
172,691,06  $141,47° $738,75: $ (217) $(913,87() $ (33,856

See the notes to the consolidated financial stateane
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss $(166,22) $(179,18:) $(69,12¢)
Adjustments to reconcile loss to net cash usege@rating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 24¢€ 18C 76
Stoclk-based compensatic 14,68¢ 18,07t 9,29/
Stoclk-based compensati—warrants (3,709 247 (96)
Excess tax provision (benefit) from st-based award 361 (11,339 (4,199
Accrued interest payab 10,45« 2,52( —
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuances 17,63 12,85¢ —
Amortization of intangible ass 64€ 26¢ —
Foreign exchange loss on intangible a — 51¢ —
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of derivatiabilities (47,710 35,34« 22,66¢
Deferred income taxe (3,439 (3,719 (2,497
Change in lease liabilit 6 (50 (22)
Shares issued for servic 27 32 71
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Restricted cas (2,000 — —
Accounts receivabl (3,645 — —
Other current asse 1,69( (1,41¢) (779
Inventory (5,429 (21,267) —
Other noi-current asset 591 (1,060 (597
Deferred revenu 1,70: — —
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other tliakitities (7,229 25,67¢ 5,751
Net cash used in operating activit (190,339) (122,30 (39,439
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of equipme (14 (549 (399
Purchase of lor-term investmen — (1,650 (1,650
Purchase of intangible as: — (12,147 —
Net cash used in investing activiti (14) (14,347 (2,04¢)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of&etion cost 121,20t — 98,65¢
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, net ofstation cost 627 8,20¢ 5,09
Proceeds from exercise of warrants, net of trairmacbsts 16C 16,72( 18,70:
Proceeds on issuance of exchangeable senior metesf transaction cos — 144,31t —
Proceeds from long term debt, net of transactimts — 99,73( —
Excess tax (provision) benefit from st-based award (367) 11,33 4,19¢
Repayment of capital leas (10 (20) (2
Net cash provided by financing activiti 121,62. 280,28! 126,64
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (68,729 143,64( 85,16(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI 260,24: 116,60: 31,44.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI $ 191,51 $ 260,24: $116,60:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fc

Interest $ 6,09 $ 2,718 $ —
Income taxe: $ 1,39 $ 1,11¢ $ 761
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash items
Reclass of warrant liability to additional p-in capital $ 24 $ 103,88! $129,51°

See the notes to the consolidated financial statene

F-6



Table of Contents

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation
Nature of Business

Amarin Corporation plc, “Amarin” or the “Companys & biopharmaceutical company with expertise iid Igzience focused on the
commercialization and development of therapeutiasprove cardiovascular health.

Our lead product, Vascepa (icosapent ethyl) capsidgepproved by the U.S. Food and Drug Admintisina or FDA, for use as an adjunct to
diet to reduce triglyceride levels in adult pat&with severe (TG_500mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. The Company referthis approved
indication for Vascepa as the MARINE indication.ef@ompany began marketing and selling Vascepaittiited States in January 2013.
Vascepa is available in the United States by pigtsen only. The Company markets Vascepa througjsales force of approximately 150 sale:
professionals, including sales representativeslagid managers.

Triglycerides are fats in the blood. Hypertriglyidemia refers to a condition in which patients hhigh levels of triglycerides in the
bloodstream. It is estimated that over 40 milliciulés in the United States have elevated triglyteetéevels (TG >200mg/dL) and
approximately 4.0 million people in the United $&have severely high triglyceride levels (T&09®mg/dL), commonly known as very high
triglyceride levels. According tbhe American Heart Association Scientific Statemantriglycerides and Cardiovascular Dised8611),
triglycerides also provide important informationaamarker associated with the risk for heart diseesl stroke, especially when an individual
also has low high-density lipoprotein cholesteoolHDL-C (often referred to as “good” cholesteralpd elevated levels of LDL-C (often
referred to as “bad” cholesterol). Guidelines fog thanagement of very high triglyceride levels ssgighat reducing triglyceride levels is the
primary goal in patients to reduce the risk of aquancreatitis. The effect of Vascepa on cardiavasenortality and morbidity, or the risk for
pancreatitis, in patients with hypertriglyceriderhis not been determined.

The potential efficacy and safety of Vascepa (knawits development stage as AMR 101) was studigd/o Phase 3 clinical trials, the
MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial. At a daily dosé 4 grams of Vascepa, the dose at which VascepB#sapproved, these trials showed
favorable clinical results in their respective patipopulations in reducing triglyceride levelshwitit increasing LDL-C levels in the MARINE
trial and with a statistically significant decreasé.DL-C levels in the ANCHOR trial, in each case, relativ placebo. These trials also sho
favorable results, particularly with the 4-gram ela$ Vascepa, in other important lipid and inflantima biomarkers, including apolipoprotein
B (apo B), non-high-density lipoprotein cholestgradn-HDL-C), total-cholesterol (TC), very low-détydipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C),
lipoprotein-associated phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2) high sensitivity C-reactive protein (hs-CRR)tHese trials, the most commonly
reported adverse reaction (incidence >2% and grésda placebo) in Vascepa-treated patients wasadgia (joint pain) (2.3% for Vascepa vs.
1.0% for placebo).

The Company is also developing Vascepa for thériresat of patients with high (T& 200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) triglyceride levels whe a
also on statin therapy for elevated low-densitppipptein cholesterol, or LDL-C, levels which ther@many refers to as mixed dyslipidemia.
The Company refers to this second proposed indicdtir Vascepa as the ANCHOR indication. The FDA sited that it views the proposed
ANCHOR indication as ostensibly and impliedly adigation to reduce cardiovascular risk. In additionrDecember 2011, Amarin announced
commencement of patient dosing in a cardiovasautgomes study of Vascepa, titled REDUCE-IT (Reidinctf Cardiovascular Events with
EPA—Intervention Trial). The REDUCE-IT study is dgted to evaluate the efficacy of Vascepa in reuyionajor cardiovascular events in a
high risk patient population on statin therapy.

The Company has a pending supplemental new drugappn, or sSNDA, with the FDA that seeks markgtapproval of Vascepa for use in
the ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013, the F&phvened an advisory
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committee to review the sNDA. This advisory compgtivas not asked by the FDA to evaluate whethecdfesis effective in lowering
triglycerides in the studied population, the ANCH®Rlication as specified in the SNDA. Rather, tHeisory committee was asked whether
Vascepa has been demonstrated to improve cardigeagmitcomes or whether approval of the ANCHORdation should wait for successful
completion of the REDUCHF study, the first prospective study of cardioudac outcomes in patients who have high triglyoetielels despi
statin therapy. The advisory committee voted 9 égainst recommending approval of the ANCHOR intithcabased on information presented
at the meeting. The FDA considers the recommendati@advisory committee, but final decisions on dpproval of new drug applications are
made by the FDA. On October 22, 2013, in an etforeduce operating expenses following the reconaaon of the advisory committee, the
Company implemented a worldwide reduction in fas€approximately 50% of its staff positions (Seedb5 — Restructuring).

The ANCHOR trial clinical study was conducted undespecial protocol assessment, or SPA, agreemtimthe FDA. The law governing SF
agreements requires that if the results of thédagaducted under the SPA substantiate the hypistbéshe protocol covered by the SPA, the
FDA must use the data from the protocol as patti@fprimary basis for approval of the product. AASEreement is not a guarantee of FDA
approval of the related new drug application. A Siffeement is generally binding upon the FDA, ekgepmited circumstances, such as if
the FDA identifies a substantial scientific issgsential to determining safety or efficacy of thegafter the study begins that rises to the leve
of a public health concern, or if the study sporfads to follow the protocol that was agreed updgth the FDA. On October 29, 2013, the F
rescinded the ANCHOR study SPA agreement becaesel determined that a substantial scientificéssssential to determining the
effectiveness of Vascepa in the studied populatias identified after testing began. As a basigH determination, the FDA communicated
that it determined that the cumulative results frlaucome studies of other triglyceride-loweringghdailed to support the hypothesis that a
triglyceride-lowering drug significantly reducesthisk for cardiovascular events among the pomrattudied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, the
FDA stated that while information the Company subexi supports testing the hypothesis that Vascepams/day versus placebo reduces
major adverse cardiovascular events in statingckatibjects with residually high triglyceride lesjes is being studied in the Vascepa
REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes study, the FDAammer considers a change in serum triglycerigelteas sufficient to establish the
effectiveness of a drug intended to reduce cardiavar risk in subjects with serum triglycerideds/below 500 mg/dL. In November 2013,
the Company submitted to the FDA a request fornsicieration of its decision to rescind the ANCHORASagreement. On January 17, 2014,
the Company was notified by the FDA that it doesintend to reinstate the ANCHOR SPA agreement. Cbhepany plans to continue
appealing the rescission decision to successivghehn administrative levels within the FDA in acdance with FDA dispute resolution
guidance.

The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadkedor completion of FDA’s
review, December 20, 2013. Instead, the FDA natiflee Company on December 19, 2013 that it wousd fionsider our appeal of the
ANCHOR SPA agreement rescission. No new PDUFA dasg for the ANCHOR sNDA was established. Basethfimmation available, the
Company does not expect a determination on the ARRIKSNDA while the Compang’appeal of the January 17, 2014 FDA decision twig
the ANCHOR SPA rescission is pending. The Comparalso continuing its efforts toward a positiveedetination on the pending ANCHOR
sNDA. There also can be no assurance that the FilAat communicate the results of its review o tANCHOR sNDA prior to the timing
expected.

Based on the Company’s communications with the RB&,Company currently expects that final positiesults from the REDUCE-IT
outcomes study will be required for FDA approvaMafscepa for the ANCHOR indication. There can basgurance that the Company will
successful in its efforts to reinstate the ANCHOPRASagreement or obtain a label expansion refledtiegANCHOR clinical trial. Such label
expansion could include FDA approval of the additid an ANCHOR indication statement and/or the aidiof the ANCHOR clinical trial
data to the currently approved labeling. If the F@des not approve the ANCHOR indication, it couddrdn a material impact on the Company’
future results of operations and financial conditio
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The Company has evaluated subsequent events fraenier 31, 2013 through the date of the issuanteesé consolidated financial
statements. See Note 17—Subsequent Events.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeintise Company and subsidiaries are prepared ifoooity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. (GAAP) and have Ipeepared on a basis which assumes that the Comyplimpntinue as a going concern,
which contemplates the realization of assets aadaltisfaction of liabilities and commitments ie thormal course of business. Prior to 2004,
the Company was in the business of selling a ptesvimopharmaceutical compound, which has since Bseontinued. The Comparsyturren
focus is on the commercialization and developméMascepa, which received approval from the FDR012 and for which the Company
commenced marketing and sales in 2013.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had cash anderpshalents of $191.5 million. The Company’s cditsted balance sheet also includes
a derivative liability (see Note 7—Warrants and Yeat Derivative Liability) as well as Long term deind Exchangeable Senior Notes (see
Note ¢—Debt). The derivative liability reflects the faialue of outstanding warrants to purchase sharésedfompany’s common stock. The
long term debt is not callable except upon a chamgentrol. The Exchangeable Senior Notes mayeldeemed on or after January 19, 2017 ¢
the option of the holders. The Notes are excharigeatuler certain circumstances into cash, Ameridapository Shares (ADSSs), or a
combination of cash and ADSs, at the Company'sielecAccordingly, the warrant derivative liabilitlong term debt and Exchangeable
Senior Notes do not present a short term clainmhediuid assets of the Company.

The Company believes its cash and cash equivallhtse sufficient to fund its operations for atk the next twelve months.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsiés. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firgrstatements in conformity with GAAP requiresmagement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftassd liabilities, disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenaesx@enses during the reporting period. Accountistjmates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considessbrable under the circumstances. Actual resultisl atiffer from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company sells Vascepa principally to a limitedhber of major wholesalers, as well as selectgidmal wholesalers and specialty
pharmacy providers, or collectively, its Distribtgpthat in turn resell Vascepa to retail pharmsaéie subsequent resale to patients and healtt
care providers. Patients are required to have scpption in order to purchase Vascepa. In accarelavith GAAP, the Company’s revenue
recognition policy requires that: (i) there is persive evidence that an arrangement exists betthee@ompany and the Distributor,

(ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) collectability iasonably assured and (iv) the price is fixedeterminable.

The Company commenced its commercial launch itJthieed States in January 2013. Prior to 2013, the@any recognized no revenue from
Vascepa sales. In accordance with GAAP, until them@any has the ability to reliably estimate retwwh¥ascepa from its Distributors,
revenue will be recognized based on the
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resale of Vascepa for the purposes of filling pdtigescriptions, and not based on sales from tmapgany to such Distributors. Consistent v
industry practice, once the Company achieves sefficistory such that it can reliably estimateires, the Company will recognize revenue
based on sales to its Distributors. The Companseatly defers Vascepa revenue recognition untiletiier of the product being resold for
purposes of filling patient prescriptions; or theieation of the right of return (twelve monthseafthe expiration date of the product). The
Company also defers the related cost of produessatd records such amounts as finished goodstmyemeld by others until revenue related
to such product sales is recognized.

The Company has contracts with its primary Distidlosl and delivery occurs when a Distributor receiVascepa. The Company evaluates the
creditworthiness of each of its Distributors toatatine whether revenues can be recognized upovedglisubject to satisfaction of the other
requirements, or whether recognition is requiredealelayed until receipt of payment or when thapct is utilized. In order to conclude that
the price is fixed or determinable, the Companytrbesable to (i) calculate its gross product reesiiom the sales to Distributors and

(ii) reasonably estimate its net product reventies. Company calculates gross product revenues loastite wholesale acquisition cost that
the Company charges its Distributors for Vascepe Company estimates its net product revenues dyctiag from its gross product
revenues (a) trade allowances, such as invoiceuligs for prompt payment and distributor fees gdt)mated government and private payor
rebates, chargebacks and discounts, such as Mgdiaibursements, (c) reserves for expected pragtwins and (d) estimated costs of
incentives offered to certain indirect customens|uding patients.

Trade AllowancesThe Company generally provides invoice discount¥ascepa sales to its Distributors for prompt paynaad
pays fees for distribution services, such as feesdrtain data that Distributors provide to tharfpany. The payment terms for sales to
Distributors generally include a 2% discount foyimpent within 30 days. Based on the Companytdgment and experience, the Comg
expects its Distributors to earn these discountsfaes, and deducts the full amount of these distscand fees from its gross product
revenues and accounts receivable at the time swelmues are recognized.

Rebates, Chargebacks and Discouiitse Company contracts with Medicaid, other goveminagencies and various private
organizations, or collectively, Third-party Payass,that Vascepa will be eligible for purchasedrypartial or full reimbursement from,
such Third-party Payors. The Company estimatesahates, chargebacks and discounts it will protadehird-party Payors and deducts
these estimated amounts from its gross produchrmseat the time the revenues are recognized. dhgpény estimates the rebates,
chargebacks and discounts that it will provide hird-party Payors based upon (i) the Company’sreotd with these Thirgarty Payors
(i) the government-mandated discounts applicabigovernment-funded programs, (iii) informationaibed from the Company’s
Distributors and (iv) information obtained from ettthird parties regarding the payor mix for Vascep

Product ReturnsThe Company'’s Distributors have the right to retunopened unprescribed Vascepa during the 18-npmrthd
beginning six months prior to the labeled expinatilate and ending twelve months after the labetpdaion date. The expiration date
for Vascepa is three years after it has been ctewv@nto capsule form, which is the last step mmanufacturing process for Vascepa
generally occurs within a few months before Vasdepielivered to Distributors. As of December 3213, the Company had experien
a deminimus quantity of product returns. During year ended December 31, 2013, the period in wihietCompany began selling
Vascepa, the Company was not able to reasonalifyatetproduct returns for all product sold to Dsitors but the Company was abli
reasonably estimate product returns for certaiessal Vascepa based on product used to fill pafisrgcriptions as determined by
inventory estimated to be in the distribution chelrand third party reports of prescriptions fillél.making this assessment, the Comg.
used (i) data provided to the Company by its Distiors (including weekly reporting of Distributoisales and inventory held by
Distributors that provided the Company with vistiilinto the distribution channel in order to detéme what quantities were sold to re
pharmacies and other providers), (ii) informatiooyided to the Company from retail pharmacies) (idta provided to the Company b
third party data provider which collects and putis prescription data, and other third partie$,Historical industry information
regarding return rates for similar pharmaceuticatipcts, (v) the estimated remaining shelf lif&/akcepa previously shipped and
currently
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being shipped to Distributors and (vi) contractagiteements intended to limit the amount of inventoaintained by the Company’s
Distributors.

Other Incentives:Other incentives that the Company offers to indicestomers include co-pay mitigation rebates mrediby the
Company to commercially insured patients who haxesage for Vascepa and who reside in states #ratipco-pay mitigation
programs. The Company’s co-pay mitigation progranmiended to reduce each participating patiergitign of the financial
responsibility for Vascepa’s purchase price toec#jed dollar amount. Based upon the terms ofttogram and information regarding
programs provided for similar specialty pharmaaaitproducts, the Company estimates the averagayganitigation amounts and the
percentage of patients that it expects to partieipathe program in order to establish its acatial co-pay mitigation rebates and
deducts these estimated amounts from its grossiproevenues at the time the revenues are recafiibe Company adjusts its accrt
for co-pay mitigation rebates based on its estimeggarding the portion of issued rebates thatitmates will not be redeemed. In
addition, as is customary prior to the launch ofimieugs, the Company provided certain of its Disttors with financial incentives to
begin stocking Vascepa prior to the Company’s corsiaklaunch of Vascepa in order to ensure thattépa was readily available to fill
patient prescriptions upon launch. Such incentivere only offered on purchases of initial launclamfities of Vascepa stocked by
Distributors in January 2013. The amount of thé@sanfcial incentives was recorded by the Comparg @sluction to revenues on a pro-
rata basis for each of the bottles subject to §meimcial incentives. The Company estimates tHatfahese initial launch quantities
stocked by its primary Distributors in January 20d3e resold by such Distributors prior to Decentigr2013.

The following table summarizes activity in eachtod product revenue allowance and reserve categodeigcribed above for the year ended
December 31, 2013 (in thousands):

Rebates,
Chargeback: Product
Trade and Other
Allowances Discounts Returns Incentives Total
Balance at January 1, 201. $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Provision related to current period and deferred
sales 4,17¢ 4,28: 72 3,11« 11,64¢
Credits/payments made for current period and
deferred sale (3,10) (3,149 $ — (2,929 9,17
Balance at December 31, 201 1,071 1,13i 72 18¢ 2,46¢

The following table summarizes product revenue gaczed and deferred during the year ended DeceBh&2013 (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Product revenue recognized $ 26,35 $ —
Deferred product revent 1,70:% —

$ 28,05¢ $ —

In conjunction with the Company’s recognition arefedral of product revenues, the Company expensedaapitalized the associated cost of
goods, as follows, during the year ended Decembge?@L13 (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Cost of goods sold expensed $ 11,91: $ —
Finished goods inventory held by oth 627 —

$ 12,53¢ $ —
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, depagtitbanks and short term highly liquid instrungenith remaining maturities at the date of
purchase of 90 days or less. Restricted cash muesash and cash equivalents pledged to guanamagment of certain expenses which ma)
be incurred for business travel under corporatdiccards held by employees.

Inventory

The Company states inventories at the lower of epsatarket value. Cost is determined based on botish using the average cost method. Ar
allowance is established when management deterriagesertain inventories may not be saleablenMéntory cost exceeds expected market
value due to obsolescence, damage or quantitiescess of expected demand, the Company will rethecearrying value of such inventory to
market value. The Company received FDA approvaViascepa on July 26, 2012 and after that date beggitalizing inventory purchases of
saleable product from approved suppliers. Untih&h supplier is approved, all Vascepa API purchdseah such supplier is included as a
component of research and development expense. $NIDA approval of each additional supplier, the @amy capitalizes subsequent
Vascepa API purchases from such supplier as innerffurchases of Vascepa API received and expdrefede such regulatory approvals is
not subsequently capitalized, and all such purchase quarantined and not used for commercial gupgll such time as the sNDA for the
supplier that produced the API is approved.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company provides for depreciation and amoitinaising the straight-line method by charges terapons in amounts that depreciate the
cost of the fixed asset over its estimated us#dfil The estimated useful lives, by asset clas#ifin, are as follows:

Asset Classification Useful Lives

Computer equipment and softw 3- 5 years

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Leasehold Improvemen Lesser of useful life or lease te

Upon retirement or sale of assets, the cost odsisets disposed and the related accumulated dejpa@re removed from the balance sheet
and any resulting gain or loss is credited or ezpdrto operations. Repairs and maintenance c@stxpensed as incurred.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impant whenever events or changes in circumstandésaie that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable. Recoveratiilihese assets is determined by comparing thedsted undiscounted net cash flows of the
operation to which the assets relate to their @agrgmount. If impairment is indicated, the asseeswritten down to fair value. Fair value is
determined based on discounted forecasted cash fioappraised values, depending on the natuteecdgsets.

Intangible Asset, net

Intangible assets consist of a milestone paymeadttpahe former shareholders of Laxdale Limiteldted to the 2004 acquisition of the rights
to Vascepa, which is the result of Vascepa recgiwiarketing approval for the first indication asdamortized over its estimated useful life on
a straight-line basis. The Company concluded thataif the straight-line method was appropriatdasiajority of cash flows are expected to
be generated ratably over the estimated usefuhlifbno degradation of the cash flows over tinmursently anticipated. See Note 9—
Commitments and Contingencies for further informatiegarding other obligations related to the egitjoh of Laxdale Limited.
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Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents product shipmentsstifditors for which the Company has invoiced thgtiibutors but not recognized as
revenue because the product was not reported Bdhepany as having been resold for the purpos#ingfprescriptions on or before
December 31, 2013.

Research and Development Costs

The Company charges research and developmenttoagterations as incurred. Research and developexeenses are comprised of costs
incurred by the Company in performing researchdaglopment activities, including salary and besgitock-based compensation expense;
laboratory supplies and other direct expensesractuial services, including clinical trial and pimaceutical development costs; commercial
supply investment in its drug candidates; and stftecture costs, including facilities costs andrdefation expense. In addition, research and
development costs include the costs of productlgupgeived from suppliers when such receipt byGeenpany is prior to regulatory approval
of the supplier.

Selling, General and Administrative Costs

The Company charges selling, general and admitiistreosts to operations as incurred. Selling, ggrend administrative costs include costs
of salaries, programs and infrastructure necedsaipe general conduct of the Company’s businestding the 2013 commercial launch of
Vascepa in the United States for the MARINE indmatIncluded as part of selling, general and adstriative costs is warrant related expense
from non-cash changes in fair value of the demaliability associated with warrants issued in@er 2009 to former officers of Amarin
which is recorded as compensation income (expense).

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognieethe future tax consequences of differences detwthe carrying amounts and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and operating loss carryéods and other attributes using enacted rates @&z be in effect when those differences
reverse. Valuation allowances are provided agaliefgrred tax assets that are not more likely tlwrionbe realized.

The Company provides reserves for potential payseiitax to various tax authorities or does nobgeize tax benefits related to uncertain
positions and other issues. Tax benefits for uagettx positions are based on a determinationhaftiaer a tax benefit taken by the Company
in its tax filings or positions is more likely thaot to be realized, assuming that the matter &stjon will be decided based on its technical
merits. The Company’s policy is to record interstl penalties in the provision for income taxes.

The Company regularly assesses the realizabilitletérred tax assets. Changes in historical easrpegformance and future earnings
projections, among other factors, may cause thepgaosnto adjust its valuation allowance on defeteedassets, which would impact the
Company'’s income tax expense in the period in whichdetermined that these factors have changed.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative financial liabilities are recorded airfealue, with gains and losses arising for charigdair value recognized in the statement of
operations at each period end while such instrusnarm outstanding. If the Company issues shamdis¢barge the liability, the derivative
financial liability is derecognized and common &tand additional paid-in capital are recognizedtaissuance of those shares. The warrant
are valued using a Black-Scholes option pricing ehaidie to the nature of instrument. The long teaitdedemption feature is valued using a
probability-weighted model incorporating managemestimates for potential change in control, andi&grmining the fair value of the debt
with and without the change in control provisionliuded.

If the terms of warrants that initially require tivarrant to be classified as a derivative finanki#dility lapse, the derivative financial liabiliis
reclassified out of financial liabilities into eduiat its fair value on that date. At settlemerted# the instruments are settled in shares, the
carrying value of the warrants are derecognizedtardferred to equity at their fair value at tlate. The cash proceeds received from
exercises of warrants are recorded in common stodkadditional paid-in capital.
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Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is determined by dividigigloss by the weighted average shares of comtocok sutstanding during the period.
Diluted net loss per share is determined by digjdiet loss by diluted weighted average sharesandstg. Diluted weighted average shares
reflects the dilutive effect, if any, of potentiafilutive common shares, such as common stockogtand warrants calculated using the
treasury stock method and convertible notes usiadif-converted” method. In periods with reporteet operating losses, all common stock
options and warrants are deemed anti-dilutive shi@hbasic net loss per share and diluted netdesshare are equal. However, in certain
periods in which there is a gain recorded purst@tiie change in fair value of the warrant derixatiability, for diluted earnings per share
purposes, the impact of such gains is reversedhentteasury stock method is used to determinéedilearnings per share.

The calculation of net loss and the number of shased to compute basic and diluted earnings @ee sbr the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

In thousands 2013 2012 2011
Net los—Dbasic $(166,22)  $(179,18)  $(69,12¢)
Gain on warrant derivative liabilit (47,936 — —
Net los—diluted (214,16 (179,18 (69,12¢)
Net loss per sha—basic $ (103 $ (129 $ (059
Weighted average shares outstan—basic 161,02: 144,01 130,24
Warrant exercise 6,04¢ — —
Weighted average shares outstan—diluted 167,07( 144,01 130,24
Net income loss per sh—diluted $ (L2 $ (129 $ (059

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid (¥ following potentially dilutive securities veenot included in the computation of net
loss per share because the effect would be antiht

In thousands

Stock options 9,33( 10,89: 11,87:
Restricted stock and restricted stock u 19¢ 46E —
Warrants 1,70z 9,937 21,10¢

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are initially recorded at fairuslwith coupon interest and amortization of dsbtidance discounts recognized in the state
of operations as interest expense each periodisathiments are outstanding. If the Company isshases to discharge the liability, the debt
obligation is derecognized and common stock andtiaddl paid-in capital are recognized on the isggaof those shares.

The Company’s exchangeable notes contain a cowveogition which is classified as equity. The faitue of the liability component of the
debt instrument was deducted from the initial peatseto determine the proceeds to be allocatedetodhversion option. The embedded
conversion option is indexed to the Company’s stmutt treated as equity on the balance sheet. Thearsion option is evaluated on a
quarterly basis to determine if it still meets thigeria to be equity classified. The excess ppatamount of the debt over the carrying value o
the liability is amortized to interest expense aver term of the debt.

The Company’s December 2012 debt financing agretomenains a redemption feature triggered uponamgé of control, which has been
classified as an embedded derivative. The fairevalithe derivative was recorded as a reductidghddair value of the note payable. The fair
value of this derivative liability is remeasuredeach reporting period, with changes in fair vakmognized in the statement of operations. Th
discount recorded to the note payable is being timedrto interest expense over the term of the pag@able.
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StockBased Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is generally measiiteé grant date, based on the fair value ohttard, and is recognized as compensation
cost over the requisite service period. Equity @asaranted to non-employees or for which the falu® is not determinable are marked to fair
value each reporting period over the requisiteiserperiod.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to credit risk consist primarily of cashl aash equivalents and accounts receivable
The Company maintains substantially all of its castl cash equivalents in financial institutionsdaadd to be of high-credit quality.

A significant portion of the Company’s sales arevtwlesalers in the pharmaceutical industry. Them@any monitors the creditworthiness of
customers to whom it grants credit terms and hagxwerienced any credit losses. The Company doteequire collateral or any other
security to support credit sales. The Company’'shogpe customers accounted for 96% of gross prazhles for the year ended December 31,
2013 and 95% of the gross accounts receivable talas of December 31, 2013. The Company’s largesomer accounted for 38% of gross
product sales for the year ended December 31, 20d31% of the gross accounts receivable balancté@scember 31, 2013.

Foreign Currency

All subsidiaries use the United States dollar asftimctional currency. Monetary assets and liabdilenominated in a foreign currency are
remeasured into United States dollars at periodescctiange rates. Non-monetary assets and liabitiieried in a foreign currency are
remeasured into United States dollars using rdtegahange prevailing when such assets or liabdlitvere obtained or incurred, and expense:
are generally remeasured using rates of exchamyaifing when such expenses are incurred. Gainsossds from the remeasurement are
included in other (expense) income, net in the clidated statements of operations. For transactettted during the applicable period, gains
and losses are included in other (expense) incogtan the consolidated statements of operations.Jompany periodically uses foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge against changashange rates for inventory purchases dendedna foreign currency. As

of December 31, 2013, there were no outstandirgjgarexchange contracts.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are initially capitalized deferred cost and amortized to interest expens® ulse effective interest method over the
expected term of the related debt. Unamortized @sbince costs related to extinguishment of debéxpensed at the time the debt is
extinguished and recorded in other income (expens¢)n the consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company provides disclosure of financial asaetsfinancial liabilities that are carried at faiue based on the price that would be
received upon sale of an asset or paid to tramdliability in an orderly transaction between manarticipants at the measurement date. Fair
value measurements may be classified based omtberd of subjectivity associated with the input$aio valuation of these assets and
liabilities using the following three levels:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvagatiarkets for identical assets or liabilities ttet Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.
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Level 2—Inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedgsitor identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active, inputs other thaoted prices that are observable for the assélaility (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc.)
and inputs that are derived principally from orrobiorated by observable market data by correlatrasther means (market corroborated
inputs).

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect the Conyfmastimates of the assumptions that market ppatits would use in pricing the asset or
liability. The Company develops these inputs bamethe best information available, including itsrodata.

The following table presents information about @@mpany’s assets and liabilities as of DecembeRB13 and 2012 that are measured at fail
value on a recurring basis and indicates the finerhierarchy of the valuation techniques the Camgputilized to determine such fair value:

December 31, 201

In millions Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 2

Asset:

Cash equivalen—money market $113.5 $113.5 $— $—

Liabilities:

Warrant derivative liability $ 6. $ — $— $ 6.¢

Long term debt redemption featt $ 111 $ — $— $11.1
December 31, 201,

In millions Total Level 1 Level z Level 2

Asset:

Cash equivalen—money market $64.1 $64.1 $— $—

Liabilities:

Warrant derivative liability $54.¢ $— $— $54.¢

Long term debt redemption featt $14.€ $— $— $14.€

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalentgumts payable and accrued liabilities approximatevialue because of their short-term
nature.

Warrant Derivative Liability

The Company’s warrant derivative liability is cadiat fair value and is classified as Level 3 mfdir value hierarchy due to the use of
significant unobservable inputs. The initial faglwe of the warrant derivative liability at the eatf issuance in October 2009 was determin
be $48.3 million using the Black-Scholes optioruation model applying the following assumptionyrigk-free rate of 2.37%, (ii) remaining
term of 5 years, (iii) no dividend yield, (iv) vaility of 119%, and (v) the stock price on the dateneasurement.

At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the warderivative liability was determined to be $54.9limn using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model applying the following assumptiofisrisk-free rate of 0.25%, (ii) remaining terrh18 years, (iii) no dividend yield

(iv) volatility of 95%, and (v) the stock price tine date of measurement. For the year ended Dece&thp2012, the $35.6 million increase in
the fair value of the warrants, net of exercisess vecognized as a $35.4 million loss on chandgrivalue of derivative liability and $0.2
million in compensation expense for change invaiue of warrants issued to former employees withénconsolidated statement of
operations. As of December 31, 2013, the fair valfuihe warrant derivative liability was determinidbe $6.9 million using the Blackeholes
option valuation applying the following assumptio(isrisk-free rate of 0.12%, (ii) remaining tewn0.8 years, (iii) no dividend yield

(iv) volatility of 99%, and (v) the stock price t¢ime date of measurement. A $47.9 million decreashe fair value of the
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warrants during the year, net of exercises wasgrazed as a $44.2 million gain on change in falugaf derivative liability and $3.7 million
in compensation income for the change in fair valiarrants issued to former employees withindbesolidated statement of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

The fair value of this warrant liability is thereéosensitive to changes in the market price anatiity of our common stock among other
factors. In the event of a hypothetical 10% incesiashe market price of the Compasygommon shares ($2.17 based on the $1.97 maike
of the Company’s stock at December 31, 2013) orclvttie December 31, 2013 valuation was based alue wf the derivative liability would
have increased by $1.3 million. Such increase whalte been reflected as a loss on change in fhie v derivatives and as an increase in
warrant compensation expense in our statementarftipns. Significant increases (decreases) inrpigt in isolation would result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement

Long Term Debt Redemption Feature

The Company’s December 2012 financing agreementioma redemption feature whereby, upon a chahgentrol, the Company would be
required to pay $140 million, less any previouspaid amount, if the change of control occurs obefore December 31, 2013, or required to
repay $150 million, less any previously repaid antpif the change of control event occurs after &@eber 31, 2013. The Company determi
this redemption feature to be an embedded dermatvhich is carried at fair value and is classitisd_evel 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to
the use of significant unobservable inputs. Thevalue of the embedded derivative was calculas#dgua probability-weighted model
incorporating management estimates for potentiahghk in control, and by determining the fair vadfithe debt with and without the change
control provision included. The difference betwdem two fair values of the debt was determinedetdhie fair value of the embedded
derivative. As of December 31, 2012, the debt wadsad by comparing debt issues of similar compawitts (i) terms of between 4.8 and 8.0
years, (ii) coupon rates of between 3.0% and 1JkaBe(iil) market yields of between 10.7% and 27.1¥e initial fair value of the derivatiy
liability at the date of issuance in December 2042 determined to be $14.6 million and the Companggnized a $0.02 million gain on
change in fair value of derivative liability at Derober 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, the dabtwalued by comparing debt issues of
similar companies with (i) terms of between 3.3 &rélyears, (ii) coupon rates of between 9.9% &h8% and (iii) market yields of between
9.0% and 29.4%. The fair value of the derivatiability at December 31, 2013 was determined tolfe Bmillion and the Company
recognized a $3.5 million gain on change in falugaof derivative liability during the year endeédmber 31, 2013.

The change in the fair value of financial instruitseis as follows (in thousands):

Debt
October Redemptior
2009

Warrants Feature Totals
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 123,12! $ — $ 123,12!
Initial measureme—December 2012 financir — 14,60( 14,60(
Loss (gain) on change in fair value of derivatiability 35,36 (23) 35,34«
Compensation expense for change in fair value ofamés issued to former employe 247 247
Transfers to equit (103,88)) — (103,88))
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 54,85: $ 14,57: $ 69,43:
Gain on change in fair value of derivative lialdg (44,237 (3,477%) (47,710
Compensation income for change in fair value ofreaiis issued to former employe (3,709 — (3,709
Transfers to equit (29) — (29)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 6,89/ $ 11,10( $ 17,99
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Segment and Geographical Information

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid #itd Company has reported its business as a&gi@gbrting segment. The Company’s
chief decision maker, who is the President and {wecutive Officer, regularly evaluates the Compan a consolidated basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting StandardaiBidssued an update that clarified existing guidaon the presentation of unrecognizec
benefits when various qualifying tax benefit caoryfards exist, including when the unrecognizediemefit should be presented as a reductic
to deferred tax assets or as a liability. This updarequired to be adopted for all annual perent$ interim reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2013, with early adoption permittdte &doption of this pronouncement is not expeaidthve a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdssaued and are adopted by the Company as opéuified effective date. The Company
believes that the impact of other recently issugichiot yet adopted accounting pronouncements wilhave a material impact on its
consolidated financial position, results of operasi, and cash flows, or do not apply to the Comisanyerations.

(3) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2013 ardlaw/fo
Weighted Average

Accumulated
Remaining Useful

Gross Amortization Net Life (years)
Technology rights $11,62¢ $ (915 $10,70¢ 16.€

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembge2@®L3 and 2012 was $0.6 million and $0.3 milli@spectively, and is included in
research and development expense. Estimated fanuoetization expense, based upon the Company’sgilie assets as of December 31,
2013 is as follows:

Year Ending December 31 Amount

2014 $ 64¢
2015 64¢€
2016 64¢
2017 64¢
2018 64¢€
Thereaftel 7,47¢
Total $10,70¢
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(4) Inventory

After approval of Vascepa on July 26, 2012 by tB&Fthe Company began capitalizing its purchasesatdfable inventory of Vascepa from

suppliers that have been qualified by the FDA. imwees consist of the following (in thousands):

Raw materials, current

Work in proces:

Finished good

Finished goods inventory held by oth

Total inventory, currer
Raw materials, lor-term
Total inventory

December 31, 201
$ 4,24¢

11,31(
5,02¢
627

21,20¢

5,48

$ 26,69:

December 31, 201

$ 5,46
15,47:

32¢€

21,26

$ 21,26:

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynpaote off $1.8 million of inventories deemed t® binrecoverable. The charge was
recorded within research and development expentdeistatement of operations as this supplier bagoyproduce material qualified for
commercial sale. In addition, $5.5 million of ravetarial inventory was reclassified to long-termentory, as it is not anticipated to be sold
within the next twelve months based on currentresies.

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foihay

December 31 December 31

2013 2012
(in thousands)

Leasehold improvemen $ 107 $ 12¢
Computer equipmet 63 221
Furniture and fixture 24C 243
Software 55¢ 50z
96¢ 1,09t

Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (390 (35€)
Construction in progres — 72
$ 57¢ $ 811

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@033, 2012, and 2011 was $0.2 million, $0.2ionlland $0.1 million, respectively.

(6) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilites
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isbras the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
(in thousands)
Payroll and payrc-related expense $2,112 $2,06¢
Sales and marketing accru 4,13¢ —
All other 3,34¢ 3,15¢
$9,594 $5,22¢
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(7) Warrants and Warrant Derivative Liability

The Company had 9,789,776 warrants to purchase constmares outstanding at December 31, 2013 atghteeiaverage exercise price of
$1.44, as summarized in the following table:

Issue Date Amount Exercise Price Expiration Date

4/27/07 17,50( 17.9C 1/17/1¢

7/31/09 1,684,88:! 1.0C 7/30/1¢

10/16/09 7,487,38! 1.5C 10/15/1«

10/16/09 600,00( 1.5C 10/15/1
9,789,77 $ 1.44

October 2009 Warrants derivative liability

On October 16, 2009, the Company completed a $70lidn private placement with both existing andwni@vestors resulting in $62.3 million
in net proceeds and an additional $3.6 million fimmdge notes converted in conjunction with the/gte placement. In consideration for the
$62.3 million in net cash proceeds Amarin issued &Gillion units, each unit consisting of (i) on®©A& (representing one ordinary share) at a
purchase price of $1.00 and (ii) a warrant witliva fear term to purchase 0.5 of an ADS at an éseqrice of $1.50 per ADS. In
consideration for the conversion of $3.6 millioncohvertible bridge notes, Amarin issued 4.0 millimits, each unit consisting of (i) one Al
(representing one ordinary share) at a purchase pfi$0.90 and (ii) a warrant with a five yeamedo purchase 0.5 of an ADS at an exercise
price of $1.50 per ADS. The total number of warsaesued in conjunction with the financing was 3%iftion of which 7.5 million are
outstanding at December 31, 2013.

In conjunction with the October 2009 financing, @empany issued an additional 0.9 million warraatthree former officers of which

0.6 million are outstanding as of December 31, 20h& warrants issued in connection with the Oat@®@9 financing contained a pricing
variability feature which provided for an incrededhe exercise price if the exchange rate betvileefty.S. dollar and British pound adjusts
such that the warrants could be exercised at & pggs than the £0.5 par value of the common stabk&tis, if the exchange rate exceeded U.
$3.00 per £1.0 sterling. Due to the potential \lHaaature of the exercise price, the warrantsateonsidered to be indexed to the Compsany
common stock. Accordingly, the warrants do not du&br the exception to classify the warrants witlequity and are classified as a derivative
liability.

The fair value of this warrant derivative liability remeasured at each reporting period, with chairy fair value recognized in the statemer
operations. Upon exercise, the fair value of theravels exercised is remeasured and reclassified fvarrant liability to additional paid-in-
capital. Although the warrants contain a pricingiafility feature, the number of warrants issuakelmains fixed. Therefore, the maximum
number of common shares issuable as a result @d¢haber 2009 private placement is 36.1 millione Thange in fair value of the warrant
derivative liability is discussed in Note 2.

July 2009 and April 2007 Warrants

The Company issued several warrants in July 2089gmil 2007. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012¢hegarrants have been classified as
equity instruments and have been included in the@my’s consolidated balance sheet within additipaal-in-capital.

(8) Debt
Long term debtDecember 2012 Financing

On December 6, 2012 the Company entered into aeaggnt with Biopharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holdi@dggman LP (“Biopharma”).
Under this agreement, the Company granted to Biopaa security interest in
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future receivables associated with the Vascepapstghts, in exchange for $100 million receivedra closing of the agreement which
occurred in December 2012. The Company has agoeegphay Biopharma up to $150 million of future newe and receivables. The first
repayment under the agreement of $0.8 million waad o Biopharma in November 2013 for the fiscadder ended September 30, 2013. This
payment was calculated based on the thresholdbliimit, as described below, to the otherwise sclegdgliarterly repayments. Additional
quarterly repayments, subject to the thresholdtditiin described below, are scheduled to be pa&ickditer in accordance with the following
schedule: $2.5 million of interest in the first giga of 2014; $8.0 million per quarter in eachtod next four quarters, $10.0 million per quarter
in each of the next four quarters, $15.0 milliom gearter in each of the next four quarters anda payment of $13.0 million scheduled for
payment in May 2017. All such payments reduce émeainder of the $150 million in aggregate paymé&mBiopharma. The quarterly
repayments through the third quarter of SeptemB&4 2epresent interest only. Quarterly paymentsatdegin to reduce the principal balance
until the fourth quarter of 2014. These quartedyments are subject to a quarterly threshold amwheteby, if a calculated threshold, based
on quarterly Vascepa revenues, is not achievedjubeerly payment payable in that quarter cah@tlompanys election be reduced and w
the reduction carried forward without interest fayment in a future period. The payment of anyiedrfiorward amount is subject to similarly
calculated threshold repayment amounts based ocegagevenue levels. Except upon a change of dantonarin, the agreement does not
expire until $150 million has been repaid. Under digreement, upon a change of control, the Comyanid be required to pay $140 million,
less any previously repaid amount, if the changeoatrol occurs on or before December 31, 2018equired to repay $150 million, less any
previously repaid amount, if the change of congngnt occurs after December 31, 2013. The Compamyrepay after October 1, 2013, an
amount equal to $150 million less any previousjyard amount.

The Company determined the redemption feature apzirange of control to be an embedded derivatigeitieg bifurcation. The fair value of
the embedded derivative was calculated by detengittie fair value of the debt with the change intod provision included and also without
the change in control provision. The differencentssn the two fair values of the debt was determindzk the fair value of the embedded
derivative, and upon closing the Company recordddrivative liability of $14.6 million as a reduati to the note payable. The fair value of
this derivative liability is remeasured at eachordipg period, with changes in fair value recogdize the statement of operations. The
Company recognized a gain on change in fair vafuideovative liability of $3.5 million and $0.02 #hon for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Compaoyded $11.3 million and $2.6 million of cash ao-cash interest expense,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2b&2Company recorded $0.1 million and $0.02 mllid cash and non- cash interest
expense, respectively. The Company will periodjcallaluate the remaining term of the agreementlameffective interest will be reassessed
each period based on the Company’s most currentast of repayment.

The Company currently estimates that its Vascepanee levels will not be high enough in each quadeupport repayment to Biopharma in
accordance with the threshold amounts in the repayischedule. For the quarters ended Septemberd3December 31, 2013, revenues were
below the contractual threshold amount such thstt payments of $0.8 million and $1.0 million weedcalated for each period, respectively,
reflecting the optional reduction amount as oppdsettie contractual threshold payment of $2.5 millfor each quarterly period. The payment
of $0.8 million for the quarter ended September28l,3 was made in November 2013 and the payme$tt.6fmillion for the quarter ended
December 31, 2013 is due in February 2014. In a@ecare with the agreement with BioPharma, quartiffgrences between the calculated
optional reduction amounts and the repayment sd¢beaimounts are rescheduled for payment beginnitigeisecond quarter of 2017. Any s
deferred repayments will remain subject to contithapplication of the quarterly ceiling in amountgedestablished by the calculated threshold
limitation based on quarterly Vascepa revenuesséd lestimates will be reevaluated each reportinggdy the Company and adjusted if
necessary.
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To secure the obligations under the agreementBidRharma, the Company granted BioPharma a sedntégest in the Company'’s patents,
trademarks, trade names, domain names, copyrigisy-how and regulatory approvals related to theeoed products, all books and records
relating to the foregoing and all proceeds of tiredoing, referred to collectively as the collatelfahe Company (i) fails to deliver a payment
when due and does not remedy that failure wittgpexific notice period, (ii) fails to maintain asfi-priority perfected security interest in the
collateral in the United States and does not rentlegtyfailure after receiving notice of such faduwor (iii) becomes subject to an event of
bankruptcy, then BioPharma may attempt to colleetrhaximum amount payable by the Company undeatrsement (after deducting any
payments we have already made).

Exchangeable Senior Notes

In January 2012, the Company issued $150.0 milligurincipal amount of 3.5% exchangeable senioesidue 2032 (the “Notes”). The Notes
were issued by Corsicanto Limited, an Irish limitesmpany acquired by Amarin in January 2012. Cargiw Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Amarin. The general, unsecured, sestiigations are fully and unconditionally guareed by Amarin but not by any of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Corsicanto Limited has sges, operations, revenues or cash flows otherttiwse related to the issuance,
administration and repayment of the Notes. Thegenarsignificant restrictions on the ability of Arimato obtain funds from Corsicanto Limit
in the form of cash dividends, loans, or advanbles.proceeds to the Company, after payment of uwitérg fees and expenses, were
approximately $144.3 million.

The Notes have a stated interest rate of 3.5% quan, payable semiannually in arrears on Januagn@iSluly 15 of each year beginning on
July 15, 2012, and ending upon the Notes’ matunityJanuary 15, 2032. The Notes are subject to cbpse by the Company at the option of
the holders on each of January 19, 2017, JanuargQP2, and January 19, 2027, at a price equad@clof the principal amount of the Notes
to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interdstit excluding, the repurchase date. The Nate€xchangeable under certain
circumstances into cash, ADSs, or a combinatiozash and ADSs, at the Company'’s election, witmé#ial exchange rate of 113.4752 ADSs
per $1,000 principal amount of Notes. It is the @amy’s current intention to settle these obligagioncash. If the Company elected physical
settlement, the Notes would initially be exchandeaito 17,021,280 ADSs. Based on the closing pofdlie Company’s stock at

December 31, 2013, the principal amount of the Bleteuld exceed the value of the shares if conventethat date by $116.5 million.

Additional covenants include: (i) limitations ortdiwe indebtedness under certain circumstanceshéijimely filing of documents and reports
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchangewfittt both the SEC and the Trustee, and (iii) naimihg the tradability of the Notes. The
Company is required to use commercially reasonettitets to procure and maintain the listing of Metes on the Global Exchange Market
operated under the supervision of the Irish StaathBnge (or other recognized stock exchange asetkfin the Note Indenture) prior to

July 15, 2012. If the Notes are not freely tradabtea result of restrictions pursuant to U.S. stes law or the terms of the Indenture or the
Notes, the Company shall pay additional intereshenNotes at the rate of 0.50% per annum of theipal amount of Notes outstanding
each day during such period for which the Compafajlare to file has occurred and is continuingarwhich the Notes are not freely
tradable.

The Company may not redeem the Notes prior to Jgriigg 2017, other than in connection with cerianges in the tax law of a relevant
taxing jurisdiction that results in additional anmésibecoming due with respect to payments andloredies on the Notes. On or after

January 19, 2017 and prior to the maturity date Gbmpany may redeem for cash all or part of thiedlat a redemption price equal to 100%
of the principal amount of the Notes to be redegrplts accrued and unpaid interest to, but exclydime redemption date. There is no
prepayment penalty or sinking fund provided for Kwes. If the Company undergoes a fundamentalggharlders may require the Company
to repurchase for cash all or part of their Notes @epurchase price equal to 100% of the prina@pabdunt of the Notes to be repurchased, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to, but excludingfuhdamental change repurchase date. The Notehaf@ampany’'s senior unsecured
obligations
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and rank senior in right of payment to the Comparfiyture indebtedness that is expressly subordifiateght of payment to the Notes and
equal in right of payment to the Compasjuture unsecured indebtedness that is not sadimlated. The Notes are effectively junior in rigif
payment to future secured indebtedness to the teatéhe value of the assets securing such indeketes

The Notes are exchangeable under certain circueestaihe Company calculated the fair value of iditglity component of the Notes to be
$126.2 million, and the excess of the principal ammf the debt over the liability component of ®#illion was allocated to the conversion
option resulting in a discount on the debt. Thealist created from allocating proceeds to the creime option is being amortized to interest
expense using the effective interest method oweNiites’ estimated remaining life, which was calted to be a period of twentgur months
The effective interest rate of the Notes is 14.B%o0f December 31, 2013, the unamortized discotedted from the allocation of the proceed:
to the conversion option was $0.6 million. The cension option will not be subsequently remeasugeibiag as it continues to meet the criterie
for equity classification.

The Company also recorded a debt discount to tefiecvalue of the underwriter’s discounts and rirfiig costs. A portion of the debt discount
from underwriter’s discounts and offering costs whHscated to the equity and liability componentshe Notes in proportion to the proceeds
allocated to each component. The portion of the dislgount from underwriter’'s discounts and offgrgosts allocated to the liability
component is being amortized as interest expensetbe estimated remaining life of the Notes ofrityefour months. As of December 31,
2013, the unamortized debt discount was $0.1 millind the carrying value of the Notes, net of thenuortized discount, was $149.3 million.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynognized interest expense of $20.3 milliontezldo the Notes, of which $12.5
million represents amortization of the debt disdatreated upon allocation of proceeds to the caierroption, $5.3 million represents
contractual coupon interest, and $2.5 million repres the amortization of the discount from theemwditer’s discounts and offering costs. As
of December 31, 2012, the unamortized debt disceant$2.6 million and the carrying value of the @ntnet of the unamortized discount,
$134.3 million. During the year ended December2B1,2, the Company recognized interest expense&0$tillion related to the Notes, of
which $10.7 million represents amortization of thedbt discount created upon allocation of proceedkse conversion option, $5.1 million
represents contractual coupon interest, and $dlmiepresents the amortization of the discowotf the underwrites discounts and offerir
costs. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Compadyabcrued interest of $2.4 million, which is ird#d in other current liabilities.

The Company made the contractual interest paynuiereon the Notes in 2013 and 2012 of $5.3 millind $2.7 million, respectively.

(9) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
On November 1, 2013, a purported investor of Améléd a putative class action lawsuit captiorgtdven Sklar v. Amarin Corporation plc et
al., No. 13-cv-6954 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013) in the UDsstrict Court for the District of New Jersey. Stdogtially similar lawsuits, captioned
Bove v. Amarin Corporation p, Civ. No. 13-07882 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 5, 201Bentley v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-08283
(AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 20, 2013) anfliegel v. Amarin Corporation pldNo. 3:13-cv-07210 (D.N.J. Nov. 27, 2013), werbssquently filed in
the U.S. District Court for the District of New dey and U.S. District Court for the Southern Distaf New York. On December 9, 2013 the

cases filed in the Southern District of New Yorkrevéransferred to the District of New Jersey, whbeefour cases are now proceeding in fron
of the same judge pending a formal order consafigahe actions.

Each of the complaints asserts claims under tharies Exchange Act of 1934. The complaints alldg# Amarin and certain of its current
and former officers and directors made misstatesn@mt omissions regarding the FDA'’s willingnesapprove Vascepa’s ANCHOR
indication and the potential relevance of data ftbhm
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ongoing REDUCE-IT trial to that approval. The piuatclass periods alleged in the complaints vaoynfthe July 9, 2009-October 15, 2013
period alleged in th8klarandSiegelcomplaints, the July 9, 2009-October 16, 2013 pkaiteged in th&entleycomplaint, and August 8,
2012-October 16, 2013 period alleged in Bavecomplaint. The lawsuits seek unspecified monetamabes and attorneys’ fees and costs.

On January 3, 2014, ten plaintiffs and their redpecounsel moved for appointment as lead pldiatil lead counsel for the putative class.
The plaintiffs also moved for consolidation of fending actions. The motion for appointment of Ipkaintiff was set for February 3, 2014,
has not yet been decided. After the Court appeairésd plaintiff, and consolidates the actions,Gbenpany expects that the lead plaintiff will
file a consolidated amended complaint that willdrae the operative complaint for the action.

The Company believes that it has valid defensesaalhgigorously defend against the claims. The @amy is unable to reasonably estimate
the loss exposure, if any, associated with thesiensl

In addition to the above, in the ordinary coursbusiness, the Company is from time to time invdlirelawsuits, claims, investigations,
proceedings, and threats of litigation relatingntellectual property, commercial arrangements @thér matters. While the outcome of these
proceedings and claims cannot be predicted wittaicgy, as of December 31, 2013, the Company waparty to any legal or arbitration
proceedings that may have, or have had in the tgeen, significant effects on the Company’s firiahposition or profitability. No
governmental proceedings are pending or, to ouwletge, contemplated against the Company. The Coyniganot a party to any material
proceedings in which any director, member of semianagement or affiliate of ours is either a padyerse to the Company or its subsidiaries
or has a material interest adverse to the Compaity subsidiaries.

Leases

The Company leases office space and office equipmeter operating and capital leases. Future minminaase payments under these leas
of December 31, 2013 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31 Operating Capital
2014 $ 82¢ $ 6
2015 662 4
2016 67% —
2017 687 —
2018 172 —
Total $ 3,02¢ 1C
Less: interes —
Total principal obligation: 10
Less: current portio 6
Long-term capital leas $ 4

On November 28, 2011, the Company entered intaselagreement for 4,327 net useable square feffiaaf space in Groton, Connecticut.
The Lease terminates on January 31, 2015, but ma&yxtended by Amarin for a period of three yearsl&s the Lease, Amarin pays monthly
rent of approximately $8,500.

On September 30, 2011, the Company entered inemeement for 320 square feet of office spaceRaabroke House, Upper Pembroke
Street 28-32 in Dublin, Ireland. The agreement hegavember 1, 2011 and terminates on October 314 20d can be extended automatically
for successive one year periods. Monthly rent graximately €2,700 (approximately $3,500). The agrent can be terminated by either party
with three months prior written notice.
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On July 1, 2011, the Company leased 9,747 squat®feffice space in Bedminster, New Jersey. Basé, as amended, terminates on
March 31, 2018, and may also be terminated withreixths prior notice. On December 6, 2011 the Caowypeased an additional 2,142 square
feet of space in the same location. On Decembe2dB2 and May 8, 2013, the Company leased an addlt?,601 and 10,883 square feet of
space, respectively, in the same location. Effecirecember 31, 2013, the December 6, 2011 leaséewamated.

Total rent expense during the years ended 2012 26d 2011 was approximately $1.0 million, $0.6iotl, and $0.5 million, respectively.

Lease Liability

In December 2005 the Company ceased using offiaeesim Ely, Cambridgeshire. Amarin is obligategh&y rent, service charges and rates to
the end of the lease, which expires in NovemberA20he premises have been sublet through Noventidgl. 2n December 2013, the
Company ceased using the office space in Grotonn&aiicut. The Company is obligated to pay rerdaugh the end of the lease in January
2015. Liabilities for exited lease facilities atéenber 31, 2013 and 2012 were $0.1 million andtftidsand, respectively, and are included
within the consolidated balance sheets under ad@xpenses and other long-term liabilities.

Royalty and Milestone Obligations

The Company is party to certain milestone and tgyabligations under several product developmen¢@ments, as follows:

» The Company'’s active pharmaceutical ingredienf\®r, supply agreement with Nisshin Pharma, Inc.igdin”), provided for
minimum supply purchase obligations on behalf ef@ompany to enable Amarin to maintain exclusiwiith this supplier, and to
prevent potential termination of the agreement d@seestimated minimum purchase requirements. A3ectmber 31, 2013, the
API aggregate minimum purchase obligations undsrstipply agreement had been achieved and aslg teeucCompany has no
future minimum purchase obligation from Nisst

« In 2011, the Company entered into agreements withaidditional suppliers, Chemport, Inc. (“Chemppehd BASF (formerly
Equateq Limited) for the supply of APl materials Yascepa. In 2012, the Company agreed to terntsanfiburth API supplier,
Slanmhor Pharmaceutical, Inc., or Slanmhor. Thgseemnents include requirements for the suppliecgadify their materials and
facilities with applicable regulatory authoritiexiuding the FDA. The Company will incur certairst®associated with the
qualification of product produced by these supplies described below. In each case, following fication of the supplier for the
manufacture of API for commercial sale, these agesds include annual purchase levels to enable ilinmmaintain exclusivity
with each respective supplier, and to prevent pitetermination of the agreements. Chemport anéBAvere approved by the
FDA to manufacture API for commercial sale in A@@13. On December 30, 2013, we issued a notiterwiination of our API
agreement to BASF as a result of BASF's non-compbawith the terms of such agreement. BASF isledtib a 60-day cure
period. If the agreement is not terminated and BAS¢eessfully completes validation of their mantifdng process for the
production of Vascepa API, the Company will be sabfo minimum purchase obligations. The Comparsytdegyun to purchase
commercial supply from Chemport. The agreement @ilemport contains a provision requiring the Comyarpay Chemport in
cash for any shortfall in the minimum purchasegdtions. The minimum purchase commitment was aeliév 2013. The
agreement with Slanmhor contains a provision réqgithe Company to pay Slanmhor in cash for anytéibin the minimum
purchase obligations, which will become effectiy®n the approval for manufacture by the FDA of syfymm Slanmhor. The
2011 supply agreements include commitments foCihmpany to fund (i) development fees up to a marined $0.5 million
(il) material purchases of up to $5.0 million faitial raw materials, which amount will be creditegainst future API purchases anc
(iii) a raw material purchase commitment of $1.1lion. We have paid $3.1 million related to the
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commitments through December 31, 2013. Under tagemements, during the year ended December 31, #28ompany made
payments of $6.9 million and $0.1 million to Chentmnd BASF, respectively. The agreement with Slaminprovides for
development fees of up to $2.3 million and a commaitt of up to $15.0 million, which will be creditadainst future APl material
purchases. We have paid $6.2 million related teglmmmitments through December 31, 2013. The $tBlidn commitment fee
is contingent upon the mutually agreed upon expansf Slanmhos APl manufacturing capacity. Under this agreemdunting the
year ended December 31, 2013, the Company madegmayiof $6.1 million to Slanmhor related to stapitind technical batchi
and advances on future API purcha

e Concurrent with its entry into one of the two agneats entered into in 2011 for the supply of APterals for Vascepa, the
Company agreed to make a non-controlling minofigre equity investment in the supplier of up t@3$8illion. The Company
invested $1.7 million under this agreement in 20¢1 and the remaining $1.6 million during 2012Skptember 2013, the
Company entered into an equity sale and purchasemgnt between this supplier and a third partyhiith the Company agreed
sell approximately $1.3 million of its investmentthe supplier to the third party at cost. Thisigaction closed in the first quartel
2014. The carrying amount of $3.3 million as of Baber 31, 2013 and 2012 is included in other lemg tassets and is accounted
for under the cost metho

e Under the 2004 share repurchase agreement withal@kdmited, or Laxdale, upon receipt of marketamgproval in the U.S. and/or
Europe for the first indication for Vascepa (osfimdication of any product containing Amarin Nesgience intellectual property
acquired from Laxdale in 2004), the Company muskaren aggregate stock or cash payment to the fashaeholders of Laxdale
(at the sole option of each of the sellers) of &fiilion (approximately $12.4 million at Decembek, 2013) for each of the two
potential marketing approvals. Upon approval of d&& by the FDA on July 26, 2012, the Company abp#td this first Laxdale
milestone ($11.6 million on July 26, 2012) as aamgible asset. This long-term asset will be armediover the estimated useful
life of the intellectual property the Company acqdifrom Laxdale and the Company recognized aratitiz expense of $0.6
million during the year ended December 31, 2012 Thmpany paid $12.1 million in cash in Novembet2h settlement of this
liability and recognized a currency exchange Idsg005 million.

Also under the Laxdale agreement, upon receiptrofgketing approval in the U.S. or Europe for dHer indication of Vascepa (
further indication of any other product using Anmaeuroscience intellectual property), the Compauogt make an aggregate
stock or cash payment (at the sole option of eftheosellers) of £5 million (approximately $8.2lioin at December 31, 2013) for
each of the two potential market approvals (i.€ Eillion maximum, or approximately $16.5 milliohRecember 31, 2013).

The Company has no provision for any of the obiayet above since the amounts are either not prelmbdstimable at
December 31, 2013.

(10) Equity

On July 12, 2013, the Company completed a pubferiofg of 21,700,000 ADSs. The underwriters pureldathe ADSs from Amarin at a price
of $5.60 per ADS, resulting in net proceeds to Amaf approximately $121.2 million, after deductiestimated offering expenses payable by
the Company. Amarin also granted the underwrite38-day option to purchase an additional 3,2558D8s, which was not exercised. The
stated use of proceeds in connection with thisrioffiewere as follows: primarily to continue the amercial launch of Vascepa capsules in the
MARINE indication, prepare for and commercially e Vascepa in the ANCHOR indication, if approvadyance the Company’s REDUCE-
IT cardiovascular outcomes trial, and for geneoaporate and working capital purposes.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2312 result of the exercise of stock options the@oy issued 386,000 and 3,380,413
shares, respectively, resulting in gross and ratgads of $0.6 million for the year ended Decendie2013 and $8.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012.
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During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2312 result of the exercise of warrants the Compssued 147,050 and 11,047,579 she
respectively, resulting in gross and net proceé&®@ million for the year ended December 31, 2848 $16.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

In August and September of 2013, the Company gteantetal of 44,000 restricted stock units (“RSUs"several employees under the Ami
Corporation plc 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (“201arP). These RSUs vest upon the achievement ofinestgerational milestones. In the year
ended December 31, 2013, as a result of the ope&tinilestones not being achieved, all of these'RS8/ere forfeited and no shares were
issued as a result of vesting. The Company recardezkpense during the year ended December 31,r20dt8d to the vesting of these RSUs.

In July 2013, the Company granted a total of 54 @&ferred stock units (“DSUs”) to members of tharpany’s Board of Directors under the
Amarin Corporation plc 2011 Stock Incentive PlapQ11 Plan”). As of December 31, 2013, none of thH2Se’s were forfeited and no shares
were issued as a result of vesting. The DSU’s @est a three year period. The DSUs will becomeyfudisted upon a change of control of the
Company. Upon termination of service to the Compaagh Director shall be entitled to a payment kfqugne fair market value of one share
of Amarin common stock, which is required to be madshares. The Company recorded expense duengetr ended December 31, 2013 of
$31 thousand related to the vesting of these DSUs.

In January 2013, the Company granted 454,875 R&Beveral employees under the 2011 Plan. These R&tsipon the achievement of
certain operational milestones. In the year endecehber 31, 2013, as a result of the operationaktones not being achieved, all of these
RSU’s were forfeited and no shares were issuedrasudt of vesting. The Company recorded no expdosieg the year ended December 31,
2013 related to the vesting of these RSUs.

In February 2012, the Company granted 584,400 R84everal employees under the 2011 Plan. As oéber 31, 2013, a total of 251,818
RSUs were forfeited. These RSUs vest upon the aeiment of certain regulatory and time-based milesto The RSUs will become fully
vested upon a change of control of the Company niasting of each RSU, the participant shall béledtto a payment equal to the fair
market value of one share of Amarin common stotie fayment shall be paid to the participant in caslat the sole discretion of the
Compensation Committee in shares or a combinafieash or shares. During the years ended Decenih@033 and 2012, the Company
issued 93,048 and 97,398 shares, respectivelyremult of the vesting of these RSUs. The fair galfithe RSUs was determined on the da
grant, and compensation expense related to the B3Esognized once the related milestone is deqamuhble. During the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recordaehser of $0.3 million and $1.4 million, respectyyeklated to the vesting of these
RSUs.

(11) Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, interest andlpeseelated to any uncertain tax positions haserbinsignificant. The Company
recognizes interest and penalties related to uasicetdx positions within the provision for inconaxés. The total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that would affect the Compasgffective tax rate if recognized is $1.7 millias of December 31, 2013, as compared to $1.2 mils
of December 31, 2012.
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The following is a reconciliation of the total anmis of unrecognized tax benefits for the years didlecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Beginning uncertain tax benef $1,24: $ 997 $55¢
Current yee—increase: 687 294 43¢
Current yee—decrease (25€) (48) =
Ending uncertain tax benefi $1,67¢ $1,24: $997

The Company files income tax returns in the Ui@lahd and United Kingdom. The Company remainsexilip tax examinations in the
following jurisdictions as of December 31, 2013:

Jurisdiction Tax Years

United States (Federal and State) 201(-201:
Ireland 200¢-201z
United Kingdom 2012-201:

The Company expects gross liabilities of $254,@08xpire in 2014 based on statutory lapses.

The components of loss from operations before tawere as follows at December 31:

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
United State: $ (9,239 $ 1,87 $ 1,01¢
Ireland and United Kingdot (160,18) (171,94) (67,629

$(169,42:) $(170,069) $(66,610)

The (benefit) expense from income taxes shownearatttompanying consolidated statements of opegationsists of the following for fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Current:
Federe-U.S. $ 12z $ 10,26 $ 3,90¢
State-U.S. 11¢€ 2,56¢ 1,101
Total Current $ 24 $ 12,83( $ 5,00¢
Deferred:
Federz-U.S. (4,065 (2,809 (1,936
State-U.S. 631 (911) (557)
Ireland and United Kingdot (33,10¢) (22,519 (5,56¢€)
Change in valuation allowan: 33,10¢ 22,51¢ 5,56¢
Total Deferrec $ (3,439 $ (3,719 $(2,499

$ (3,199 $ 9,11¢ $ 2,51¢
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The (benefit) expense from income taxes differmftbe amount computed by applying the statutorgrme tax rate to income before taxes
to the following for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Benefits from taxes at statutory r: $(42,35% $(42,51) $(16,657)
Rate differentia 18,49« 13,24¢ 3,952
Change in valuation reserv 33,10¢ 22,51 7,12(
Permanent & othe (98E) 6,80¢ 2,20¢
Warrant derivative liabilitie: (11,989 8,90¢ 5,64:
Other 53C 15€ 244

$ (3,199 $ 9,11¢ $ 2,51¢

The Company is subject to corporate tax rate iiamek of 25% for non-trading activities and 12.5%tfading activities. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Companyeaptbie statutory corporate tax rate of 25% for Am&orporation plc, reflecting the non-
trading tax rate in Ireland. However, for AmarinaPmaceuticals Ireland Limited, a wholly-owned sdizsly of Amarin Corporation plc, the
Company applied the 12.5% Irish trading tax rate.

The income tax effect of each type of temporarfedéince comprising the net deferred tax asset e¢mber 31 is as follows:
2013 2012

(In thousands)
Deferred tax asset

Net operating losse $ 85,72« $ 55,08¢
Stock based compensati 11,66( 9,15¢
Depreciatior (12€) (189)

Tax credits 1,25¢ 5
Other reserves and accrued liabilit 2,90( 81¢
Gross deferred tax as 101,41. 64,87t
Less: valuation allowanc (88,999 (55,899
$ 12,41 $ 8,981

The Company assesses whether it is more-likely-tiwarthat the Company will realize its deferred éssets. The Company determined that it
was more-likely-than-not that the Irish, UK, andalsi net operating losses and the related deféaedssets would not be realized in future
periods and a full valuation allowance has beerigeal for all periods.

The Company has combined Irish, UK, and Israeliopetrating loss carryforwards of $528.2 million,igéhdo not expire. In addition, the
Company has available U.S. Federal tax credit tammards of $4.1 million and state tax credit céoryards of $1.8 million. These
carryforwards, which will expire starting betweedP® and 2032 may be used to offset future taxaiglene, if any.

The Company recognized a tax benefit related textension of 2012 research and development criediit2013 and recorded a discrete
benefit of approximately $1.9 million.

(12) Stock Incentive Plans and Stock Based Compsation

On April 29, 2011 the Board, upon the recommendatiothe Remuneration Committee, adopted the 2@dd¢kSncentive Plan (“2011 Plan”),
which was approved by the Company’s shareholdetkign12, 2011. The
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2011 Plan replaced the Company’s 2002 Stock Otlan (“2002 Plan”), which expired on January 1,200he maximum number of the
Company'’s Ordinary Shares of £0.50 each or any AP& to be issued under the 2011 Plan shall meeexthe sum of (i) 3.5 million newly
authorized Shares available for award and (ii)nim@ber of Shares that remained available for gnamtier the Company’s 2002 Plan and

(i) the number of Shares underlying then outstag@wards under the 2002 Plan that could be sulesely forfeited, cancelled, expire or are
otherwise terminated. The award of stock optiomsh(lincentive and non-qualified options) and resdd stock units, and awards of
unrestricted Shares to Directors are permitted. Z0iel Plan is administered by the Remuneration Cicbeenof our Board of Directors and
expires on July 12, 2021.

In addition to the grants under the 2011 PlanQbmpany grants nonqualified stock options to emgdsyto purchase the Company’s ordinary
shares. These grants are made pursuant to emplowgne®ments on terms consistent with the 2011 Plan

Under the terms of the 2011 Plan, and grants madrignt to employment agreements, options typicat over a four year period, expire
after a 10 year term and are granted at an exqudise equal to the closing price of the Comparyiserican Depository Shares on the grant
date. The following table summarizes all stock @ptctivity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Weightec Average
Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(in thousands, except for per share amount:
Outstanding January 1, 20 10,89: $ 7.2¢
Grantec 1,215 7.4¢
Cancelled/Expire! (2,399 10.8:
Exercisec (386€) 1.61
Outstanding, December 31, 20 9,33( 6.6 7.4 year $ 1,063
Exercisable, December 31, 20 7,077 5.87 7.1 year $ 1,062
Vested and Expected to Vest, December 31, . 9,06 6.57 7.4 year $ 1,063
Available for future grant at December 31, 2( 9,212

The weighted average fair value of the stock ogtigranted during the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2011 was $6.18, $8.79 and
$8.61, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20&8Zompany received cash of $0.6 million and $&IBon from the exercise of options.
The intrinsic value of options exercised during 20das $2.4 million and $34.1 million during 2012 &f December 31, 2013 and 2012, there
was $15.7 million and $41.8 million of unrecogniztdck-based compensation expense related to @vssick option share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the Corspetogk award plans. This expense is expectee t@tognized over a weightesterag:
period of approximately 2.2 years. There was $(@ljon and $11.3 million for the years ended Dmber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
reflected as a (provision) benefit within the cdidated statement of cash flows related to excasgprovision) benefits on the U.S. federal
level that have been realized as an (increaseltiedun taxes payable. The Company recognizes eosgtion expense for the fair values of
those awards which have graded vesting on a strighbasis.

The fair value of options on the date of grant estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricinglehoUse of a valuation model requires
management to make certain assumptions with retpseiected model inputs. Expected stock pricatility was calculated based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s common staoker the expected life of the option. The expetifedvas determined based on the short-
cut method based on
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the term and vesting period. The risk-free interat is based on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury seuvifth a maturity term approximating the
expected life of the option at the date of grard.dividend yield has been assumed as the Compaes/ruut currently pay dividends on its
common stock and does not anticipate doing sodridreseeable future. Estimated forfeitures aredbas the Company'’s historical forfeiture
activity.

Employee stock options granted prior to June 3092fknerally vested over a three-year service gpeEmployee stock options granted after
June 30, 2009 generally vest over a four-year semériod and all stock options are settled byigk@ance of new shares. Compensation
expense recognized for all option grants is netstimated forfeitures and is recognized over thards/ respective requisite service periods.
The Company recorded compensation expense inaelttistock options of $14.3 million, $16.7 milliand $9.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company used thexfimitpassumptions to estimate the fair value of stiersed payment awards:

2013 2012 2011

Risk free interest rate 0.91%- 2.07% 0.81%- 1.39% 2.03%- 2.56%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected option life (year: 6.25 6.25 6.25
Expected volatility 91%- 110% 109%- 111% 105%- 112%

Restricted Stock Units

The 2011 Plan also allows for granting of restdcstock unit awards under the terms of the Plae. mhjority of the restricted stock units vest
upon the achievement of various performance carditsuch as FDA approval. Additionally, there seavice condition tied to each
performance condition achieved. The Company estichtite fair value of the restricted stock unitsigghe market price of its common stock
on the date of grant. The fair value of restrictamtk units is amortized on a straight-line basisrdhe vesting period. The following table
presents the restricted stock unit activity for ylears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Shares Value
(in thousands’

Outstandin—as of January 1, 201 465 8.8¢
Grantec 553 7.7F
Vested (93 8.8¢
Forfeited (729 8.21

Outstandin—as of December 31, 20: 19¢€ 6.9¢€

The Company recorded compensation expense inaelttirestricted stock units of $0.4 million, $tlion and zero for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

The following table presents the stock-based compguam expense related to stock based awardsdqrettiod ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Research and developme $ 2,83 $ 3,70( $1,464

Selling, general and administrati 11,84¢ 14,37t 7,83(

Stock-based compensation expel $14,68¢ $18,07¢ $9,29¢
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(13) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes available a 401(k) plan for is. @mployees to which it made contributions ipyears. The Company did not make
any contributions in 2013, 2012 or 2011.

(14) Related Party Transaction
October 2009 Private Placement

Several of Amarin’s current and former directord &imds connected with them purchased approxim@g@§ million of its ADSs (in the form
of common stock) in the October 2009 private plagetnincluding: (i) 17 million ADSs purchased byfls managed by Abingworth LLP,
where Dr. Joseph Anderson, a former Director of Amas a partner; (i) 7 million ADSs purchased ®ybimed Advisors LLC, where

Dr. Carl L. Gordon, a former Director of Amarin,asGeneral Partner; (iii) 7 million ADSs purchassdSofinnova Venture Partners VII, L.P.,
where Dr. James |. Healy, a Director of Amarima islanaging General Partner; and (iv) 5 million AQfeschased by Fountain Healthcare
Partners Fund 1, L.P. Fountain Healthcare Partridrss the sole General Partner of Fountain Healtd Partners Fund 1, L.P. Dr. Manus
Rogan is a Managing Partner of Fountain HealthParéners Ltd. and until December 2011 was a noctgke director of Amarin. In
addition, for every ADS purchased, the investoeneed warrants to purchase 0.5 of an ADS. Of the #illion warrant derivative liability at
December 31, 2013, the fair value of the warraetd by the current and former directors of the Camypand their related investment funds
amounted to $4.5 million.

(15) Restructuring

As part of a program to reduce costs and increpseational efficiencies, in October 2013, the Conypannounced a plan to streamline
operations to better align its cost structure witlrent market conditions by reducing its globalkforce by approximately 50%. In connecti
with this program, the Company recorded $2.8 niiliio charges for severance and related benefiesdiace the Company’s workforce during
the quarter ended December 31, 2013, of which $lllbn is recorded in research and developmeneasp and $2.6 million is recorded in
selling, general and administrative expense imtteompanying consolidated statement of operatiims. Company does not expect to incur
any additional charges related to this programemgisnt to December 31, 2013 and expects to makenadlining payments in the first half of
2014.

The restructuring charges, which are included orzed expenses and other current liabilities instt@mpanying consolidated balance sheet
as of December 31, 2013, are summarized as follows:

Employee Severanc

and Benefits

Balance as of January 1, 2013 $ —

Restructuring charge 2,781
Cash payment (2,646
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 13t

(16) Quarterly Summarized Financial Information (Unaudited)
Immaterial Restateme

The Company’s operating results reflected net b$seeach fiscal quarter during the years endegkBer 31, 2013 and 2012. During certair
of these quarters, net loss included gains recapdecthanges in the fair value of the warrant déirrediability (See Note 2). The diluted
earnings per share amounts for certain quarteripg@®e have been restated to reflect the increakessper share which occurs if such gains
recorded on changes in the fair value of the wadanvative liability are excluded from the calatibn of net loss. The diluted weighted
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average share amounts for such quarterly periods &lso been adjusted to reflect the incrementstanding shares utilizing the treasury
stock method assuming the warrants associatedthédtterivative liability had been exercised. Fa year ended December 31, 2012, change
in the fair value of the warrant derivative liahjlresulted in a net loss and as a result, thesengampact of the quarterly restatements to
diluted net loss per share on our consolidatedhfire statements for that period.

Fiscal year ended December 31, 20:
1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
As As As As As As
Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated
(In thousands, except per share amount:

Revenue $ 2,342 $ 2,342 $ 5,50( $ 5,50( $ 8,40: $ 8,40 $ 10,10¢

Net loss (62,158 (62,158 (39,774 (39,774 (48,884 (48,884 (15,417
Net loss per share

Basic $ (041) $ (041) $ (020 $ (020 $ (029 $ (029 $ (0.09

Diluted $ (041) $ (049 $ (020 $ (03) $ (029 $ (029 $ (0.29)

Fiscal year ended December 31, 20:
1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
As As As As As As As As
Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated
(In thousands, except per share amount:

Revenue $ — $$ - $ - $$ - & - & - & —  $ —

Net loss (88,285 (88,28 (53,909 (53,909 (26,426 (26,426 (10,569 (10,569
Net loss per share

Basic $ (065 $ (065 $ (03 $ (039 $ (0.1 $ (0.1 $ (0.0) $ (0.09

Diluted $ (065 $ (065 $ (03 $ (039 $ (0.1 $ (029 $ (0.0) $ (0.30

(17) Subsequent Events

On January 8, 2014, the Company granted a total0&2,000 RSUs and 2,605,500 stock options to grmepbunder the 2011 Plan. The RSU'’s
vest annually over a three year period and the&ksiptons vest monthly over a four year period.

On February 21, 2014, in connection with the Jlly2012 approval of the MARINE indication, the FDlAnied a grant of New Chemical
Entity (NCE) marketing exclusivity to Vascepa andrged three-year marketing exclusivity. Such tiyear exclusivity extends through July
25, 2015 and can be supplemented by a 30-monthridggred after patent infringement litigationtiaied by Amarin following a valid notice
to Amarin of the filing of an application to the RZeeking approval of a generic version of Vasc&gd marketing exclusivity is separate
from, and in addition to, patent protection, tragerets and manufacturing barriers to entry whisb laelp protect Vascepa against generic
competition.

On February 27, 2014, the Company filed a lawsggirsst the FDA that challenges FDA'’s denial of @@mpany’s request for five-year
exclusivity for Vascepa based on the Company’sinepdf the relevant statute and inconsistency WIA's past actions. The complaint
requests that the court vacate FDA's decision,adedhat Vascepa is entitled to the benefits ad-jigar statutory exclusivity, bar the FDA fr
accepting any ANDA or similar application for whitfascepa is the referentisted drug until after the statutory exclusivitgripd expires, an
if necessary, set aside FDA’s premature acceptaihary such application.
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Name

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limit

Amarin Pharma Inc

Amarin Neuroscience Limite
Corsicanto Ltd

Ester Neurosciences Limitt

Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31023

Jurisdiction
Ireland
Delaware
Scotlanc
Ireland
Israel

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-163704 and 333-1705050rm F-3, Registration Statement
No. 33173132 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement BR%.146839, 333-143358, 333-132520, 333-110703183.775, 333-84152,
333-168054, 333-176877, 333-168055, 333-18018Ba&Bel83160 on Form S-8 of our reports dated Felpr2ady 2014 relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Amarin Corfloreplc and subsidiaries and the effectivenes&mérin Corporation plc’s internal control
over financial reporting, appearing in this AnnRaport on Form 10-K of Amarin Corporation plc foetyear ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, John F. Thero, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal controls over finan@glarting, or caused such internal controls ovearfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 27, 2014 /s/ John F. Thero

John F. Thert
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Michael J. Farrell, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 27, 2014 /sl Michael J. Farre
Michael J. Farrel
Controller
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”), and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), John F. Thergjdenat and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) of Amarin Corporatigic and Michael J. Farrell, Controller (Princiahancial Officer) of the Company, each
hereby certifies that, to the best of his knowledge

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K far geriod ended December 31, 2013, to which thisifi@ation is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the“ Annual Repor”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3gr 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act;

(2) The information contained in the Annual Redaitly presents, in all material respects, thefiitial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the end of such y«

/s/ John F. Thero
Date: February 27, 201 John F. Thert
President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakEutive Officer)

/s/ Michael J. Farrell
Date: February 27, 201 Michael J. Farrel
Controller (Principal Financial Office

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K toaebhit relates, is not deemed filed with the Se@siand Exchange Commission and is not
incorporated by reference into any filing of Ama@orporation plc under the Securities ExchangeoAdi934, as amended (whether made
before or after the date of the Form-K), irrespective of any general incorporation laage contained in such filin



